AGENDA

SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOARD MEETING
KETCHUM CITY HALL
480 EAST AVENUE NORTH
KETCHUM, ID
September 25, 2019 - 2:00 P.M.

CALLTO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT

- REMARKS FROM THE CHAIR

"REMARKS FROM THE BOARD

CONSENT AGENDA All items listed under the Consent Agenda will be approved in one motion without
discussion unless any Board Member requests that the item be removed for individual discussion and
. possible action. ' :

1. Approval of Air Service Board Minutes of July 31, 2019 (Action ltem);
‘2. Receive and File Financials:
a. 1% Local Option Tax Report —June and July 2019 (Action Item);
ACTION/DISCUSSION
“3. Report from Fly Sun Valley Alliance on contract needs for FY 2020 (no documents)
4, Report from Sun Valley Marketing Alliance on contract needs for FY 2020 (no documents)
5. Discussion & action regarding Fly Sun Valley Alliance Contract Exhibit Payment Schedule FY 2020 (Action
ltem) ' ' ' ' A _
6. Discussion & action regarding Sun Valley Marketing Alliance Contract Exhibit Payment Schedule FY 2020
(Action Item) :
7. Discussion and action regarding renewal of insurance coverage with ICRMP for the Insurance Policy Year
October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020 (Action ltem);
8. Authorization for Payment of Bilis on-hand through September 20, 2019 (Action ltem);

EXECUTIVE SESSION — Pursuant to Idaho Code § 74-206 (d) to consider records that are exempt from
disclosure as provided in Chapter 1, Title 74, Idaho Code and Idaho Code § 74-206 (e) to consider
preliminary negotiations involving matters of trade or commerce in which the governing body is in
competition with governing bodies in other states or nations {Action ltem);

ADJOURNMENT (Action ltem)

Please Note: The agenda is subject to revisions. Any person in need of assistance to attend or participate should contact Hailey
City Hall prior to the meeting at 788-4221. Air Service Board Packets are online at www.haileycityhall.org;
www.sunvalley.govoffice.com; and www.ketchumidaho.org.




Sun Valley Air Service Board
Meeting Minutes
July 31, 2019
Hailey City Hall Meeting Room 2 pm

Present: Neil Bradshaw — Mayor, City of Ketchum
Jacob Greenberg — Blaine County Commissioner
Peter Hendricks — Mayor, City of Sun Valley

Absent: Fritz Haemmerle — Mayor, Cfty of Hailey

Staff Present: Sun Valley — Susan Robertson
Hailey — Heather Dawson

CALL TO ORDER:

2:02:13 PM by Peter Hendricks
Neil Bradshaw and Peter Hendricks are present

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

2:02:47 PM Carol Waller thanks Susan Robertson for all of her work through the years
of service for air service in valley, we are going to miss her and thank her for all she has
done. ’ -

Remarks by Bradshaw 2:03:22 PM thank you Susan, looks like it is a great summer so
~ far, long may it continue.

2:03:37 PM Hendricks, will make announcement tomorrow, but wanted to say to this
group. 2:04:24 PM He wanted to make remarks to this group. Hendricks announces
that Robertson has accepted a position and will be departing on August 2" to Augusta
Maine. Hendricks remarks that Robertson started her tenure at Sun Valley on January
2013 in the midst of frequently headlined news stories about the government in Sun
Valley, thanks to her calm even approach, in a difficult environment she led the city
back to an even keel. 2:05:18 PM Hendricks will miss her help and advice, "thank you
for your service,” ends Hendricks. Robertson replies to Hendricks, “Thanks.”

2:05:03 PM Jacob Greenberg arrives. Hendricks, asks, let the record show Jacob
Greenberg joins the meeting and comments. 2:06:06 PM He summarizes where we are
with the airport and all organizations (Fly Sun Valley Alliance, Visit Sun Valley), we are
at a crucial juncture here and must work together, a sustainable funding measure is
crucial. 2:07:17 PM The Friedman Memorial Airport Board (FMAA) is looking at
improvements to the airport, and had an opportunity to review appropriate facilities for
future flights and working with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). Tomorrow,

Sun Valley Air Service Board Minutes
July 31, 2019




Airport Manager Chris Pomeroy and Greenberg will travel to Ft. Collins with consultant
Bill Payne to look at a control tower 2:08:21 PM pilot program for a remote tower,
objective on how to move forward with this program. We will have Raytheon to look at
our facilities, 2:09:16 PM Bradshaw asks what is a remote tower? Greenberg answers,
it is an array of 2:09:46 PM cameras along a runway, and look at cameras to perform
traffic control. There are microphones to pick up sound. Benefit to others, have several
rooms monitoring several airports, there is redundant power, they have answers for all
of our questions. 2:11:59 PM Greenberg shows an electronic picture from his phone to
Hendricks and Bradshaw. 2:13:06 PM the FMAA airport has invested in testing a new
approach, now need to get the airlines to use it. 2:13:41 PM if we get in on the pilot
program it would be free to us, and it would save us in having to rebuild a new control
tower. We fit all of the characteristics of a model airport to try out this program. Our

- congressional delegation will be here the 13™ of August, we will be visiting with them.
Senator Crapo and Risch will be here, we are hoping they will convince the FAA that we
are worthy. 2:15:00 PM Hendricks asks about the safety record of this program, is it
tested? The Ft. Collins is not fully operational but the Leesburg facility is in use now.
Hendricks asks, have the airlines weighed in on this? Greenberg responds, doesn’t
know if they have. He suspects they will have the same questions you will. Greenberyg,
will report back later. :

2:16:31 PM Dick Fenton asks a question is it a net cost savings to us? Greenberg
responds, yes it would mean discretionary funds to us. We match 6.7% of the cost, so
yes it is a savings to us. :

CONSENT AGENDA:

2:17:30 PM Consent agenda approve minutes and financials
2:17:45 PM Bradshaw moves to approve consent agenda items, seconded by
Hendricks. Motion passed with roll call vote. Hendricks, yes. Bradshaw, yes.

~ PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2:18:24 PM Susan Robertson, this is a similar budget than last year, anticipating a 6%
increase in contracts for services next meeting. ‘

2:19:12 PM Bradshaw asks about allocation question, has this been discussed? Susan
Robertson replies, these organizations meet and determine their individual needs and
come with a proposal, and break out the money by the months. 2:20:18 PM Robertson,
replies you do that at a later date, how to spilit it:

No Public comments.

2:20:53 PM Bradshaw moves to approve budget, seconded by Hendricks, motion
passed with roll call vote. Bradshaw yes. Hendricks, yes.

2:21:32 PM Robertson presented these audit services with Workman and Company, is
same firm with different owner.

Sun Valley Air Service Board Minutes
July 31, 2019



2:22:08 PM Bradshaw moves to approve Workman and Company contract,
Hendricks seconds, motion passed with roll call vote. Bradshaw yes. Hendricks,
yes. v

2:22:31 PM Robertson explains the bills on hand, invoices for listen,
2:22:58 PM Bradshaw move to approve invoices as presented, seconded by
Hendricks. passed with roll call vote Bradshaw yes. Hendricks, yes.

6.2:23:18 PM JPA agreement Susan Robertson, this is complete, original has been
signed by all parties.

2:24:17 PM Peter Hendricks updates board about a conversation he had with Mayor
Haemmerle regarding Susan Robertson’s departure, and he agreed that City of Hailey
would assume Susan’s duties in Heather Dawson, until Sun Valley can hire a
replacement. '

2:24:40 PM Carol Waller gave a verbal update, at the next meeting will be a formal

presentation, bookings are up 10% in June.

We had a strategic planning session in June with both boards. Now smaller groups will

look at needs assessments, maybe in a month or two have something to review, and

have short-term FY 20 plan. Next meeting is Sept. 26%. 2:26:50 PM the new fall

schedule will come out soon.

2:27:12 PM Bradshaw .asks for a couple of takeaways of the recent meeting? Waller

responds, both boards got more information, developing a plan more in tandem.

Everyone felt positive, a got everyone on the same page.

2:29:30 PM Greenberg, there was about 40 people at the joint strategic session.

Ongoing discussion of marketing efforts.

2:30:39 PM With no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Bradshaw.

~ Seconded by Hendricks, motion passed with roll call vote. Bradshaw yes.
Hendricks, yes. ' DR - A o

Fritz Haemmerle, Chairman

ATTEST:

Neil Bradshaw, Secretary/Treasurer

Sun Valley Air Service Board Minutes
July 31, 2019



6T-unf ‘ 6T-1dy 3983U0) 10§ SPUN4 WO} £8°679-

mw.c:a ‘ 6T-1dy 12B1)UQY 10] SPUN WO} 68°6TY-

61-uef pied tano

Inf upjuaWwAediaA0 3L} 1RGNS,

£7'006°G9€'T 60'089'688 {e10L
%0v %09 6T-AON  61-das
%0S . %08 61-1°0  6T-8ny
%0S %05 61-das  6I-Inf
16'022602 16°022'602 TT'SSTTET %05 76°022'602 76'022'602 TT'SS2TET %08 TT'0TS'292 61-8ny  GI-unf
08°S96°LL 18'S96°LL %0S T18'G96°LL 18'596°LL %05 T9'TE€6GST 6T-INf 6T-Aet
000 8L'8LS°0L 19'802°TL %05 000 7L88L°0L 19'802°TL %0S TTLIY'TYT 6T-unf  BT-IAV 4
68'96£'897 6896€'89T %09 65°¥92CTT 65'79¢'CTT %0y 81'199'087 6T-AN  6I-1eN
000 €8'L86'9YT £8'/86'9¥T %09 000 88'T66L6 88'T66'L6 %0Y 0L'6L6'vbZ 61-1dy  67-494
00’0 68°009VLE TT'S06'VST %09 000 £6'EEL'6VC 80°0L2'€0T %0 0Z'SLT'8ST 6T-8N  6T-uef
LL'S69'6TT LL'569'61C %09 S8'E9v'ovT S8'€9p'9pT %oy 79'651'99€ 61-094  8T-%3d
000 0€'58Y'S6€ 89'796'06 %09 000 91°0926VT . ZTEr909 %0v 08°'£09'TST 6T-Uef  8T-AON
79°025Y0E 07'980'TTT %09 10°'L19'88 9r'LSO'VL %0v 99'€pI'S8T 81990 81320
TV VEV'EET Y VeV EBT %E6 85°655VT 85°655'1T %L 00'v66°L0T aauejeg pung
Spunj ajgejleay  junowy pasioau] 19BAU0) 10} SpUn4 pamQ spung sjgejleay Jo 9 spun4 ajqejieay unowy pajjoau; 12B1UO) 104 SpUny pamo SJ2BNU0D) POARIAY  paleiauln
spung a|qe|ieAy Jo % | Jojspund 101 %L 101 %1
%61 00T'veE Sujujeway %TE o.N.m..oﬁv Sujujeway .
000°063°C 193png 000'00€°T " 1e8png
VINAS - aduelIv AS Al
*10149 UER.0} ANP 86'L LT $0 350D 19211 Joj Juawiisnipe Ae|,
(00°0SE'Y) {6T°07109) 89'TEBTITC 05'6€9°29 LT'v0S'L8S'T 00°'889°95Y |ejol
00'5L- ’ 6T-AON  6T-das
00°SL- 610  6I-8ny
00°SL- . 61-das  6I-inf
12°015'29¢ 00°54- 98°€75'9- L0°601'692 £0°£96'9 26'968'Z6T [A8 740} 6T-8ny  er-unf
T9'T€6'SST 00°SL- 15°020'8- FANAAVS 751 T6'STZ'E WTvE'oTT 6L'69Y'0V 61-inf 61-AeN
WLV 00°SLS- 6t"80€'S- TL00€'8VT YTEOTTT VTIEEOTT £2'992's¢C 6T-unf  6T-dY
84°79908¢ 00°SL- 19°09€'8- . ST°L60'68T LO'SY8'6 €€°L2T'T0T SL'VET'8L 6T-AelN  6T-iBW
0L'6L6'VtC 00°54- 6T'€8E9- 66°LEV'TST. SOTLYL 28'vTT 6T S TYTTS 6T~dy  67-g°d
0T'SL1'85¢ 00'S4- STI6V'9- ST TL'Y9T €E°LZ0'TT vevL8'L6T 88'6£8'55 6T~1BN  6T-uer
T6°60T'S9€ 8/5179°65T'99€ 00°5Z- TL'06€'9- YE'529'TLE 8TLEY'L TL°0S6'T8T GE'LET'ES 61-924  81-%@
08'209'TST 00°5L- £L°¥87'9- £6°296'LST 89°TS9'E - 85°TLY'SET LTEV8'8T 6T-uef  QI-AON
99'€vT'8T 00°520'e- £9'95€'9- £€'STS'V6T T€'072'9 6 V8L 'YST 0T°0TS'€E 8T-02d  8T-¥P0
00'¥66°202 soue|eg pund
spenuoc) 198png $3S07) 3831 SN IUNWIWo) WLIoL >.m=mI wniynay Asjjep ung paaedBay  pelelsusn
10} spuny aApenIsulwpY gSYAS - 101 %1 101 %T
sasuadxy uopnqgEIuo) (01 %I
-6T0Z ‘INNT ANV AVIN

JHOd3Y XYL NOILdO TVO01 %31
ayvos SAJIAYIS HIV AITIVA NNS




EXhibit“A" L T e e e TR e T s

SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
BETWEEN THE
SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOARD AND
FSVA

THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES, (hereinafter referred to as "Contract") made and entered into
this 31st day of January 2018, by and between the Sun Valley Air Service Board, an Idaho Joint
Powers Authority (hereinafter referred to as the "ASB") and the Fly Sun Valley Alliance, Inc., an Idaho
nonprofit corporation with an IRS 501 (c) (6) designation, {hereinafter referred to as "FSVA").

RECITALS

1. The ASB is a duly organized and existing Joint Powers Authority organized as a separate legal
entity under idaho Code §§ 67- 2328 et seq. The ASB is made up of the following entities (hereinafter
referred to as "Component Members”):

a. The City of Sun Valley, Idaho

b. The City of Ketchum, Idaho

c. The City of Hailey, Idaho

d. Blaine County, idaho [non-voting]

2. FSVA is an Idaho non-profit corporation with an IRC 501(c){6) designation engaged in the
business of commercial air service development for the Sun Valley, Idaho area as further described in

3. Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-2328, 50-301 and 50-302, the ASB is empowered to enter into
contracts and take such steps as are reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good govemment
and welfare of the Component Members and their trade, commerce and ind ustry. Accordingly, the ASB
has the power as conferred by the State of idaho, to provide directly for certain promotlonal actlvmes
to enhance the trade, commerce, mdustry, and economic well- bemg of the Component Members

4. The fcliowmg ordinances have been adopted by certain Component Members (except Blaine .
County) for the purposes of a) mamtamxng and increasing commercial air service to Friedman Memona!
Airport through the use of Minimum Revenue Guarantees ("MRG 's") or other mducements to
provxders b) promoting and marketmg the’ ex:stmg service and any future semce to mcrease'.

~ passengers; ¢} for all anc;llary costs Wthh are assocsated with the ohgoing effort to’ mamtaln ‘and

increase commercial air service, including reasonable program management costs and busing due to

flight diversion(s); and d) direct costs to collect and enforce the tax, including administrative and
legal fees: i '

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 1




SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

a. Sun Vailey Ordinance No. 45G.
b. Ketchum Ordinance No. 1108.
c. Hailey Ordinance No. 1133,

5. The primary reason for the ASB to enter this Contract is to effectuate the purposes of the local
option taxes and Component Member ordinances recited above.

6. FSVA’s mission is to retain, develop and improve air service to the Friedman Memorial Azrport
{SUN) in Blaine County.,

7. The organizational goals of FSVA are consnstent with the purposes and findings of the ordmances )
recited above.

8. ltis the mtentlon of the ASB to contract with FSVA to prowde such servuces for ccn5|deratmn as.

9. FSVA desires to enter into a contract with the ASB to retain, develop and improve alr serwce a
hereinafter provided.

3) Letter of Crednt fees and 4) any apphcéb!e vanrtme start up tosts as well as other axr se'

development effo

prowde an equ:valent cash va!ue FSVA will’ use ASB funds to pay 100% of the annual ﬁxed cost f |
Enhanced dwersnon bussmg services (mcludmg upgraded equapment on cai! d rlvers and alrport hosts),i'if
whlch are prowded for all axrhnes at Fr:edman Memor;al Alrport dunng the wmter '

12,  ASB and FSVA mtend to honor the conf“ dentyahty prowswns in the alrhne contracts but venfy%_
the costs by exammmg the invoices for Air Servace Contract Costs in executsve sesszon G -

| NGW THEREFORE in consnderat:on of the mutual prom!ses and agreements set forth herem, :t
is agreed by and between the ASB and FSVA as fo!lows RN : -‘- '

CONTRACT FOR ssavaces Page2 ﬁ_




SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

1. All Recitals above are incorporated herein by reference.

h

Services. FSVA agrees to make its dedicated professional best efforts toward retaining,
developing and improving air service by securing and managing air service into Friedman
Memorial Airport; providing other air service support; pursuing new and/or expanded air
service; and other air service development related tasks ("Air Service Development") as more
particularly set forth in Exhibit "A", which is incorporated herein by reference, and to pay 50%
of the Air Service Contract Costs.

3. xgense FSVA agrees that it shall provide, at its sole expense, all costs of labor, materials,
supphes business overhead and financial expenses, liability insurance, fidelity bonds, and all:
necessary equvl_pment a_n:d _fac_;ht:es required to provide the services as set for in this Contrac,

4. Term. The term of thlS Contract shall commence upon the day of its execution and shall o
terminate September 30 2018. This Contract shall be automattcally extended for one (1) year'
terms, unless notice is prowded as set forth herein. Such notice shall be served not less than
sixty (SO) days prlcr to the explratlon of any annual term. Thfs Contract may be amended to
increase the length of the term if so determmed by the part:es

5. Consideration.

A, Air Semce Contract Costs and Air_Service Development Relmbursemen

. Dunng the term ‘of thlS Contract ASB shali pay FSVA as;retmbursement_ for Air
fice ,:__and as payment for Alr Sﬁervnce Development _a

of Avanlable Funds" for FSVA as set forth m the Payment Schedule m Exhibn "
"B" by the actual amount of local optlon taxes recelved by the ASB iess dsrect’ :

Ava:[abie for Contracts" 'm Exhsbxt "B" In the event. the monthly payments : :
’denved durmg FY 18 wouid exceed the "F!y SV Alhance Contract Expenses"
arneunt in Exhlblt “B”, the last monthiy payment(s) shall be reduced to ensure
only 3 payment of the contract amount in Exhtbtt B.. ln the event the monthlyfﬁ:?
payments derived durmg FY 18 are less than the contract amaunt in Exhlbnt B
FSVAshall not be entitled to the dlfference between the total of the monthly

payments and the contract amount in Exhibit B The Payment Schedu!e for each

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES —Page3




SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

subsequent fiscal year may be amended by the parties as part of that fiscal
year’s budget process.

B. FSVA shall maintain a contract with SVC wherein SVC shall reimburse FSVA for
50% of Air Service Contract Costs. Said reimbursements shall include a cash
payment for 50% of MRG cost, and other contributions for at least 50% of other
Air Service Contract Costs.

C. Limitation of Funds. Funds paid by ASB to FSVA shall only be used for the
purposes set forth in this Contract, and for no other purpose. The annual FSVA -
ASB contract budget is outlined on the spread sheet attached hereto as Exhibit
“C”. In the event FSVA pays pursuant to the contracts described in Recital 10,
above, less than the “Total FSVA Contract Amount” identified in Exhibit “C", the
difference may be retained by FSVA as reserves but such amount shall only be
used for payment of future Air Service Contract Costs, if approved by ASB, under
other airline contracts, subject to the same limitations set forth in this Contract.

6.  Reporting Requirements. m’parti'al consideration for, , FSVA agrees to provide to the ASB:

A. Written and in-person presentations and reports in January and July during the
term of this Contract or as otherwise scheduled by the parties outlining
program results and plans for the upcommg season and explaining annu
performance based on the metrics specified in attached Exhiblt "A", Sem

... annual reports w:li be based on the government fsscal year of October 1st to. ...

September 30",

B. The ASB has at all times the right to request an indepeﬁdent audit, at the sole
cost of FSVA, under the provisions herein, and such audit obligation and cost on
the part of FSVA shall survwe any termlnatzon

C. The ASB may request additional financial information it deems necessary or
appropriate to assist the ASB in verifying the accuracy of the FSVA's financial
records, and w;thm a reasonabte time period, FSVA shall “submit such":____f
information’ or reports relating to its activities under this Contract to ASB m_l
such form and at such time as ASB may reasonab!y require. Any duly authorlzed] .
agents of the ASB shall be entttled to inspect and audit all books and records of
FSVA for compliance with the terms of this Contract. Any record provnded
hereunder which would covered by the confidentiality provisions described in
Recital 11, above, shall not be disclosed unless ordered by a court of competent

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 4




SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

jurisdiction or unless consent is provided by the Sun Valley Company and the
relevant airline. FSVA agrees to retain all financial records, supporting
documents, statistical reports, contracts, minutes, correspondence, and all
other accounting records or written materials pertaining to this Contract for
three (3} years following the expiration or termination of this Contract.

D. Invoices and supporting documents from airlines for the Air Service Contract
Costs to be paid by FSVA, and documentation of reimbursement of 50% of Air
Service Contract Costs by SVC to FSVA. Such invoices and supporting
documentation shall be presented to the ASB by FSVA in executive session.

7. Termination. The ASB may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract upon 90 days written
notice to FSVA with or without cause. The ASB recognizes that the FSVA has made sngmf:cant
financial commitments {e.g., vendor contracts) on behalf of the ASB and will need time to
adjust its obligations. In the event of such termination, the ASB shall have no further
responsibility to make any payment to FSVA under this Contract at the end of the QO—day
period.

8.  Egual Employment Opportunity. FSVA covenants that it shall not discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sexor national cngl

9. Independent Contractor Status. The parties acknowledge and agree that FSVA shall provsde its
serwces for the fee spec:F ed herein in the status of mdependent contractor and not as an

'accrue leave, returement msurance, bondmg or any other bereﬂt afforded to empioyees of.:
the ASB The sole mterest and responsnblllty of the ASB under this Contract is to assure ztself
that the services covered by this Agreement shall be performed and rendered by FSVA'in a
competent efncsent and satasfactory manner.

10. Hold Harmless Agreement FSVA hereby covenants and agrees toindemnify, defend and:
hold the ASB and the Component Members, and their officials, officers, employees and agents
harmless from and agalnst any and a{l c[alms, demands, causes of actlon, suuts, lcsses,
habdltles, damages, costs and expenses, mcludmg attorney fees, that may accrue, dlrectly or.
md:rectly, by reason of l‘iOﬂ‘dlSC’OSUFE of mfarmatmn pursuant to Paragraph 6( ) ‘of this
Contract or by reason of any wrongful act or om:ssron on the part of FSVA, its agents,i_
emptoyees, assigns or subcontractors related to damages or bodlly injury, property damage
and personal injury that arise out of FSVA's actions or omissions assocaated wnth the services
or obligations described in this. Contract. FSVA shall have the duty to appear and defend

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES - Page S



11.

12,

13.

14,

SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

any such demand, claim, suit or action on behalf of ASB and the Component Members, or
tender the defense without cost or expense to ASB and the Component Members.

Non-Assignment. This Contract may not be assigned by or transferred by FSVA, in whole or in
part, without the prior written consent of the ASB.

Mediation/Arbitration. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute between the parties
concerning this Contract or the breach of this Contract, including questions concerning the
scope and applicability of this dispute resolution provision, the parties agree to participate in
good faith in a mediation of any such dispute in Blaine County, Idaho. If mediation is
unsuccessful, then the dispute, shall be finally settled through litigation in the District Court,
Blaine County Idaho. The court shall have no power to award punitive or exemplary damages.

Attorney’s Fees. In the event of any dispute with regard to the interpretation or enforceméht
of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and
attorneys' fees incurred therein, whether or not a lawsuit is actually filed, and on any appeals,
and in any bankruptcy proceeding.

Appropriations. No commitment of public funds will be made prior to the approval of this
Contract nor are any public funds committed beyond the current fiscal year. The terms offthjs
Contract are contingent upon sufficient appropriations being made each fiscal year by the AS_B
for the performance of this Contract. If sufficient appropriations are not made, this Contract
shall terminate subject to the conditions subsequent concerning notice. Termmat;on

.. Pursuant to the terms of thls Contract sha!l nct result in any cianm fcr payment or damages bylzﬂ

by FSVA and shall be final. FSVA HAS NO RIGHT TO COMPEL COMPONENT MEMBERS T0 LEVY '
OR COLLECT TAXES TO. MAKE ANY PAYMENTS REQUIRED HEREUNDER 'OR TO EXPEND FUNDS

BEYOND THE AMOUNT PROV!DED FOR IN THE THEN CURRENT FISCAL YEAR. In the event that

this provision conflicts with any other provision in the Agreement, this provision shall prevaul

15. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Paragraph Headings. The headmgs in this Contract are inserted for convenience and
identification oniy and are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit
the scope, extent or intent of this Contract or any of the provisions of the Contract.

b. Provisions Severable. Every provision of this Contract is intended to be severable. If
any term or provision hereof is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract.

CONTRACLT FOR SERVICES ~Page 6



d.

Amen 'ment No amendment of thls Contract shall be effectlve uniess t

SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. The rights and remedies provided by this
Contract are cumulative and the use of any one right or remedy by any party shall
not preclude nor waive its rights to use any or all other remedies. Any rights provided
to the parties under this Contract are given in addition to any other rights the parties
may have by law, statute, ordinance or otherwise.

Successor and Assigns. This Contract and the terms and provisions herein shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

Entire Contract. This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties
respecting the matters herein set forth and supersedes all prior agreements between
the parties hereto respecting such matters.

Governing Law. This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the_‘;_
State of Idaho.

Preparation of Contract. No presumption shall exist in favor of or against any party
to this Contract as a result of the drafting and preparation of the document.

No Waiver. No waiver of any breach by either party of the terms of this Contract
shall be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the Contract.

Notices. Notices hereunder shall be by personal deltvery or US Mail Certlf;ed/Return
Receipt and shall be deemed effective upon suc A personal dehvery or two (2)'_;}-‘
business days after mailing, whichever is later. Notlces shall be provided as follows:

a. ASB:  P.0. Box 3801, Ketchum, Idaho 83340
b. FSVA: P.O.Box 6316, Ketchum, Idaho 83340

Fiscal Year. For the purpose of this C'ohtfé'ct, ‘;.thléf”vﬁscal year is considered a’
government fiscal year between October 1 and S'e_ptértiber 30 of the following year.

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES ~ Page 7




- SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD '

I.  No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not create any rights or interest in
any third parties. ‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date first set
forth above. S

Signatures:

‘| Dated: SS9/ /K FSVA, an ldaho Non-Profit Corporation
: 7

By: ()/‘/ és"/‘_—— )

Its: President

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES - Page 8 -




EXHIBIT A

L e
SUMN VALLEY
ALLIANCE

MISSION FY18

Retain, develop and improve air service at Friedman Memorial Airport (SUN).

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Fly Sun Valley Alliance (FSVA) is an Idaho non-profit 501¢(6) corporation with both private and public sector volunteer
board members representing governments, organizations and businesses throughout Blaine County.

SCOPE OF WORK
AIR SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

Secure & Manage Contract Air Serv:ce Currently Alaska (SEA/LAX/IPDX) flights; United (SFO/DEN/ORD) flights
Negotiate air service contract terms with airlines, in partnership with Sun Valley Company:

» Operating season, schedules, equipment

» MRG cap amount; analysis of cost per flight & prOJected revenues

» LOC requirements; Weather diversion busing provisions

Monitor bookings on weekly basis; cost & revenue monthly

Monitor fares on ongoing basis within our competitive set, plus BOI, TWF

Initiate fare and schedule adjustment discussions with airline partners as needed

Assist with coordination of air service market planning for SUN with other partners (SVMA, SVR, ITC, efc.)
Support coordination of start-up effort for new service (as needed) — launch celebrations, marketing, etc.
Organize/support enhanced weather diversion bussing program for all SUN commercial air travelers and airlines
Coordinate with Friedman Memorial Airport in all aspects of air service planning/implementation

Manage & Support Non-Contract Air Service: Currently Delta for year-round SLC and limited LAX flights
= Monitor fares on ongoing basis within our competitive set, plus BOI, TWF
= |nitiate fare & schedule adjustment discussions with airline as appropriate
= Assist with coordination of air service marketing planning for SUN with other partners (SVMA, SVR, ITC, efc.)
= Qrganize/support enhanced weather diversion bussing program for all SUN commercial air travelers and airlines

RESEARCH
= Conduct air passenger survey research at SUN during winter & summer/fall seasons
= Conduct other market research on local air travel patterns — i.e., business travel survey
=« Collect/analyze/report other research re: travel trends, demographics, economic impact
= Monitor monthly enplanement, seat occupancy, other air service data relative to SUN, industry & competitive set

COMMUNITY OUTREACH/EDUCATION - LOCAL AIR MARKETING

Maintain FSVA website, www.flysunvalleyalliance.com, with information on SUN air service, news, studies, etc.
= Provide ongoing public outreach/communications via Enews, social media, meetings, presentations, other

= Create & implement local air service marketing/PR programs targeted to local and regional air fravelers

= Assist with coordination of marketing of flights/fares sales, etc. with airlines and local/state partners

KEY PEFORMANCE METRICS
Retain/Expand Current Air Service: Retain contracted nonstop SEA/LAX/SFO/DEN/PDX flights and support SLC
flights; improve air service schedules/frequency as feasible.

= New Air Service: Pursue new nonstop flight market for FY18 (secured ORD winter flights) and future

= Build SUN Passenger Traffic: Work with airlines/marketing partners to increase load factors & minimize air service
costs as feasible. Work with airlines on SUN fares and schedules to reduce air passenger leakage.

= Research: Conduct seasonal air passenger surveys at SUN; conduct competitive analysis, economic impact and other

research as needed.



1p3YS JUBWARG 3JRIQ OZAL H1AIYXA 6T°ET'6\LOT A3jEA UnS Ajd\xeL uondQ {edo\[epueutd OT\:N ’ .. . N S0:Z6T0Z/91/6

000°0LT’ES VL0, S1081U0D
000°0LLTS - VINAS

000°00v'T$ - VASS 115096 S8S'TIT'TS 6YL'v99$ 198png A3y 1N
6V6'7S 9.2'99% 816°LS 51500 132117 Ulupy
000°0LT €S
495 000°0£2°T$ % 000°00%'T$ 000°0LT'ES  99T'6¥C¢S  OSEVS- . CEVTELS 67G°C00'ES  000'TOTS  T198'8CZ'T$ £99°C/9%
40 687'ceTS "} %09 790'201$ TSE'SETS 668% VAT LTS'vETS §99'9s Z6TIvTS ££869 196'66TS  TBE'TES 0z-AON  0z-das
408 ¥9.'¥81$ %05 V9L V8IS . |625'69€S 0s STASY $09'69€S €695 8€S9LES €EE'STS YERYSTS  0LE'90TS 07320 0z-8ny
405 0LY08TS %0S 0L¥'08TS 0v6'09€S 0s SLS- STO‘T9ES 7E0'Ls L¥0'89€S €EELTS £160'09ZS  L19°06S oz-das oz-inr
408 SS09TTS %05 S509TTS 60T'TECS 0$ SLS- P81°ZETS ws'es 97L'8ETS €EE'LS 8€2'8L1S  SST'ESS - 0z-8ny  gz-unf
405 €88'0LS %05 £8804$ 99/TH1$ 0s SLS- TV IPIS T SLT'3YTS £90€$ TP99TTS  L9p'8TS oz-Inr 0z-AeiN
405 £27'89$ %0S €72'89$ LYY'9ETS 0s SL8%- TTO'LETS . GEE9S LSEEVTS 00T'e$ 792865 S66'TYS gz-unf 0z-1dy
409 80T'651S %0y 740°90T$ T81°992S 0$ YA . 952’5928 £099S €98'TLTS £99'88 - 6SET6IS  BEYOLS oz-AeIN Oz~
409 6EVBYTS %0¥ 096'86% 66E°LVTS 0s SLS- VLV LYTS 0998 180°7S2S £99'8% SZS061S  068'%SS 0z~4dy 0z-994
409 €9£°0S1$ %0y 605°00TS [AXALATAS 0$ QLS- LYETSTS 5095 £50'85¢S £99°01$ I68°SLTS  S6V'TLS 0T8N Oz-uer
409 £88°20T$ %0V T6S'BETS 6LY'9PES 0s SLS- PSS9PES 8559$ ZIT'ESES 199°LS EEV'66CS  TTOOVS 0z-924 61-099@
409 6L0'16$ %0v - 61093 86L'151S 0s SLS- €481S1S TIv'9$ G87'8STS 199%$ ¢ST'LeTSs  99v'azs Oz-uer 61-AON
409 866'801$ %0Y 699'7L$ $99'T8TS 0$ Gz0'es- 689'V8TS TIv'9S 00T'T6TS £99%$ 29%'GETS  TL60SS 61-090 61190
409 6€0°0STS %oy 9z0'00TS 5900528 §90'052$
spung S95UBaR spung EHEL ] Spenuoy  pejjddy  Sesusdwg  Sepunwwioy S0y woald | vioL | Aeuwer | wnyopey | Aeyiepuns | PIARISY PRieEUED
Ilqejleny »enuo) ajqejieay Renuoc) 104§ B[qe[leAy - diuejeg IAjelysiuiupy wot JSopjunwwo) } 10T %T 101%T
0% YINAS 9% asuelly AS Al spung . pung pieog spung 101
’ 1R 1S0403U|  DIIAIDBS AIY

F1NAIHIS INJNAYC 020 3A
S g g



871°0S
1€2'92€
%09 00T'08T 0SP'VLT'E
e/u 0 0
%L 00T 0SP'T
%0°0 0 000'T
%0°0 0 00T
%0°0 0 009
%00 0 00€
%0°9 000°08T "000°0LT'E
%0°9 00T°08T 0SP'VLT'E
%L'TE 60189 €0T°9LT
%0°00T 00§ 000t
%T'E 8/8'61. L0L'S¥9
%E"¥ v/8'88 685'65T'C
%6'C 65L°2 15096
020Z/610Z Ad 020Z/610CcAd  13DdnNd
IDNVH) % -[+ a3asodoyd
0202 Ad

T€T9CE
Zv9'T6E

¥9€'€66'C

0

6VE'T

G9¢€

001t

0S¢

00¢
000°066‘C

¥9£'€66°C

1199
00T
£99TL9
L8E0STT
665°€0T

NV
a3LviniLsa
6T0C Ad

0SE'V66'C

0

0SET
0001
00T‘T

009

00¢
000°066C

0SEV66°T

¥66°L0C
00S
628°529
STL990C
T1e'e6

l3vand
aiidoqav
6T0C Ad

r9'16€
8LL'WTT

EV8TLS'T

0

6VE'T
TAA
0017

ove

08
6178°895°C

LOL'6¥8'C

0

YIET
002’849
9z¢'1L0'C
L96C6

VNV
L10Z Ad

135and @ildoav 020cC A

8LL'YVIT
LYE'IYY

8EE'800'E

0
1027
0
566

33

VS
0S.'S00°€

692949°C

0
£89
¥¥8209
160°086'T
LYT's6

WALV
L10Z Ad

4

ayvosd 3DIAY3IS ¥IV AITIVA NNS
J LIgiHX3 | .

6102/91/6

JDNV1VE ANN4 DNIANS
JONYIVE ANN ONINNIOIE

SIUNLIANIX3 TVLOL

' JDONVIVE GNNd OL YIASNVYL
IDONVHNSNI

$334 AINHOLLY

Lany

311S93IM/SIDILON D11aNd/ONISILYIAAY
1DV.1S0d/S3ddNS 1440

S3IDIAYIS HO4H SIIVHLNOD
SIUNLIGNIX3

INNIAY TVL0L

d3iddv IONVIVE ANN4

SONINYV3I LSTHILNI

XV1 NOILdO Tv¥201 %T AITIVA NNS 40 ALD
XYL NOILO TvD01 %T WNHDLIN 40 ALD
XV1 NOILAO T¥D017 %T AFTVH 40 ALD
SINNIATY



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
~ BETWEEN THE
SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICE BOARD AND
SVMA

THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES, (hereinafter referred to as "Contract") made and entered into
this 7% day of December, 2015, by and between the Sun Valley Air Service Board, an ldaho Joint
Powers Authority (hereinafter referred to as the "ASB") and the Sun Valley Marketing Alliance, Inc.,
an Idaho nonprofit corporation with an IRS 501 (c) (6) designation, (hereinafter referred to as
"SVMA®).

RECITALS

1 The ASB is a duly organized and existing Joint Powers Authority organized as a separate legal
entlty under Idaho Code §§ 67- 2328 et seq. The ASB is made up of the following entities (heremafter
referred to as "Component Members ")

The City of Sun Valley, daho

The City of Ketchum, ldaho

The City of Hailey, Idaho

Blaine County, Idaho [non-voting]

oo

2, SVMA is an Idaho non- profft corporation with an IRC 501(c)(6) designation engaged in the
business of domestically marketing the Sun Valley, Idaho resort area as a destination resort as further
described in Exhibit "A". -

3. Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-2328, 50- 301 and 50- 302, the ASB is empowered to enter into
contracts and take such steps as arc reasonably necessary to maintain the peace, good government
and welfare of the Component Members and their trade, commerce and industry. Accordingly, the ASB
has the power as conferred by the State of Idaho, to provide directly for certain promotional activities
to enhance the trade, commerce, industry, and economic well-being of the Component Members.

o4, The following ordinances have been adopted by certain Component Members (except Blaine
County} for the purposes of a) maintaining and increasing commercial air service to Friedman
. Memorial Airport through the use of Minimum Revenue Guarantees ("MRG's") or other inducements
to providers; b) promoting and marketing the existing service and any future service to increase
passengers; c) for all ancillary costs which are associated with the ongoing effort to maintain and
increase commercial air service, including reasonable program management costs and busing due to

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 1

31



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

flight diversion(s); and d) direct costs to collect and enforce the tax, including administrative and
legal fees: '

a. Sun Valley Ordinance No. 45G.
b. Ketchum Ordinance No. 1108.
c. Hailey Ordiriance No. 1133.

5. The primary reason for the ASB to enter this Contract is to effectuate the purposes of the local
option taxes and Component Member ordinances recited above. :

6. SVMA is to provide air service marketing services to promote air travel to and from Friedman
Memorial Airport.

7. The organizational goals of SVMA are consistent with the-pu rposes and fiﬁdings of the ordinances
recited above. : ‘

8. It is the intention of the ASB to contract with SVMA to provide such services for cbnsideration
as hereinafter provided, subject to the tracking and reporting requirements described herein.

9. SVMA desires to enter into a contract with the ASB to provide air services marketing services
all as hereinafter provided. '

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the ASB and SVMA as follows:

1. All Recitals above are incorporated herein by reference.

Services. SVMA agrees to provide air service marketing services to the ASB consisting of
marketing goals and objectives: creative strategy; media purchase; campaign assets and
public relations efforts in air service markets, including key monitoring and tracking of
advertising efforts to ensure effectiveness ("Marketing Services"), and as more particularly set
forth in Exhibit "A", which is incorporated herein by reference.

[\8)

3. Expenses. SVMA agrees that it shall provide, at its sole expense, all costs of labor, materials,
supplies, business overhead and financial expenses, liability insurance, fidelity bonds, and all
necessary equipment and facilities required to provide the services as set for in this Contract.

4. Term. The term.of this Contract shall commence upon the day of its execution and shall
terminate September 30, 2016. This Contract shall be automatically extended for one (1) year

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES - Page 2

32



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

terms, unless.notice is provided as set forth herein. Such notice shall be served not less than
sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of any annual term. This Contract may be amended to
increase the length of the term if so determined by the parties.

5.  Consideration. During the term of this Contract, ASB shall pay SYMA, as payment for Marketing
Services, a maximum sum not to exceed One Million One Hundred Fifty Eight Thousand Three
Hundred Ninety Seven and no/100's Dollars ($1,158,397), for the present fiscal year ending
September 30, 2016 ("FY 16"), payable on a monthly basis. Each monthly payment shall be
calculated by multiplying the percentage under "% of Available Funds" for SVMA as set forth
in the Payment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit "B" by the actual amount of local option-
taxes received by the ASB, less direct costs, administrative expenses, legal reserves and fund
balance, which is described as "Funds Available for Contracts", as depicted in the Payment
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit "B". In the event the monthly payments derived during
FY 16 would exceed $1,158,397, the last monthly payment(s) shall be reduced to ensure only
a payment of $1,158,397. In the event the monthly payments derived during FY 16 are less
than $1,158,397, FSVA shall not be entitled to the difference between the total of the
monthly payments and $1,158,397. The Payment Schedule for each subsequent fiscal year
may be amended by the parties as part of that fiscal year’s budget process.

6. Reporting Requirements. In consideration and as part of this Contract, SVMA agrees to
provide to the ASB: '

A. Written and in-person presentations and reports in January and July during the
- term of this Contract or as otherwise scheduled by the parties outlining
program results and plans for the upcoming season and explaining annual
performance based on the metrics specified in attached Exhibit "A". Semi-
annual reports will be based on the government fiscal year of October 1st to
September 30'".

B. The ASB has at all times the right to request an independent audit, at the sole
cost of SVMA, under the provisions herein, and such audit obligation and cost
on the part of SYMA shall survive any termination.

C. The ASB may request additional financial information it deems necessary or
appropriate to assist the ASB in verifying the accuracy of the SVMA's financial
records, and within a reasonable time period, SVMA shall submit such
information or reports relating to its activities under this Contract to ASB in
such form and at such time as ASB may reasonably require. Any duly authorized
agents of the ASB shall be entitled to inspect and audit all books and records of

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 3

33



10.

11,

SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

SVMA for compliance with the terms of this Contract. SVMA agrées to retain
all financial records, supporting documents, statistical reports, contracts,

minutes, correspondence, and all other accounting records or written materials.

pertaining to this Contract for three (3) years following the expiration or
termination of this Contract.

- Termination. The ASB may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Contract upon 90 days written

notice to SVMA with or without cause. The ASB recognizes that the SVMA has made significant
financial commitments {e.g., vendor contracts) on behalf of the ASB and will need time to
adjust its obligations. In the event of such termination, the ASB shall have no further
responsibility to make any payment to SYMA under this Contract at the end of the 90 day
period.

Equal Employment Opportunity. SYVMA covenants that it shall not discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex or national origin.

Independent Contractor Status. The parties acknowledge and agree that SYMA shall provide
its services for the fee specified herein in the status of independent contractor, and not as an
employee of the ASB. SVMA shall create, direct and control its own means and methods of
performing this Contract. SVMA and its agents, members, employees and velunteers shall not
accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefit afforded to employees of
the ASB. The sole interest and responsibility of the ASB under this Contract is to assure itself
that the services covered by this Agreement shall be performed and rendered by SVMA in a
competent, efficient and satisfactory manner.

Hold Harmless Agreement. SVMA hereby covenants and agrees to indemnify, defend and
hold the ASB and the Component Members, and their officials, officers, employees and agents
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, losses,
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney fees, that may accrue, directly or
indirectly, by reason of any wrongful act or omission on the part of SVMA, its agents,
employees, assigns or subcontractors, related to damages or bodily injury, property damage
and personal injury that arise out of SVYMA's actions or omissions associated with the services
or obligations described in this Contract. SVMA shall have the duty to appear and defend
any such demand, claim, suit or action on behalf of ASB and the Component Members, or
tender the defense without cost or expense to ASB and the Component Members.

Non-Assignment. This Contract may not be assigned by or transferred by SVMA, in whole or in
part, without the prior written consent of the ASB. .

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 4

34



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

12. Mediation/Arbitration. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute between the parties
~ concerning this Contract or the breach of this Contract, including questions concerning the
scope and applicability of this dispute resolution provision, the parties agree to participate in
good faith in a mediation of any such dispute in Blaine County, Idaho. If mediation is
unsuccessful, then the dispute, shall be finally settled through litigation in the District Court,
Blaine County Idaho. The court shall have no power to award punitive or exemplary damages.

13. Attorney’s Fees. In the event of any dispute with regard to the interpretation or enforcement
of this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and
attorneys' fees incurred therein, whether or not a lawsuit is actually filed, and on any appeals,
and in any bankruptcy proceeding.

14. Appropriations. No commitment of public funds will be made prior to the approval of this
Contract nor are any public funds committed beyond the current fiscal year. The terms of this
Contract arc contingent upon st1fficicnt appropriations being made each fiscal year by the ASB
for the performance of this Contract. If sufficient appropriations are not made, this Contract

- shall terminate subject to the conditions subsequent concerning notice. Termination
pursuant to the terms of this Contract shall not result in any claim for payment or damages by
SVMA. ASB's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted
by SVMA and shall be final. SVMA HAS NO RIGHT TO COMPEL COMPONENT MEMBERS TO LEVY
OR COLLECT TALXES TO MAKE ANY PAYMENTS REQUIRED HEREUNDER, OR TO EXPEND FUNDS
BEYOND THE AMOUNT PROVIDED FOR IN THE THEN CURRENT FISCAL YEAR. In the event that
this provision conflicts with any other provision in the Agreement, this provision shall prevail.

15. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Paragraph Headings. The headings in this Contract are inserted for convenience and
identification only and are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit
the scope, extent or intent of this Contract or any of the provisions of the Contract.

b. Provisions Severable. Every provision of this Contract is intended to be severable. If
any term or provision hereof is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract.

¢. Rights and Remedies are Cumulative. The rights and remedies provided by this
Contract are cumulative and the use of any one right or remedy by any party shall
not preclude nor waive its rights to use any or all other remedies. Any rights provided
to the parties under this Contract are given in addition to any other rights the parties
may have by law, statute, ordinance or otherwise.

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES —Page 5

35



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

d. Successor and Assigns. This Contract and the terms and provisions hereof shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.

e. Entire Contract. This Contract contains the entire agreement between the parties
respecting the matters herein set forth and supersedes all prior agreements between
the parties hereto respecting such matters.

f. Governing Law. This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Idaho.

g. Preparation of Contract. No presumption shall exist in favor of or against any party
to this Contract as a result of the drafting and preparation of the document.

h. No Waiver. No waiver of any breach by either party of the terms of this Contract
shall be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the Contract. -

i. Amendment. No amendment of this Contract shall be effective unless the
amendment is in writing, signed by each of the parties.

j- Notices. Notices hereunder shall be by personal delivery or US Mail Certified/Return’
Receipt and shall be deemed effective upon such personal delivery or two (2)
business days after mailing, whichever is later. Notices shall be provided as follows:

a. ASB:  P.0. Box 3801, Ketchum, Idaho 83340
b. SVMA: P.O. Box 4934, Ketchum, idaho 83340

k. Fiscal Year. For the purpose of this Contract, the fiscal year is considered a
government fiscal year between October 1 and September 30 of the following year.

I No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not create any rights or interest in
any third parties.

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 6

36



SUN VALLEY
AIR SERVICE BOARD

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date first set
forth above.

Signatures:
Dated: ! 77/7 /r The Sun Valley Air Services Board, An idaho Joint
T / 7
r]
Dated: 1Z/21/1S SVMA, an idaho Non-Profit Corporation
77
1 By: QM‘-‘ e~
its: President '

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES — Page 7

37




EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Misston
To.raise awareness of Sun Valley and increase visitor traffic from our target markets,

Organizational Structure

Sun Valley Marketing Alliance, Inc. DBA Visit Sun Valley is an Idaho non-profit 501c(6) corporation. The board of
directors is made up of 5 directors representing the City of Ketchum, the City of Sun Valley, the Sun Valley
Resort, an at-large director, and a member-elected director. There are 3 staff members p‘lus part-time visitor
center agents, '

SPECIFIC SCOPE OF WORK FOR AIR SERVICE BOARD

Visit Sun Valley's core funding covers all base functions including overhead and staff. Therefore, the incremental
funds from the new 1% will be put directly into external marketing for the air service markets as detailed below.
- The bulk of the funds will be allocated directly to incremental advertising (shown inl bold below) sifice thé core
budget also contributes to the activities listed below {such as social media, website, photography and video).

‘Winter 2015/16 and Summer 2016 Campaigns

Creative briefs developed outlining goals and objectives for the campaigns

Creative strategy confirmed as per the above brief -«
Campaign assets (photography, video) developed in support-of the campaign

Media buys will be planned, negotiated, developed, »éxiactited"and mor_\__itd,réd 'fér;_éa_c;ﬁ_ target
markEt {_Seattl_e, Los Angeles, Sén' Francisco, Dgnver’! New York and Chicago} for Winter
2015/2016 and Summer 2016 ' .

o PR efforts in support of the direct air service in each of these market

o e 00 0

& Monitofing and tracking of digital advertising buy; adjusting messaging and creative as reqiired
‘throughout the season to optimize results: A

o Managing the area website to increase visitation and maximize conversion (bookings via the
website or directly with key partners):

o Leveraging current partners to extend media reach through-advertising, PR and Social Media
{including the Suf Valley Resort and the Idaho Travel Council).

o Maximizing the use of Social Media in support of the new flights via our existing social media
properties:

o Tracking and reporting resuits:




Key Performance Indicators
Visit Sun Valley will report on the following metrics as indicators of success!

* Changesin local option tax

¢ Total enplanements

*  Occupancy and room nights sold for Ketchum, Sun Valley and Hailey

«  Website Visits by target market

*  Advertising effectiveness {as measured by click-through tates, canversion and total reach)

Appendix A3
G ei_‘tér‘alv'Scope of Work (not ’sgec%fic to ASB contract, but essential to the qi{é'{ai] marketing for the area}
Visit Sun Valley currently has a contract for services with the City of Sun Vallgy and the City of ’Ke’_t'_c‘%j um 6.
undertake the strategic marketing for the area. Funding is alsoreceived from the Idaho Travel Council and the
membeérship. The overall scope of work includes:
*  Strategic Marketing: Strategic Marketing includes advertising, public relations, social media,

partnerships and promotions: All of the marketing efforts drive to the official website for the area,
www.visitsunvalley.com, ‘

*  Research: Visit'Sun Valley manages the area’s occupancy reporting, maintains a visitor volume:
~estimation model, and undertakes primary research inkey target markets. -

*  Membership: Visit Sun Valley represents approximately 360 member businesses in Ketchum, Sun
Valley, Hailey, and the surrounding areas.

«  Visitor Services: Visit Sun Valley manages the Visitor informatiori Center and provides in-gérson
assistance (o visitors'365 days peryear. Visit Sun Valley:also responds to visitor querigs via Live Chat
and Contact Us farms and manages.the website and.mobile site for the area.




3[npayds usliAed 1yeid 0zAd HAIUX3 6T°ET'6\LOT A3jieA uns Ald\xel uondQ jeaoT\[eluBUl OT\:IN

000'0LTE$ “1V.LOL S19EAIU0D
000°0£L'TS - VINAS
000°00%T$ - YASH

000°0LT‘ES

%98 000'0LL'TS %Y 000°00¥'T$ 000'0£T'€E$  99T'6V7S  OSEVS-

%0Y 68C'€ETS %09 790°20T$ 15e'sETS 6689 G/%- LT5YETS
%05 Y9L'v8TS %05 ¥9.v8TS 62S'69€S 0s SLS- ¥09'69€$
%08 0L¥'08TS %05 0Lv'08TS 0v6'09€S 0$ GLS- STO'T9ES
%08 SS0'9TTS %0S SS09TTS 60T'CETS 0s GLS- ¥81z€CS
%08 £88°04S %0S £88'0LS 99LTHTS 0s SLS- Y8 TVIS
%0S £2C'89% %05 €27'89% LbY'9ETS 0s SLSS- T0°LETS
%09 80T'65T$ %0t 2/0'90T$ 181'59¢S 0s SL5- 952'S9¢S
%09 BEV'BYTS %0Y 096°86$ 66E'LYCS 0$ SLS- VLY LTS
%09 €9.°0S1$ %0v 60500TS TLe'TSTS 0$ S/%- LYETSTS
%09 £88'L0T$ %0v T6S'8ETS 6L19VES 0s S1%- ¥8S9vES
%09 6L0'T6S %0Y 61,093 861'TSTS 05 SL$- EL8'TSTS
%09 866'80TS %0v S99'7L$ $99°T81S 0$ ST0'es- 689'V8TS
%09 6£0°0STS %0v 920°00TS S90°052S §90°057$

spung Sasuadxy spung " Sasuadxy spenuo) paiddy sasuadY3  Sepiunwilio)
a)qejieay penuo) ajqejeay ypenuo) 104 d|qejeay wucm_m.m nensiuwpy wouy
0% VINAS 9% auely AS Aid spung pung pieog spund 101
19 ISDIDIU|  DIIAIDS Ay

1S0°965 §85'791'7S  6VLV99S

676'VS 9£2'99% 8T6'LS
674'T00‘ES  000‘TOTS  198°87Z'TS £997/9S

§99'9$ Z6T'TYeS €£8'6$ [96'66TS  T6E'TES
VE69S 8ES'9LES €EE'STS yE8PSCS  0LE'90TS
TE0'LS LY089€ES €EELTS [60°09T  L19'06S
s'es 97.'3€CS €E€LS 8ET'BLTS  GST'ESS
€EE9S SLT'8YTS L90°eS IV9'91TS  /9v'8CS
GEEQS LSE'EVTS 00T'e$ 792'86% S66‘TYS
£09°9% €98TLTS £99°8S 6SET6TS  8EV'OLS
£099S ! 180VSCS £998$ SZS'06TS  068%SS
S0L‘9S £50'852S £99°0TS 168'SLTS  S6YTLS
8559$ TIT'ESES 19928 EEV'66CS  TIO9VS
TIP9S G8T'8STS £99'%$ TSTLZTS  99%'9TS
TTH'9$ 00T‘161S £99'VS T9V'SETS  TL60SS

§SisOPRIG | vioL | AeieH

Wd S0:26T0Z/91/6

128png Aoy 18N
5150 10341Q UlWpY

0z-nON  0z-dss
0790 oz-8ny
oz-des  Qz-nf

0z-8ny  oz-unr
oz-inr oz-Aen
oz-unr 0z-1dy
oz-AeN Oz-EiN
Oz-dy  0z-9°d
0z-4eIN  Oz-uer

0z-984  6T-29Q
oc-uer 6T-AON
61-030 6110

_ wnyaey _>m__m>=:m|_ paAedey peojetauan

,S9IuUNwwo)

J1NAIHIS INFNAV 020 3Ad

ST g NqQIYX3

101%T  LOT%T



8710
1€2°92¢
%0°9 001°08T 0SY'vLT'E
e/u 0 0
%b'L 00T 0S¥'T
%00 0 000'T
%0°0 0 00T'T
%0'0 0 009
%0°0 0 00€
%09 00008T 0000LT°E
%0°9 00T'08T 0SY'vLTE
%L'TE 601'89 €0T9LC
%0°00T 00§ 000'T
%T'E 8/8'6T. LOL'SH9
%E"¥ v/8'88 685GST'C
%6'C 6€L'C 15096
020Z/6T0Z Ad 0¢0¢/610cAd  13oang
IONVHD % -/+ a3sodoud
0202 Ad

T€T'9CE
Tr9'T6E

Y9E€66'C

0

6VE'T

99¢

00T°T

0S¢

00c¢
000°066°C

¥9E'€66'T

1T¥'S9
00€‘T
£99'CL9
L8E'0STC
665°€0T

WALV
Q3LVIALLST
610C Ad

Tr9'16€ 8LLYTT
8LLVTT LYE'9y

0SEV66°C €¥8TLST 8€E€'800°E
0 0 0
0SET 6YET 102°T
000'T STT'T 0
001°T 001'T 566
009 ovz 8€€
00€ 08 S
000°066°C 618°895°C 05/'S00°€
0SE'766°C LOL'6¥8C 69£'9/9°C
¥66'£0C 0 0
00S YIET L89
6¢8'S79 007'8.9 %8209
S12'990°C 922'440C T60°086'T
Z1E's6 196°C6 LYTE6

I39ang VNIV VNIOV

aiirdoav L10T Ad LTOZ Ad
6T0Z Ad :
139and diidoav 02o¢ Ad

QyvO9g ADINY3S HIV AFTIVA NNS
J LigIHX3

6102/91/6

JDONVYIVE ANN4 ONIANT
FONVYIVE ANNd ONINNIDIE

SIHNLIANIIX3 TVLIOL

FONV1VE ANN4 OL Y434SNVHL
JONVHASNI

S334 AINYOLLY

lianv

311S93M/SIDILON D119Nd/ONISILUIAGY
319V1S0d/S3ddNS 01440

S3JIAYIS YO SIDVHYINOD
SIUNLIANIIXT

INNIAIY TVLOL

a311ddV JONVIVE aNN4

SONINYVI 1SIHILINI

XVL1 NOILdO T¥I01 %T AITIVA NNS 40 ALID
XVL NOILdO T¥201 %T WNHILIN 40 ALDD
XVL NOILdO 1¥O01T %T AFTVH 40 ALID
SINNINIY



Policy Year

2019-2020

PUBLIC ENTITY

Multi-Lines Insurance
Policy

Issued for:

Sun Valley Air Service Board

Issued by:

ldaho Counties Risk Management Program

3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300, Boise, ID 83705
Phone: (208) 336-3100 ~ Fax: (208) 336-2100



SUMMARY OF ICRMP PUBLIC ENTITY POLICY CHANGES
October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020

A SECTION I, GENERAL DEFINITIONS

Item1: A 5) Cavefeaf Prbperty‘—‘CLARiFY’

We adopted the deﬁmtnon from standardiéed c§n¥m;rc1ai proﬁerty msurance ;
: It.e‘n»'nYZ':' A (9) Emp!oyment Sexua! I{arassmem CLARIFY. : SOt Sl TR
| ‘ L We adopted the deﬁmt!on from standardzzed com:ﬁerc Ihabnhty msurance S
g_"_?ﬁi Item 3‘ _ A (15) Mab:le Eqmpmem CLARIFY s |

operty insurance.

_ We adopted the language from standardxzed cemmerc;al msurance

: ﬁ; Etem. 3 - A (1’7.) Nan—Stackmg of L:mzts CLARIFY

_ Because we prowde a pohcy that mcorporates many hnes of hablkty coverages and propcrty
e coverages we have clanﬁed how each sectxon will appiy in a!l gwen claim sxtuatmns




Ttemd: A.(19) Other Insurance - CLARIFY

We adopted the language from standardszed commer01al insurance.

 Hem s 'A.(20) Policy Modzf‘cattou CLARIFY

We adopted the language from standardlzed commerc1al msurance -

Item 6 A (23) Sabmgatmn/ﬂecovery/?{:gkt of Rezmbursemem CLARIFY

We adOpted the language frorn standardlzed comrnercxal msurance

o c. SECTION rv, GENERAL EXCLUSIONS

A (8_) | Cyber Lzabtlny g CLARIFY

'e adopted the language from stan ardized commercial insuranc:

Claim pre aratmn foes and expen
New sub-limit — Debris Removal - CLARIFY

Adéed a sub-ltmit to cxxstmg dcbns removal coverage of $2 500, 0(}0 Debrls removal
expenses are lnmtted to a$2 500 000 or 2!

ew suh-lsm lt -Operafto al stmpz‘ton New Sub—Lzmtis BROADEN

;:__: Added the followmg new sub-l:mlts and ‘coverages for l(}sses rclated to‘ Operatlonal
. Dzsruptmn coverage related to a property loss BEEh LR

L Extra Expense as detailed in the speclﬁc condxtxon and costs are ltmlted to a
. maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence. - SRR S
ST e Expediting Expense as detailed i in the spec:ﬁc condmon and costs are hmxtcd to a :
. .‘max1mum of $500 000 per Qccurrcnce SR - - '




® Leasehold Interest as detailed in the specific condition and costs are hmxted toa =
maximum of $1,000,000 per oceurrence. S

Item 4 i Increased Limit -—Proper(p in Course of Const’mctzon BROADEN

lncreased per occurrence hmlt to $5 000 000

e Itemv 5; | Removed sub-hm;t —-Terronsm - BROADEN

, Terrorlsm is no lcnger a separate endorsement that l:mxted coverage to $50, 000 000 per
 occurrence and in the aggregate for all members combined. It is now a covered peril in
. SectionV Propczty and has the same limit as any other covered peril and i is subject to the e
o pohcy s per occurrence hmzt for all members combmcd of $200 000 ,000.

_DeﬁmtmnB (1-) A"‘“‘d C"Sk V “h'e CLARIFY ‘

i Adopted standard Insurance Serv1ces Ofﬁce definmon

-hour period of

| :,tiem_in:

Deﬁmtmn B ( ”)-Normaz CLARIFY

: ; Added a deﬁmtton to clarify the meanmg referenced:m thls sectlon,_ :




Item 13: Definition B. (15.) —Special Flood Hazard Area - CLARIFY
Added a definition to clarify the meaning inside flood coverage.

 Item 14: Definition B.(16) ~Vacant or Unoccupied Property - CLARIFY

. Added a deﬁnition to clarify the rneaning of vacant andfdr undccupied ‘prope“t"ty. "
Itém 15 Defimtxon B (17 ) —Valaab!e Papers zma’ Recom's CLARIFY

4 : Added a deﬁmtlon to clarffy the meanmg referenced in tEns sectlon

" Item 16: Specxﬁc Cendmon C (1 )—Aa’dxtwnal Coverages CLARIFY =

,Made_ ciear that severa! newly added sub hmtts are m addltmn_to bulldmg values as stated on
the S hedu]e ofvalues BT g

ASmce anew deﬁmtxon. for d»:ductxbles was addcd in General Dcﬁmtxonsz thzs condttlon
jsxpands on how each type of deductnble is tnggered by the peni named Addltlonally,

‘Adopted mdustry standard language surroundmg thxs'addmonal coverage sub limit:

ific Condltmn C (12 ) -—Gperatwn Dzsmpt:on Experzs

Acided these new sub-hmxts under the operanonal dxsmptxon expcnse condmon

‘ Extra Expense as detalled in the specxﬁc condmon and costs are hmlted to a e

- “maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence. - - - T o i
° ',Expedxtmg Ehpense as detailed in the spemﬁc condltlon and costs are hmztad to a .
maxnmum of $5(}0 000 per occurrcnce DAl mele iy L




e Leasehold Interest as detailed in the specific condxt;on and costs are limited to a
maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence. ' :

Item 22: Specific Condition C. (15.) -—Propeny in Course of Construction - BROADEN
Increased sub- llmlt from $2, 000 000 to $5, 000 000 -
e _ Item 23:. Speciﬁc Condntlon C. (17 ) —-Protectzon & Preservat:on of Property CLARIFY

N Adopted mdustry standard language surroundmg thns addat;onal coverage sub hmlt

[tef!:»;”'.xi," : Speclﬁc Condmen € (18 )-Sckedule of Values CLARIFY R

. Clarxf' ed mtent of property 1tems that requlred hstmg on thc scheduie of valucs e i

i S Speenfic_Condltwn C (21 ) -Valzm!wn 0f L"SS CLARIF

Adopted our remsurance vendor s vaIuation of loss whlch 1s a tandard property msuran

i Added deﬁm’uon to clanfy an exc!us;on

New Exclusson —Soczal Engzizeermg Fmancm{ qua’ REDUCTION s e

. - Added exclusxon to remove socxal cngmeermg f nancnai fraud iosses from the Cmme coverage'_‘";'
- section. Sub-limited coverage with per occurrence limit of $100,000 has been added to the - A
e ”Cyber Llablhty endorsement to provxde coverage for thls type of loss There has also been i




language added to define that a specific sequence of events must be relied upon in responding
to a request for electronic transfers of money before a loss will be covered.

o F. SECTION VI AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE
ltem 1: ~ Exclusion D. 1 (k) Sexual Malesz‘afmn REDUCTION |

. Added exclusion to clearly state than any clalms of sexual molcstatxon are not covered m
" ﬁus section. -

, Ttem 2»:1 ‘ Exclus:on D.1 (l ) Unmanned Atrcmﬂ System - REDUCTiON

g Added exciusxon to c!eariy state than drones are not covere | in th: sectlcn wh:Ie domg any s e

o '-of the exclus:ons hsted
G SECTIGN VH GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

' Etem 1 Insnrmg Agreement 1 (a‘) Gamgekeeper sL:abzIztv -‘ '

uring agreem




Item 6: Insuring Agreement 1 (f)— Incidental Medical Liabiiity - CLARIFY

Moved this liability coverage from the condltxons sectlon 1o part of the insuring agreement for :
Clal'lty

- - Item 7 Exclusxon D 1 (i)~ Sexuaz’ Molestatwn REDUCTION

Added exciusnon to clcar!y state than any cIalms of sexual molestatlon are not covered in
‘ thls sectlon x T o,

R SEC’HON IX. LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABXLITY INSURANCE 5

Item 1 Insurmg Agreement A (1 ) }Azw Eﬁforcemem L:abzizfy CLARIFY

B Added text to clarzfy that a series. of related wrongful acts by an msured whlch have as a
e common nexus ‘any fact cxrcumstance, sxtuat;on, event transactzon or senes of facts
clrcumstances s;tuatlons, events or transactlons ;s conszdered one claxm L

Exelusnon D1 )?" Sexmzl Molesfatzon REBUCTION

- Added exciusnon to clearly state than any cialms of sexual molestatxon are 1 covered in:

 bagerofy



J. SECTION XI, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAM LIABILITY INSURANCE
Item I: Insuring Agreement A (1.) — Employee Benefii Program Liability - CLARIFY
Added text to clérify that a series of related Wfongful acts by an insured which have asa

common nexus any fact, cxrcumstance, situation, event transaction or series of facts
clrcumstances situations, gvents or transactlons xs consxdered one clalm

Item 2; Excms:on D.1 (e) Se,waf Moiesfaz‘zon REBUCTION

Added exc!usnon to clcarly state than any clanms of sexual mo%cstatnon ate not covered in. e
thls sectxon , R R L

K. SECTI(}N XH, EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILETY INSURANCE

.iv -:.insurmg Agreement A {1 ) Emplayment Pmctzces Ltabdzty CLARIFY

Added text to c]arnfy that a serxes of related wrongful acts by an msured thch have asa
common nexus any fact, cxrcumstance, situation, event transactxon or senes of facts
cxrcumstances satuatzons, events or transact:ons is considered L

: Exclusmn D 1 (e) Sexual Mafesfatwn REDUCTION

: Added exclus:on to clearly state than any clalms of sexual molestatlon are not covered in’
: ﬂ’lls sectxon s A

C iarlfied text to snmpilfy that aH sexual molestatwn or xual abuse bodily mjury:‘ciaxms or '
related sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily mjury claims wﬂl be deemed one claim .
‘per the text as wntten ‘In addltxon, we clamﬁed that the absolute ﬁrst sexual melestatlon o

"scxua! abuse occurrencc must be onor aﬁer the retroactwe datc llstcd on the declaratlons

,Defimtmn B (4 )= Related Sexswl Moiestatmn or Saxual Abuse Boa":{p Injmy I.mbn’zty =
il CLARIFY B ‘

: Added dcﬁmtmn to clarlfy meanmg w1thm the msurmg agreement o
- | Ifém 3 :- Defimtmn B (5 ) —-Sexual Moiestatzon or Sexua! Abasz CLARIFY ‘ i

- Added deﬁmtton to c]anfy meamng thhm the msurmg agreemeﬂt




- M. SECTION X1V, CHEMICAL SPRAYING ACTIVITIES LIABILITY INSURANCE
Item 1: Exclusion D (4.) — Sexual Molestation - REDUCTION

- Added exc%usnon to clearly state than any claims of sexual molestatxon are not covered in
 this section. : S

. N.SECTION XV, ENDORSEMENTS o
1 S Item 1: _,#2 Cyber&'i‘echnology Lnablhty Endorsemeni BROADEN

- Addcd fext to clearly state than any occurrence must fi rst commence and be sustamed on or f e
aﬁer thc rctroactxve datc as hsted in the dec!aratlon s pages SRR B

il Added severai new coverages and corre!ated sub hmzts to the Fn‘st Party coverages as

" _: Busine's.é -Inc'oh‘{ve”up to $1, OO.(}'(}"O‘GJ
e Extra Expense up to $1,000,000

: ,_Dependent Busmess Interruption : System Fa “_up to $5(}0 000 :
- System Fallure Loss of Busmess Incomc up to $50{} 000 o

#’7 Attomey Consul&atmn Renmbursement Amendatory Endorsement - CLARIFY

ICRMP has always provided its members thh pre—htugatmn r;sk management iegal adv1ce :
regardmg employment termmations and d;sczplmary action in order to mxtxgate hablhty
. losses related to those activities. This endorsement formal;zes the process and that member
" can seek reimbursement of such activities, up to the limits stated if they choose to utxltze
gy :attomeys other than ICRMP'S pre-htigat;on nsk managcment Iega! advme S

 Page9of9



A

ICRMP

T—

JOINT POWERS SUBSCRIBER

- AGREEMENT

APPROVED BY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR USE AFTER JULY 19, 2017



JOINT POWERS SUBSCRIBER AGREEMENT

Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into pursuant to the provisions of Idaho Code, Sections
67-2326 through 67-2333, relating to the joint exercise of powers among political subdivisions of
the State of Idaho, by political subdivisions of the state of Idaho as defined by the Idaho Tort
Claims Act, as subscribers to counterparts of this Agreement, for the purpose of operating a
separate legal entity to be known and designated as the Idaho Counties Risk Management Program,
Underwriters, hereinafter referred to as “ICRMP”. At the time of making of this Agreement,
ICRMP is considered by the Idaho Department of Insurance to be a reciprocal insurer organized
pursuant to provisions of Idaho Code, Title 41, Chapter 29.

It is AGREED among the MEMBERS of ICRMP all of which have accepted this
Agreement or to a prior counterpart, that by virtue of accepting the terms of this version of
the Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement, by approving a prior counterpart and subsequently
renewing participation after changes to a prior counterpart have been implemented by the
Board of Trustees or by paying a Member contribution as billed, as follows:

WHEREAS, POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS of the State of Idaho have the authority to
purchase liability insurance for themselves and their employees pursuant to Idaho Code §6-923

and to contract for property and other insurance coverage as they deem necessary or proper
pursuant to Idaho Code §67-2328; and

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual benefit of POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS to join together
to establish the legal entity created by this Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) to accomplish the
purposes hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the MEMBERS have determined that there is a need for POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS to jointly create an insurance and risk management program; and

WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Idaho authorize the formation of what has been
classified as a reciprocal insurer by POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS without abrogating any
privileges or immunities accorded to them by law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED, in consideration of the mutual advantages,
obligations and benefits to each POLITICAL SUBDIVISION and the mutual covenants herein
contained, the MEMBERS of ICRMP, with the consent and concurrence of the subscribing
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION, agree as follows:

Page 1 0of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS.

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the respective meanings
hereinafter set forth:

(1) ICRMP (PROGRAM). The Idaho Counties Risk Management Program,
Underwriters, a pooled insurance and risk management program established pursuant
to the statutes of this state by this Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement and licensed as
a reciprocal insurer pursuant to Idaho Code Title 41, Chapter 29.

(2) BOARD. The Board of Trustees of ICRMP, which shall serve as the Subscribers’
Advisory Committee, as such is required by Idaho Code Title 41, Chapter 29.

(3) MEMBERS. The POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS, as defined in Section 6-902(2),
Idaho Code, which qualify and agree to the terms of this JPA, as such may be revised
upon approval by the Board of Trustees from time to time.

(4) JOINT POWERS SUBSCRIBER AGREEMENT (JPA). This Agreement,
wherein political subdivisions agree to participate in the insurance and risk
management offerings of ICRMP as set forth by the BOARD.

ARTICLE II. ESTABLISHMENT, MAINTENANCE AND PARTICIPATION IN
ICRMP.

The Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters, a separate Joint Powers
Entity, was created through a JPA by numerous counties of the state of Idaho with an initial
effective date of November 29, 1985. The JPA has been subsequently amended numerous times
during the history of the PROGRAM. This JPA is intended to continue the organization and
operation of [CRMP into future years upon the foundation laid by prior joint powers and
subscribers’ agreements. The public entity named on the concluding page of this JPA, a political
subdivision of the State of Idaho, upon approval of payment of an allocated MEMBER
contribution will become a MEMBER of the Idaho Counties Risk Management Program,
Underwriters (ICRMP) with all rights and duties associated therewith. This Agreement
supersedes all prior ICRMP JPAs and will become effective for all MEMBERS on the date
identified in the footer of this version of the JPA upon acceptance of the tender of continued
participation offered during the annual renewal process. Changes to the JPA are deemed
accepted either by express action by the governing board or by renewing participation in the
PROGRAM by paying the allocated MEMBER contribution for a succeeding year. The rights
and privileges of any withdrawing Member will be governed by the JPA in effect for the final
year of any Member’s participation.

ARTICLE III. PURPOSES AND DURATION.

(1) The purposes of ICRMP are to provide an insurance and risk management program
and to assist MEMBERS to prevent and reduce losses to MEMBERS’ property and
injuries or harm to persons or property which might result in claims being made

Page 2 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



against MEMBERS, their employees, officers, or agents, whether appointed,
employed, elected or serving as recognized volunteers.

(2) It is the intent of the MEMBERS of ICRMP to create a separate entity of unlimited
duration that will administer an insurance and risk management program and use
funds contributed by MEMBERS to defend and indemnify, in accordance with this
Agreement and the issued policy(ies) of insurance, any ICRMP MEMBER against
stated liability or loss, to the limits of the insurance policy issued by or procured
through ICRMP. It is also the intent of the MEMBERS to have ICRMP provide
continuing stability and availability of needed insurance coverage at reasonable costs
and to provide education and training to ICRMP MEMBERS in the interest of
meeting the challenges of local governance. All income and assets of ICRMP shall
be at all times dedicated to the ultimate benefit of its MEMBERS in matters of risk
and insurance, inclusive of services and issues not directly addressed by ICRMP-
issued policies.

(3) It is the intent of the MEMBERS of ICRMP that the PROGRAM serve as a vehicle
for cooperative undertakings for all program MEMBERS, or selected groups thereof,
to share the costs of certain required or desired insurance or risk-related obligations
which the MEMBERS desire to study or implement. In implementation of any such
programs, the participating MEMBERS shall bear the allocated costs of carrying out
the purposes of the program(s).

(4) Participation in ICRMP shall be comprised of those POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS
that have approved this Agreement or one of its prior iterations and that have agreed
to pay the required MEMBER contributions. MEMBERS agree to the admission of
future MEMBERS in accordance with provisions of the JPA and acknowledge that
they shall have no right to object to the addition of such MEMBERS provided they
are admitted in accordance with the terms hereof. This Agreement shall be
automatically renewed, annually or periodically, consistent with BOARD-established
policy terms, unless the provisions for withdrawal, expulsion or termination are
applied in compliance with the terms of this agreement or adopted BOARD policy.
No insurance will be provided unless the allocated MEMBER contribution is paid
when due. The BOARD, or the Executive Director, as delegated by the BOARD, is
authorized to attach conditions to entry into ICRMP membership or to maintenance of
membership in ICRMP in the interest of protecting the shared interests of
participating MEMBERS. Such conditions may include contribution surcharges,
coverage limitations, reductions of limits or other methods designed to recognize risk
exposure or to protect the shared interests of other PROGRAM participants.

ARTICLE IV. MANNER OF FINANCING.

Financial operations of ICRMP shall be committed to the sound discretion of the
BOARD with the primary intent being the long-term solvency of the PROGRAM. Financial
contributions from MEMBERS shall be determined by the BOARD of ICRMP working through
the Executive Director, considering, among other factors, risk exposure, loss experience, net

Page 3 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



operating expenditures, property ownership, costs of administering claims, costs of providing
risk management services, participation in risk reduction programs, conduct by officials and
other appropriate or necessary costs of program administration .

ARTICLE V. NON-WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER IMMUNITY.

MEMBERS of ICRMP, by participation in this PROGRAM, do not waive any
immunities or limitations of liability provided to political subdivisions or their employees by any
law of this state or nation.

ARTICLE VI. ICRMP POWERS AND DUTIES.

The powers of ICRMP to perform and accomplish the purposes set forth above shall,
within budgetary limits and procedures set forth in this Agreement and as otherwise established
by the BOARD, be to:

(a) Employ agents, employees and independent contractors.

(b) Purchase, sell, encumber and lease real property; to incur obligations on behalf of the
PROGRAM to the extent permitted by Idaho statutes and the Idaho Constitution; and
to purchase, sell, or lease equipment, machinery, and personal property.

(c) Invest funds as allowed by Idaho statutes. .

(d) Carry out educational and other programs relating to risk management, including the
prerogative to offer discounts or credits upon demonstrating compliance with
standards for BOARD-approved risk reduction methods or plans.

(e) Create, collect funds for, and administer an insurance and risk management program.

(f) Purchase excess insurance and/or reinsurance to supplement the self-insured
retention. v

(g) Establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention recommendation
procedures to be followed by the MEMBERS.

(h) Provide insurance-related services, risk management, loss control, underwriting and
claims adjustment or to contract for such services, including the defense and
settlement of claims, subject to specific limitations and/or restrictions, which may be
imposed and adopted by the BOARD.

(1) Carry out such other activities as are necessarily implied or required to carry out the
purposes of ICRMP specified in Article I of this Agreement, even though such
undertakings might not be known at the time of entering into this Agreement, or
might not be included within the specific powers enumerated in this Article.

() Sue and be sued.

(k) Enter into contracts.

(1) Reimburse BOARD members for reasonable and approved expenses incurred in
attending to BOARD responsibilities.

(m)Provide security, insurance or bonds regarding the official responsibilities of all
officers, BOARD members and employees of ICRMP.

(n) Borrow funds with approval by the BOARD as necessary for current operating
purposes, so long as repayment is achieved before the conclusion of the subsequent
fiscal year.

Page 4 0f 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



(o) Take appropriate steps to protect pool resources from careless or reckless conduct by
ICRMP MEMBERS or by individual public officials of Member entities.

(p) Establish terms and conditions of initial or continued Membership in the ICRMP
Program.

ARTICLE VII. PARTICIPATION.

Any MEMBER of ICRMP shall be permitted to participate in the activities of ICRMP as
authorized by this Agreement or pursuant to decisions by the Board of Trustees. MEMBER
participation in ICRMP activities concerning the respective rights and responsibilities of any
particular MEMBER shall require the approval of the governing board of that MEMBER.

ARTICLE VIII. MEMBERS’ RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PROCEDURES.

(1) The individual MEMBERS of ICRMP, acting through their respective governing
boards, shall have the right to:

(a) Petition the BOARD to be heard regarding any aspect of the PROGRAM
operation in accordance with internal dispute resolution procedures approved
by the BOARD or as otherwise determined in accordance with procedural
guidelines authorized by the BOARD or the Chairman of the BOARD as
circumstances warrant.

(b) Withdraw from PROGRAM participation at any time authorized by this
Agreement. MEMBERS recognize that the PROGRAM is managed for long-
term participation and that agreements that support PROGRAM operation are
of one-year or longer duration. Consequently, early withdrawal from the
PROGRAM during the course of a policy year may be subject to additional

- financial obligation for the withdrawing MEMBER as determined by the
BOARD. :

(c) After renewing its membership in ICRMP at least once, to nominate,
recommend or vote concerning selection of a representative to serve on the
BOARD of ICRMP as provided by this JPA.

(2) The obligations of MEMBERS of ICRMP shall be as follows:

(a) To pay promptly all MEMBER contributions to ICRMP at such times and in
such amounts as shall be established by the BOARD pursuant to this
Agreement. Any delinquent payments may incur interest, penalties or other
financial consequences as determined by resolution of the ICRMP Board of
Trustees. Insurance coverage and other services will not continue for
MEMBERS that are delinquent in payment of contribution amounts according
to the terms of this Agreement and any related resolution approved by the
Board of Trustees. Notice of termination of coverage or of services, for non-

Page 5 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)




payment or otherwise, will be provided in writing in compliance with Idaho
Department of Insurance requirements.

(b) To allow the PROGRAM and its agents, officers and employees reasonable
access to all premises of the MEMBER and all records, including but not
limited to financial and administrative records, as reasonably required for the
administration of ICRMP and the effective handling of claims threatened or
brought against MEMBERS.

(c) To cooperate fully with the PROGRAM’S attorneys, claims adjusters and any
other agent, employee, or officer of ICRMP in activities relating to the
purposes and powers of ICRMP.

(d) To make good faith efforts to follow the safety, loss reduction and prevention
recommendations expressed by the PROGRAM and to cooperate in risk
reduction strategies proposed or required by the PROGRAM.

(e) To report to ICRMP immediately all incidents or occurrences that could
reasonably be expected to result in ICRMP being required to consider a claim
against the MEMBER, its agents, officers, or employees, or for losses to
MEMBER’S property within the scope of coverage undertaken by ICRMP.

(f) To report to ICRMP as soon as reasonably possible, by way of the public
entity’s insurance agent or otherwise, in accordance with the issued Policy of
Insurance and related guidelines, the addition of new programs, facilities and
equipment or the significant reduction or expansion of existing programs,
facilities and equipment or other acts that could cause material changes in the
MEMBER’S risk of property or liability-related loss exposure.

(g) To provide ICRMP periodically and consistent with Policy terms, but in no
instance less frequently than annually, in accordance with the issued Policy of
Insurance, with information on the value of buildings and contents and other
real and personal properties. Each MEMBER is obliged to cooperate with the
PROGRAM via its independent insurance agent.

(h) To utilize BOARD-approved dispute resolution procedures regarding any
contest or disagreement regarding a provision or scope of coverage pursuant
to the insurance program/policy or any other aspect of PROGRAM operation,
prior to addressing any such disagreement to a state or Federal administrative
agency or prior to initiating legal action against ICRMP. MEMBERS
expressly agree to follow the internal dispute resolution procedures adopted
by the BOARD before contesting administrative determinations, coverage or
claims non- payment issues in a court of law or before a regulatory agency.
Such procedures require MEMBERS to thoroughly disclose any bases for
such disagreement in writing to the BOARD prior to being heard in the
process of resolving any such dispute. MEMBER expressly agrees that failure

_ Page 6 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)




to exhaust the internal dispute resolution procedures established by the
BOARD constitutes a material breach of this JPA. MEMBER further agrees
not to initiate legal action against the PROGRAM or initiate contested
procedures before any state or Federal regulatory agency regarding any
dispute with the PROGRAM until said dispute resolution procedure has
reached its conclusion before the BOARD within a reasonable timeframe.
MEMBER agrees that ICRMP may enforce this provision by seeking the
remedy of specific performance in a court of competent jurisdiction. A
MEMBER that pursues a remedy in court or before a regulatory agency agrees
to reimburse the PROGRAM its reasonable costs and attorney fees incurred in
defense of any such suit or administrative proceeding if the matter has not first
been brought to the BOARD pursuant to this dispute resolution procedure.
The restrictions contained in this subsection may be waived by mutual
agreement of the PROGRAM and the MEMBER.

(3) The basic elements of the dispute resolution procedure within ICRMP shall include
the following:

(a) Filing a written statement by the MEMBER stating the specific basis for
disagreement with a decision by the Executive Director or BOARD regarding
aspects of PROGRAM operation or contribution requirements, provision of
coverage or non-payment of a claim for money damages. Such filing shall be
followed promptly by a conference with the Executive Director, in person or
by telephone, to attempt to resolve the stated differences. The Executive
Director shall thereafter respond to the MEMBER in writing not more than ten
(10) business days after the conference. Such written response shall set forth
the basis of the Executive Director’s decision concerning the contested matter.
If the matter contested involves a decision originally made by the BOARD,
the request for BOARD consideration can be routed directly to the BOARD if
the Executive Director lacks authority to revise a BOARD-established policy,
practice or result.

(b) Following receipt of the Executive Director’s written response, MEMBER
may appeal the determination of the Executive Director to the BOARD. Any
such appeal shall be made in writing setting forth the specific basis for the
appeal and the particular reasons for the disagreement with the determination
of the Executive Director. When an appeal is received at least fourteen (14)
days prior to a BOARD meeting, it will be included on the next BOARD
agenda. If an appeal is not received at a time that allows it to be timely placed
upon the agenda of the next BOARD meeting, the MEMBER and Executive
Director, working in consultation with the Chairman of the BOARD, shall
determine whether the matter is of such importance and urgency that it
requires the call of a special BOARD meeting or whether it can be addressed
at the next regularly scheduled BOARD meeting without irreparably harming
the MEMBER. If a MEMBER insists upon the call of a special meeting by

Page 7 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)




formal action of its governing board, a special meeting of the BOARD shall
be called to hear the appeal.

(c) The BOARD shall hear oral presentations, not in excess of one hour each, by
the MEMBER and the Executive Director, or those designated by the
Executive Director, should either or both desire. After hearing from both
parties, the BOARD shall decide the controversy and shall tender its decision
in writing within thirty (30) days. In doing so the BOARD may consult
independently, or through the Executive Director, with legal advisers and/or
consultants. The decision of the BOARD shall be final, unless
reconsideration is requested by the MEMBER and approved for
reconsideration by the BOARD. Until a final decision is made pursuant to the
procedures set forth in this Article, no MEMBER may initiate or institute
legal action against ICRMP or its officers, employees or agents arising out of
the performance of this Agreement or the contract of insurance issued
pursuant to this Agreement. Nor shall a contested matter be initiated by a
MEMBER before a state or federal administrative agency without completing
the dispute resolution procedure set forth herein.

(d) The BOARD reserves the right to vary the foregoing procedures in a mutually
agreeable manner, as necessary to accommodate the interests of ICRMP, its
MEMBERS, or others with an interest in the just resolution of differences
regarding PROGRAM operation.

ARTICLE IX. MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS.

The BOARD of ICRMP shall institute methods to establish annual or periodic
contribution amounts for MEMBERS. The PROGRAM may change contribution amounts
charged to any MEMBER from year to year to reflect changes in PROGRAM operating costs,
changes in risk resulting from operational changes, changes in property values or ownership,
reevaluation of operating risks, MEMBER conduct concerning exposures or risks or refisal to
participate in or willful violation of safety or loss prevention programs or for other reasons
established by the BOARD. Conversely, the PROGRAM may offer contribution amount
discounts for any MEMBER that faithfully participates in loss prevention and safety programs or
for other reasons established by the PROGRAM. Each MEMBER'’S contribution amount shall
be calculated in accordance with rate determination methods approved by the BOARD for any
Policy Year, unless additional coverage is requested by the MEMBER. While the BOARD’s
rate determination methods must have the objective for each MEMBER’s contribution to not be
inadequate, excessive or unfairly discriminatory, relative to the assessable risk of each
MEMBER and the PROGRAM, MEMBERS acknowledge that rate-setting involves risk and
exposure assumptions which are not purely formulaic and which rely on the professional
judgment of the BOARD and BOARD’s advisors. No MEMBER may be further assessed
during a Policy Year unless in response to a material change in property or activities not
disclosed or addressed at the time of annual renewal. Additional contribution amount may be
charged when changes are made to covered property or activities during the course of a year.
The PROGRAM reserves the right to condition continued participation by any MEMBER upon

Page 8 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



compliance with specific performance requirements, payment of modified deductible amounts
and such other measures as the PROGRAM deems necessary or appropriate. The PROGRAM
also reserves, in compliance with Article X VIII, the right to discontinue membership or diminish
coverage or limits or increase the self-insured responsibility of any MEMBER that does not
cooperate with PROGRAM goals, objectives, or requirements or that acts without regard to
consequences concerning matters that affect ICRMP and its MEMBERS.

ARTICLE X. BOARD OF TRUSTEES — ELECTION AND REPRESENTATION.

The BOARD of Trustees shall be comprised of nine (9) elected public officials, upon the
initial effective date of this iteration of the JPA, six (6) of whom shall be county commissioners
and three (3) who shall hold elective office in other POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS. The
electoral/appointive boundaries for designated BOARD members shall be organized as follows:

County District I: Counties of Boundary, Bonner, Kootenai, Benewah and Shoshone.

County District II: Counties of Latah, Clearwater, Nez Perce, Lewis and Idaho.

County District III: Counties of Adams, Valley, Washington, Payette, Gem, Boise,
Canyon, Ada, Elmore and Owyhee.

County District IV: Counties of Camas, Blaine, Gooding, Lincoln, Jerome, Minidoka,
Twin Falls and Cassia.

' County District V: Counties of Bingham, Power, Bannock, Caribou, Oneida, Franklin

and Bear Lake.

County District VI: Counties of Lemhi, Custer, Clark, Fremont, Butte, Jefferson,
Madison, Teton and Bonneville

Region I: Elected official of a city from within Districts I, II, and III elected by all
Member cities in the Region .

Region II: Elected official of a city from within Districts IV, V and VI elected by
Member cities in the Region.

Special District Member: Elected official of any MEMBER other than a county or city,
selected by a vote of the Board, chosen from nominees submitted by non-county or non-city
MEMBERS.

Each member of the BOARD shall be either a commissioner elected from a MEMBER
County, an elected official of a MEMBER city or other POLITICAL SUBDIVISION, and shall
serve for a period of two (2) years, or until a successor is elected or appointed. Four (4)
members of the BOARD (even-numbered County Districts and the Region II seat) shall be
elected for two (2) year terms in the final months of odd-numbered years, while another five (5)
members of the BOARD (odd-numbered County Districts and the Region I seat plus the Special
District Member shall be elected/appointed for two (2) year terms in even-numbered years. For
purposes of this Agreement, a “Board Seat” shall be defined as the position on the ICRMP Board
of Trustees designated for and occupied by the representative duly elected or appointed from a -
District, Region or statewide, respectively, as outlined in this Section. The Executive Director
shall administer the election process in order to allow election results to be canvassed by the
BOARD prior to undertaking official Board business in the succeeding calendar year. The
respective boards of county commissioners of each MEMBER county may cast a ballot for their
District member of the BOARD); governing boards of cities may vote for regional City

Page 9 0of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



representatives and Special District Member candidates may be nominated by governing boards
of Member Special Districts. Valid ballots must be received by ICRMP at a time and place
specified by the Executive Director. Each member of the BOARD shall serve from the date of
the first BOARD meeting in the year succeeding his election/appointment through the conclusion
of his/her term when a succeeding BOARD member is seated or for another term if the BOARD
member is re-elected/reappointed.

Article XI. REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBER

At any time during the course of service of an elected BOARD member such member
may be removed by the PROGRAM MEMBERS that elected such BOARD member by either of
two (2) means. The first method by which an elected BOARD member’s continued service may
be submitted to his constituent electors is by receipt of a petition of no confidence approved by
the respective governing boards of MEMBER entities equal to at least one-half (1/2) of the
number of votes received by the BOARD member when the BOARD member was most recently
elected to the BOARD. Any such petition shall succinctly set forth the reasons of misconduct,
personal behavior, wrongdoing, failure to exercise diligence or failed representation that justifies
a no-confidence/removal election.

The second alternative to refer a BOARD member’s continued service to his constituent
electors would be a no-confidence declaration by members of the ICRMP BOARD. By majority
vote of no confidence, exclusive of the BOARD member in question, the BOARD may choose to
submit the question of continued service by an elected BOARD member to the BOARD
member’s constituent electors, stating in any motion to proceed with such election the express
reasons therefor. Any BOARD member appointed to fill the remainder of an elected member’s
term shall be treated as an elected BOARD member.

In the event of receipt of a qualifying no-confidence petition, or following a no-
confidence vote by the ICRMP BOARD, the question to be presented to a BOARD member’s
constituent electors shall be whether the identified BOARD member should continue to serve on
the BOARD. The reasons for no-confidence stated in the petition from dissatisfied MEMBERS
or expressed in the motion by BOARD shall be included in election materials sent to constituent
electors along with a statement prepared by the BOARD member in response, if supplied by the
Board member in a timely manner. Neither message shall exceed three hundred (300) words.
Voting in any such election shall be open for at least twenty-one (21) days from the date ballots
are first mailed. The Executive Director shall establish a time and date-certain by which all
ballots must be received. Votes shall be tallied by the Executive Director or his designee(s). A
majority of lawful votes cast shall determine the outcome. If a no-confidence vote results in
removal of BOARD member, the seat may be refilled by BOARD appointment until the next
election wherein a replacement can be elected to fill a new term or the remainder of the prior
term, whichever is applicable.

Any BOARD Member holding an appointive or ex-officio non-voting position may be
removed by majority vote of the BOARD for reasons of misconduct, personal behavior,
wrongdoing or failure to exercise diligence after providing the BOARD Member a written
statement of concerns and allowing the BOARD Member an opportunity to be heard by the

Page 10 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



BOARD. In the circumstances of such proceedings, a BOARD Member facing possible removal
shall be entitled to written notice of the concerns no less than seven (7) calendar days prior to
BOARD action and the hearing opportunity for the subject BOARD Member shall be no less
than one (1) hour in duration.

ARTICLE XII. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES.

The BOARD shall have the following powers and duties to:

ey
@)
€)

(4)
®)

(6)
(7
()
€)

(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

(16)

‘applicable provisions of law.

Annually elect a chairman and vice-chairman. Each officer shall serve until his or
her successor is elected.

Admit or expel MEMBERS, or to condition continued participation in the
PROGRAM, in accordance with this Agreement.

Establish procedures for determining contribution amounts and authorizing
payment procedures for MEMBERS.

Establish the insurance and risk management program design.

Provide for selection of all personnel and contractors necessary for the
administration of ICRMP, including the appointment of an Executive Director to
supervise the business of the PROGRAM and carry out other functions delegated
by the BOARD.

Establish a schedule for BOARD meetings.

Exercise all powers of ICRMP, except powers reserved to the MEMBERS.
Prepare, adopt and oversee ICRMP’s budget.

Receive reports concerning PROGRAM activities and to make reports to the
MEMBERS.

Provide for underwriting, claims and loss control procedures.

Provide for the investment and disbursement of funds.

Enact resolutions establishing procedures governing its own conduct and the
powers and duties of its officers, not inconsistent with this Agreement and
Provide to MEMBERS an annual report of operations and financial affairs.

Form committees and advisory panels; and to provide other services as needed by
ICRMP. The BOARD shall determine the method of appointment and terms of
members of committees and advisory panels.

Submit to MEMBERS an amended JPA upon adoption and at the date of periodic
renewal, or otherwise, for re-adoption, express acceptance or payment of a
member contribution by MEMBERS.

Dissolve ICRMP when BOARD action is accompanied by a two-thirds (2/3) vote
of the entire then-current MEMBERSHIP, provided that a notice of intent to
dissolve ICRMP shall be given to the Director of the Department of Insurance of
the State of Idaho at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed effective date.
Like notice of such intent shall be provided to all MEMBERS at least thirty (30)
days before any such vote regarding dissolution in compliance with title 41, Idaho
Code and other applicable statutes. Assets remaining after discharge of its
indebtedness and policy obligations, the return of any surplus made as provided in
Idaho Code §41-2916, and the return of any unused premium, savings or credits

Page 11 of 19

Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



then standing on subscribers’ accounts, shall be distributed to its subscribers who
were such within the twelve (12) months prior to the last termination of its
certificate of authority, according to such reasonable formula as the director may
approve pursuant to Idaho Code §41-2928.
(17) Appoint or remove appointed or non-voting ex-officio members of the BOARD
(18) Do or delegate all acts necessary and proper for the implementation of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE XIII. ESTABLISHMENT OF LOSS PAYING FUND.

The PROGRAM shall endeavor to maintain available funds in amounts the BOARD
deems reasonably sufficient to annually provide the resources necessary to fund ICRMP’s
general and administrative expenses, any reinsurance or excess insurance requirements, to pay
the current year’s claims and claims expenses and to sustain the financial stability of the
PROGRAM, in addition to funds necessary to meet ICRMP’s obligation to satisfy the
requirements of any regulatory authority.

ARTICLE XIV. SCOPE OF COVERAGE.

(1) ICRMP shall provide policy protection to each MEMBER as provided in the
MEMBER’S policy of insurance. MEMBER acknowledges that the policy of
insurance transfers risk of loss from the MEMBER to ICRMP subject to the terms,
conditions and exclusions addressed by the policy. MEMBER acknowledges that not
all risks are insurable and that any excluded risks are not transferred pursuant to this
Agreement.

(2) In the event that a claim or a series of claims exceeds the amount of coverage
provided by the MEMBER’s Policy, payment of valid claims shall become the sole
and separate obligation of the individual MEMBER or MEMBERS against whom the

* claim was made and perfected by litigation or settlement. No Subscriber shall be
entitled to a contribution from other MEMBERS beyond the annual amount obligated
by this Joint Power Subscribers Agreement and the policy of insurance which
complements it.

ARTICLE XV. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES.

(1) The BOARD may set a time and place for meetings in accordance with applicable
law. All provisions of law applicable to public meetings shall be observed.

(2) A majority of seated trustees shall constitute a quorum to do business. All formal acts
of the BOARD shall require a majority vote of the trustees present and voting, unless
otherwise required by law.

(3) Because of the distance that separates the Trustees, the BOARD may conduct official
business by telephone/video conference call. When a conference call meeting is
convened the base of such meeting will normally be the ICRMP Building in Boise,

Page 12 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)




Idaho. An alternative base meeting location may be designated by the Executive
Director when necessary to effectively conduct BOARD business. At the base
location a speaker phone shall be provided in order to allow the public to hear the
discussion carried on by the BOARD. Executive session and notice provisions of the
Open Meeting Law shall apply when appropriate or required.

ARTICLE XVI. LIABILITY OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES OR OFFICERS.

The trustees or officers of ICRMP should use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in
the exercise of their powers and in the performance of their duties hereunder. They shall not be
personally liable for any mistake of judgment or other action made, taken or omitted by them in
good faith; nor for any action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent contractor
selected with reasonable care so long as the actions or omissions complained of shall have taken
place within the course and scope of their official duties. No trustee shall be personally liable for
any action taken or omitted by any other trustee. The assets of ICRMP may be used to defend
and indemnify any trustee, officer, agent or employee for actions taken by each such person in
good faith within the scope of his or her authority for ICRMP as public officials in the state of
Idaho. ICRMP may purchase insurance providing coverage for trustees, officers and employees.

ARTICLE XVII. WITHDRAWAL FROM MEMBERSHIP.

Any MEMBER may withdraw from ICRMP after the MEMBER’S initial one (1) year
term by giving notice to the Executive Director, in writing, of its desire to withdraw. Any
MEMBER may withdraw from ICRMP within thirty (30) days after the date that the PROGRAM
gives notice in writing of an amendment to this Agreement or its accompanying policy of
insurance by tendering to the Executive Director written notice of its intent to withdraw. The
continuing rights of any withdrawing MEMBER shall be as set forth in the most recent JPA. A
voluntarily withdrawing MEMBER shall be deemed to have forfeited any claim of right or
equity to any portion of liquidated surplus or to any credit or dividend should any be declared by
the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE XVIII. EXPULSION OF MEMBERS - CONDITIONS OF CONTINUED
PARTICIPATION.

(1) Any MEMBER may be expelled at the initiation of the Executive Director or the
BOARD at any time during a policy year for one or more of the following reasons:

(a) Failure to make any payments due to ICRMP.

(b) Willful failure to undertake or continue loss reduction or loss prevention
recommendations by ICRMP.

(¢) Failure to allow ICRMP reasonable access to all facilities and records of the
MEMBER necessary for proper administration of ICRMP.

(d) Failure to fully cooperate with ICRMP’s attorneys, claim adjusters or other
agents, employees, or officers of ICRMP.

(e) Failure to carry out any obligation of a MEMBER which impairs the ability of
ICRMP to carry out its purpose or powers.

Page 13 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



(f) Exhibiting reckless behavior which causes claims which could have been
avoided by prudent or responsible action.

(2) No MEMBER expulsion shall be effective until at least thirty (30) days after notice
from the Executive Director of the alleged failure of performance, however the notice
of expulsion from the Executive Director may include exclusions from, or limitations
on, coverage related to foreseeable willful actions addressing conduct of the
MEMBER. Any such exclusions or limitations shall be effective immediately unless
subsequently rescinded by BOARD action or modified by mutual agreement. Notice
to a MEMBER shall state whether a cure is believed to be possible. The MEMBER
may request, in writing, a hearing before the BOARD, either by telephone or in
person, within fourteen (14) days of the notice provided by the Executive Director.
MEMBERS must act through their governing board. Notices of expulsion or
extraordinary exclusions or limitations of coverage are subject to the Dispute
Resolution Procedure set forth in Article VIIL. If a decision to expel, exclude or limit
1s affirmed after hearing, such date of expulsion or limitation shall relate back to the
date of initial decision to expel by the Executive Director or the BOARD from which
the notice of intent to expel derives. The rights of any expelled MEMBER shall be as
set forth in this Agreement or upon such other terms and conditions as the BOARD
may negotiate with the expelled MEMBER. Nothing in any policy of insurance shall
contravene provisions of this JPA respecting separation from the PROGRAM.

(3) Any MEMBER separating from ICRMP (withdrawing or expelled) shall not be
entitled to any reimbursement of contribution amounts that have been paid unless
otherwise required by provisions of applicable law. All claims relating to events
occurring after the date of separation from ICRMP shall become the sole
responsibility of the separated Subscriber. With respect to any Claims Made
coverage provided to a MEMBER, any claims occurring or reported after the date of
separation from ICRMP shall become the sole responsibility of the separated
MEMBER. Any MEMBER expelled from the PROGRAM by action of the Board of
Trustees shall have any entitlement to liquidation value provided pursuant to this JPA
reduced by the amount of ultimate net loss that exceeds the MEMBER’s
contributions for the period of liquidation rights established by the terms of the JPA.
then in effect. Such entitlement to liquidation value shall be payable only upon
actual liquidation of the PROGRAM.

(4) As an alternative to expulsion the BOARD or Executive Director may, at any time,
condition continued participation in the PROGRAM upon compliance with specific
terms and conditions established by agreement between the MEMBER and ICRMP.
Conditions may include consultation requirements, increased deductible amounts,
increased MEMBER contributions, restriction of coverage, diminishment of coverage
limits and such other limitations as the BOARD may deem reasonable to protect the
resources of ICRMP as allowed by applicable law.

Page 14 0f 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



ARTICLE XIX. BINDING CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION.

This document shall constitute a JPA, a binding contract, among those POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS that are MEMBERS of ICRMP. The terms of this Agreement may be enforced
in court by ICRMP itself or by any of its MEMBERS, as respects its interests, subject to the
terms and conditions of applicable laws and this Agreement. The consideration for the duties
herewith imposed upon the MEMBERS to take certain actions and to refrain from certain other
actions is based upon the mutual promises and agreements of the MEMBERS set forth herein
and the Member contributions paid by Members. This Agreement shall be deemed approved by
each MEMBER by payment of the required Member contribution or by subsequent renewal
pursuant to procedures specified by law, the Executive Director or the BOARD. MEMBER
asserts that it has complied with relevant laws and that it waives its ability to object to the
binding nature of this Agreement by virtue of informalities in its approval. Except to the extent
of the financial contributions to ICRMP agreed to herein, or such additional obligations as may
come about through amendments to this Agreement, no MEMBER agrees or contracts herein to
be held responsible for any claims in tort or contract made against any other MEMBER. The
contracting parties intend in the creation of ICRMP to establish an organization for joint risk
management only within the scope herein set out, and have not herein created as between
MEMBER and MEMBER any relationship of general surety or indemnitor, nor by participating
herein does any MEMBER otherwise assume responsibility for the debts of or claims against any
other MEMBER.

ARTICLE XX. DISTRIBUTION OF PROPERTY, FUNDS AND SUPPLIES UPON
DISSOLUTION OF ICRMP.

In the event of termination of this JPA such that ICRMP is dissolved, all unused
consumable supplies, non-consumable supplies or other property or assets acquired by ICRMP
shall be liquidated in a manner permissible by law, and the proceeds of such liquidation shall be
disbursed to the then-current MEMBERS at a rate proportionate to each MEMBER’S pro rata
share of the cumulative Member contributions paid to ICRMP for the most recent five (5) fiscal
years. Said determination of net asset distribution shall be made in good faith by the BOARD
subject to application of the business judgment rule. ’

ARTICLE XXI. SEVERABILITY.

In the event that any Article, provision, clause or other part of this Agreement should be
held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability with respect to other Articles,
provisions, clauses, applications or occurrences, and this Agreement is expressly declared to be
severable.

ARTICLE XXII. POWER OF ATTORNEY - EXPENSES AND DUTIES. |

(1) To the extent required by Idaho Code Title 41, Chapter 29, and not inconsistent with
applicable constitutional and statutory obligations and prerogatives, MEMBER
hereby appoints Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters (ICRMP),

Page 15 0of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



as its Attorney-in-Fact empowered to take all actions and execute all documents
which are necessary or appropriate in carrying on the business of insurance through
ICRMP on behalf of MEMBER. MEMBER agrees that the BOARD of ICRMP may
delegate powers to an Executive Director in accordance with this JPA.

(2) The Executive Director appointed by the BOARD is hereby empowered by the
undersigned to accept service of process on behalf of ICRMP. The Director of the
Department of Insurance of the State of Idaho is also authorized to receive service of
process in actions against ICRMP upon contracts of insurance provided to
Subscribers of [ICRMP. Such authorization does not supersede the procedural
requirements of this Agreement. The general services to be performed by the
Executive Director shall include: (a) issuing, underwriting and servicing policies of
insurance; (b) contracting with agents for sale and servicing of policies of insurance;
(c) executing treaties of reinsurance or contracts of excess insurance; (d) providing
risk management services and administering programs to diminish claims for
damages and (&) supervising the investment policy of ICRMP. The Executive
Director’s obligations and liability shall be limited by the terms and conditions of
ICRMP’s JPA and by the Idaho Tort Claims Act.

(3) The general items of expense to be paid by ICRMP shall include, but not be limited
to: (a) losses and claims payments; (b) allocable claims expense; (c) governmental
charges, license fees, and lawful taxes; (d) expenses incurred in auditing ICRMP’s
books and records; (€) contribution amount collection costs; (f) BOARD expenses;
(g) premiums on reinsurance and excess insurance; (h) fees of investment counsel and
direct investment expense; (i) salaries and expenses of officers and employees of
ICRMP; (j) disbursement of dividends; (k) special expenses authorized by the Board
of Trustees of ICRMP; (1) broker and agent commissions; (m) indemnity insurance
premiums; (n) home and branch office expense; and (o) actuarial, auditing, legal, risk
management and loss prevention expenses.

(4) The Power of Attorney conveyed herein shall expire upon termination of all
obligations of ICRMP. The policies of insurance issued by ICRMP are conditional
upon payment of MEMBER contributions to ICRMP. The liability of each
MEMBER for the obligations of ICRMP shall be an individual, several and
proportionate liability and not a joint liability. The liability of each MEMBER shall
be limited as stated in this JPA provided, however, that in no event shall any
MEMBER be required to contribute more than the amount authorized by applicable
state statutes and constitutional provisions pursuant to which ICRMP is established.

ARTICLE XXIHI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS - NOTICE.
(1) The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted pursuant to the laws of the State

of Idaho.

Page 16 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



(2) The parties hereto consent that courts in the State of Idaho shall have jurisdiction over
any dispute arising under this Agreement after exhaustion of the dispute resolution
procedures provided for herein. If reasonable attorney fees are incurred in enforcing
provisions of this Agreement in a court of law, the prevailing party to such an action
shall be entitled to reimbursement of its reasonable attorney fees.

(3) No waiver of any breach of this Agreement or any provision herein contained shall be
deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any of the other
provisions herein contained. No extension of time for performance of any obligation
or act shall be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligations
or acts.

(4) In the event that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with or is incompatible
with the MEMBER’S Policy issued hereunder, the terms and conditions of the
MEMBER'’S Policy shall prevail and take precedence.

(5) This Agreement may be modified or amended by a written proviso authorized by the
Board. Provided, however, no such modification shall be effective retroactively, nor
as to any insurance contract or coverage issued prior thereto. Said modifications may
be made effective during a Policy Year only to comply with applicable laws
respecting operation of ICRMP or with express consent of the MEMBER. Changes
may be made to the policy of insurance issued by ICRMP at any time during the
policy year in accordance with rules or statutes governing the business of insurance
within the State of Idaho. If a MEMBER does not accept changes made during a
policy year, its sole remedy shall be to cancel future coverage, subject to a
proportionate refund of any pro rata MEMBER contributions already paid, less
equitable commission and administrative charges.

(6) MEMBER agrees to hold ICRMP, its employees, contractors, and/or legal counsel,
harmless and without liability to MEMBER from any claims arising out of loss
control or related administrative activities undertaken for Subscriber’s benefit.
ICRMP assumes no responsibility for the lawful operation of MEMBER’S
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION. MEMBER further agrees that communications with
attorneys on the ICRMP staff or retained by the PROGRAM to assist a MEMBER to
resolve or avoid claims will remain confidential pursuant to the Attorney-Client
privilege and that written materials generated as a consequence of such effort to assist
MEMBER shall constitute attorney work product. MEMBER further agrees that the
employees, contractors and/or legal counsel of ICRMP when acting in a loss control
capacity are representing ICRMP, not MEMBERS, and that information obtained in
such loss control capacity may be provided to ICRMP in order to carry out the
purposes of this JPA.

(7) All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be delivered in writing.
Notices by a MEMBER to ICRMP shall be sent to ICRMP’S principal place of
business. Notices to any MEMBER shall be sent to the MEMBER’S last known
address. In the event that any party to this Agreement desires to change its address,

Page 17 of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



notice of change of address shall be sent to the other party by United States Mail in
accordance with the terms and provision of this Article. Each MEMBER of ICRMP
whether by initiating membership after October 1, 2013, or by renewing membership
after October 1, 2013, hereby authorizes and consents to delivery of documents
between itself and ICRMP by electronic means in accordance with provisions of
Idaho Code §41-1851 or its successor unless it provides written notice to ICRMP that
it declines to accept delivery of documents by electronic means.

(8) Warranty of Eligibility — Each MEMBER authorizing participation in ICRMP by
approval of this Agreement and execution by an authorized official hereby warrants
that it is a political subdivision of the state of Idaho as defined by the Idaho Tort
Claims Act and thereby eligible to be a MEMBER of ICRMP. By such warranty
each MEMBER consents to its immediate separation from ICRMP participation upon
discovery that it is not a qualifying political subdivision. Each MEMBER also agrees
that it will indemnify ICRMP for any loss ICRMP may suffer by virtue of the
inapplicability of privileges and immunities otherwise available to political
subdivisions of the state of Idaho by virtue of the mischaracterization of any
MEMBER as a qualified Idaho political subdivision.

(9) Procedural standards established within this JPA shall serve functions frequently
fulfilled by organizational by-laws. Other procedural requirements may be
established by applicable state law. Additionally, nothing contained in this JPA shall
prohibit the ICRMP Board of Trustees from adopting procedural standards or
guidelines for the conduct of Board business or from authorizing administrative
policies to guide ICRMP’s internal affairs.

Page 18 0of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



ARTICLE XXIV. EXECUTION AND ATTEST.

In Witness hereof, this Agreement is executed onthe  day of 20

by the undersigned who are duly authorized officer(s) of the Political Subdivision indicated be below
and by the Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters (ICRMP), pursuant to action
taken by the Governing Board of the MEMBER on the  day of 20 or by
payment of the required member contribution. Such payment of Member contribution, execution
upon this Agreement or upon execution of a prior counterpart accompanied by continuing renewal
shall constitute agreement by the POLITICAL SUBDIVISION to the terms and conditions of
membership in ICRMP until proper written notice of withdrawal is provided or until a MEMBER
is expelled as provided herein. An authorized signature or payment of member contribution is
required for new membership. Renewal occurs annually by issuance of a policy of insurance and
payment of member contribution subject to the terms of the then-current JPA proffered by the
ICRMP Board of Trustees in conjunction with insurance policy terms for the succeeding policy
year.

POLITICAL SUBDIVISION:

By:

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, MAYOR, OR OTHER
EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED OFFICER

Title:

Attest/Witness:

CLERK OR OTHER AUTHORIZED OFFICER

ACCEPTED FOR THE IDAHO COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT
PROGRAM, UNDERWRITERS (ICRMP)

By:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Page 19 0of 19
Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement (Effective July 19, 2017)



August 19, 2019

TO: Sun Valley Air Service Board
RE: Terrorism Coverage for Policy Year Effective October 1, 2019
Dear Valued ICRMP Member:

Following the events of September 11, 2001, the nation’s largest insurers took
their case to Congress concerning their ability to withstand the financial consequences of
additional terrorist acts that might take place on American soil. As a consequence,
Congress enacted the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) that is intended to protect
insured property owners by assuring that their property insurers are not overwhelmed by
terrorism-driven claims. Local government risk sharing pools generally were excluded
from TRIA.

Because ICRMP is regulated under Idaho law as a reciprocal insurer, federal law
requires ICRMP to offer complete terrorism property coverage to its Members. In
accordance with the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as extended on December 26, 2007,
we are required to offer you coverage of all of the property we insure that your entity
lists on our schedule of values against any “certified act of terrorism”. We are providing
property coverage by including the peril of terrorism as a cause of loss in Section V-
Property of your renewal policy.

This is your formal notice as required by Federal Law and disclosure that their is
not an additional premium for this coverage. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as
extended on December 26, 2007 by the enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance
Program Reauthorization Act of 2007 (TRIPRA), is a U.S. Treasury Department
program under which the federal government would share, with regulated insurance
carriers, the risk of loss from terrorist attacks. The Act applies when the Secretary of the
Treasury, in concurrence with the Secretary of State and the Attorney General of the
United States, certifies that an event meets the definition of a “certified act of terrorism”.
Certified acts of terrorism can also include foreign or domestic acts of terrorism, but they
still must be certified as such by the Federal officers listed above.

Sincerely,

Sandy Moser
Underwriting Manager

For Policy Year Effective October 1, 2019



PUBLIC ENTITY MULTI-LINES INSURANCE POLICY DECLARATIONS

ISSUED BY IDAHO COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, UNDERWRITERS
3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300
Boise, Idaho 83705
(208) 336-3100

Named Insured: | Sun Vvalley Air Service Board

Address: PO Box 416
Sun Valley, Idaho 83353

Application Date: | August 1, 2019

Policy Number: ] 39A15014100119

Policy Period: |From: october 1, 2019
To: October 1, 2020

Both dates above at 12:01 AM

Member Contribution: | $1,443

NOTICE REGARDING INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

As required by Article VIII, Section 4 and Article Xli, section 4 of the Idaho Constitution and Idaho Code Section 41-
3603(10), the ICRMP Program is not a participant in the Idaho Insurance Guaranty Association. As such, ICRMP
Subscribers are not responsible for the costs of private insurer insolvencies, nor are they or claimants against them
entitled to any of the protections which participation in the Guaranty Association would provide. This notice is
provided in cooperation with the Idaho Insurance Guaranty Association. For additional information concerning this
notice, contact ICRMP at 208-336-3100.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 D-1 ICRMP39A2020



members collectively.

PROPERTY ==e-memrmemmmme e mememm e e emsme e

Section V limit of indemnification is $200,000,000 per occurrence and this limit is for all property coverages and
all limits of indemnification combined for all public enti

O Agree overage b Peaq D
ge atio
Buildings, Structures & Property, Mobile Equipment and Automobile Physical Damage
Sublimits: The first
Claim Preparation Fees & Expenses $100,000 Per covered occurrence. §1,000 .
per occurrence is
Debris Removal $2,500,000 or 25% of | Per covered occurrence. apphpab\l;e to
loss, whichever greater Section V,
Insuring
Earth Movement $50,000,000 Per covered occurrence and/or in the Annual Aggregate all Public Ag(;e;ments 1
Education members combined in this policy year. and z, flood
Employee/Volunteer Property $50,000 Per accident. excepting floo
and earth
Fine Arts $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence and/or in the aggregate for multiple occurrences ]movement
in this policy year. 0558s.
Flood Type 1* $5,000,000 Per Covered occurrence and/or in the Annual Aggregate all Public
Education members claims combined in this policy year.
Flood Type 2** $50,000,000 Per Covered occurrence and/or in the Annual Aggregate all Public
Education members claims combined in this policy year. Earth
Inadvertently Omitted ltems $500,000 Per covered occurrence and/or in the aggregate for multiple occurrences | Movement: The
in this policy year. first $25,000
Increased Cost of Construction $10,000,000 Per covered occurrence. per covered
occurrence.
Landscape Items $25,000 Per covered occurrence.
*Flood Type 1:
Newly Acquired Property $10,000,000/120 days | Per covered occurrence. The first
$500,000 per
Operational Disruption Expense $4,000,000 Per covered occurrence and includes sublimits as listed under heading. building and
o Data Restoration $250,000 Per covered occurrence and is included in the $4,000,000 limit. first $500,000
e Extra Expense $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence and is included in the $4,000,000 limit. per contents
o Expediting Expense $500,000 Per covered occurrence and is included in the $4,000,000 limit. per covered
o Leasehold Interest $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence and is included in the $4,000,000 limit. oceurrence.
Professional Fees $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence. *Flood Type 2:
The first
Property in Course of Construction $5,000,000 Per covered occurrence. $25,000 per
: covered
Property in Transit $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence. occurrence.
Protection & Preservation of Property $250,000 Per covered occurrence.
Service Animals $25,000 Per covered occurrence.
Unmanned Aircraft (Drones) $50,000 Per covered occurrence.
Valuable Papers and Records $1,000,000 Per covered occurrence.
« Data Restoration Related to $500,000 Per covered occurrence and/or in the aggregate for multiple occurrences
Valuable Papers and Records in this policy year.
Automobiles & Mobile Equipment $1,000,000 Per item per covered occurrence and no more than $10,000,000 in
annual aggregate for multiple items per occurrence while not in use.
$1,000,000 Per covered occurrence.

Water/Sewer Backup

Language Effective October 1, 2019

ICRMP39A2020




S—— — YY) — ——

, Limit of , ,

The first $2,500 of any
1. Employee Dishonesty $500,000 Per covered occurrence and in the aggregate for all loss in this section.
claims annually.

2. Loss Inside Premises $500,000 Per covered occurrence and in the aggregate for all
claims annually.

3. Loss Outside Premises $500,000 Per covered occurrence and in the aggregate for all
claims annually.

Indemnification

Limit for Covered
Section and/or Insuring Agreements Claims Brought

Pursuant to Title 6,

Ch. 9, Idaho Code

Indemnification Limit for | Defense Cost Limit for

All Other Covered Claims Covered Claims Coverage Basis

AUTO LIABILITY- SECTION Vil

1. Automobile Liability (Accident Outside Stafe of $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered
Idaho) accident,
Automobile Liability (Accident Inside State of $500,000 $500,000 Included in above Per covered
ldaho) accident,
2. Automobile Medical Payments $5,000 $5,000 Not Applicable Each person.
$100,000 $100,000 Each accident.
3. Uninsured / Underinsured Motorists ' $100,000 $100,000 Included in above Each person.
$300,000 $300,000 Each accident.
GENERAL LIABILITY- SECTION Vili ’
1. General Liability $500,000 v $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered
occurrence.
Sublimits:
Sewer Backup $500,000 $500,000 Included in above Per covered
occurrence.
Fire Suppression Liability $500,000 $500,000 Included in above Per covered
occurrence.
LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY- SECTION IX
Per covered
1. Law Enforcement Liability $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 occurrence.

ANNUAL AGGREGATE INDEMNIFICATION LIMIT FOR POLICY PERIOD FOR SECTIONS VII, VI, IX, X, XI, XII, XilI, XIV, AND XV COMBINED [$ $5,000,000.

ANNUAL AGGREGATE DEFENSE COST LIMIT FOR POLICY PERIOD FOR SECTIONS Vi, VIII, IX, X, XI, XIi, XIlI, XIV, AND XV COMBINED IS $3,000,000.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 D-3 ICRMP39A2020



wmmeemmemmmmemmemmeee-CLAIMS MADE LIABILITY COVERAGES-nmmemmmmemmmmmmmmemme

Indemnification Limit
for Covered Claims Indemnification Limit Defense Cost

Section and/or Insuring Agreements Brought Pursuant to for All Other Covered Limit for Coverage Basis
Title 6, Ch. 9, Idaho Claims Covered Claims
Code

ERRORS & OMISSIONS LIABILITY - SECTION X

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE
Retroactive Date: February 21, 2011

1. Errors & Omissions Liability $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered claim.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY - SECTION Xi

CLAIMS VMADE COVERAGE
Retroactive Date: February 21, 2011

1. Employee Benefits Liability $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered claim.

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY - SECTION XiI

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE
Retroactive Date: February 21, 2011

1. Employment Practices Liability $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered claim.

SEXUAL MOLESTATION/SEXUAL ABUSE LIABILITY -
SECTION Xil

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE
Retroactive Date: February 21, 2013

1. Sexual Molestation/Sexual Abuse Liability $500,000 $3,000,000 $2,000,000 Per covered claim.

CHEMICAL SPRAYING ACTIVITITES LIABILITY - SECTION X1V

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 Per covered claim
and/or in the
Retroactive Date: February 21, 2011 aggregate for
multiple claims.

1. Chemical Spraying Activities Liability

ANNUAL AGGREGATE INDEMNIFICATION LIMIT FOR POLICY PERIOD FOR SECTIONS VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XIi, Xlll, XIV, AND XV COMBINED IS $5,000,000.

ANNUAL AGGREGATE DEFENSE COST LIMIT FOR POLICY PERIOD FOR SECTIONS VII, VI, IX, X, XI, XiI, XIll, XIV, AND XV COMBINED IS $3,000,000.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 D-4 ICRMP39A2020



wmeemmeemaemaenmccen SECTION XV ~ENDORSEMENTS --ermmmremmmermmmemmmemn

Insuring Agreements

#1 - Accidental Discharge of Pollutants Amendatory

Limit of

Indemnification

Defense Cost
Limit

Coverage Basis and/or
Aggregate
Per covered occurrence

Deductible
The first $1,000

$100,000 Not applicable andfor in the aggregate for | of any loss for
Endorsement multiple claims. Endorsement #1.
#2 - Cyber & Technology Liability Amendatory Endorsement
CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE
Retroactive Date October 1, 2015
Third Party Coverages
1.Media $1,000,000 Included in limit of | Per Covered Claim and The first $1,000
2.Privacy & Cyber Security $1,000,000 indemnification $10,000,000 in the of any loss for
3. Privacy Regulatory Defense, Awards & Fines $1,000,000 aggregate annually for all Endorsement #2.
4,PCIDSS $500,000 |ICRMP Members
First Party Coverages Collectively insured by this
1. Business Income $1,000,000 Endorsement for multiple
2. Extra Expense $1,000,000 claims.
3. Data Recovery $1,000,000
4, Cyber-Extortion & Ransomware $1,000,000
5. Data Breach Response & Crisis Management $1,000,000
6. Dependent Business Interruption-System Failure $500,000 .
1. System Failure Loss of Business Income $500,000
8. System Failure Extra Expense $500,000
9. Social Engineering Financial Fraud $100,000
$500,000 Not applicable Per covered occurrence
#3 - Public Land Fire Suppression Amendatory Endorsement and/p rin th.e aggregate for
multiple claims subject to
annual aggregate.
Per covered occurrence
#4 - Terrorism Liability Amendatory Endorsement $500,000 $500,000 and/p rin th.e aggregate for
multiple claims subject to
annual aggregate.
Included in
Building Value The first $1,000
#5 — Asbestos Remediation Amendatory Endorsement as listed in Not applicable Per covered occurrence. of any loss for
Schedule of Endorsement # 5.
Values
#6 - Equipment Breakdown Endorsement
1. Spoilage $500,000 Not applicable for | Per covered occurrence for | The first $1,000
2. Service Interruption $2,500,000 endorsement each limit and sublimit as of any loss for
3. Business Interruption $5,000,000 listed. This endorsement's Endorsement #6.
4. Extra Expense $1,000,000 limit of indemnification is
5. Expediting Expense $500,000 $100,000,000 per
6. Hazardous Substance $1,000,000 occurrence for all
7. Ammonia Contamination $500,000 machinery breakdown
8. Electronic Data and Media $1,000,000 coverages and all limits of
9. CFC Refrigerants $100,000 indemnification combined
10. Computer Equipment $5,000,000 for all public entity members
collectively.
#7 - Attorney Consultation Reimbursement Amendatory $1,500 Not applicable for | Per Claim.
Endorsement $50,000 endorsement In the aggregate for multiple
claims and subject to
annual aggregate.
Language Effective October 1, 2019 D-5 ICRMP39A2020




TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINED TERMS ....ccctmiirsatisticntrsacsanssassesenessasissirsassenssnsssasssassesssasssnssssssssssssessssees sessssnnsesssnnssessnsssssrassessnnmessnrs iii
SECTION | - GENERAL INSURING AGREEMENT .....coistresssessnsessssasssanssseesensssssrsssessreanserssesssnsssesssssssssrssssases 1
SECTION Il - GENERAL DEFINITIONS .......oivieiiieiisnsismcseccssnssnssssssssssseessesssesssssesssssns srssenersssesssrsseesassssansssans snns 2
SECTION Il - GENERAL CONDITIONS .....ocoiociericeressmsssnsssmes sresessssssssssssssssesssmeenssessesssssssessssssnsssonssssossssnsssses 5
SECTION IV - GENERAL EXCLUSIONS ......coveeieceseressssssssssmsassssssssesssssssssessessersssssssesssssnsesssssssssesansnnssssssseres 12
SECTIONV ~- PROPERTY INSURANCE .......occciisiisirierssesssrssssssssssssssssssssssessasesnsesnsenserssnsesssssosssnss ssomessonsssnes 19
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable t0 Property INSUIANCE .....uveecceeecrerriesnssvariessemessessesessssssessssessoes 19
B. Definitions Applicable to Property INSUring AGIrE@MIENLS ......ccreeveeereeeeerreseesevssreeasssrssssssssessssssnessses 19
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Property INSUIiNg AGre@MENLS ......cceeeeveeeeeeerrevsssseessessscessess 20
D. Exclusions Applicable to Property INSuring AQre@ments. ... eceueeeesecssecssssessssssssesssssssosssssess 27
SECTION VI - CRIME INSURANCGE ......ccetiiiesmeercssissmercsmersasssssasssessssssssssssssssemsasssnsssnsess sessssessnssssesassssssassmsas 30
A. Insuring Agreements APPlICAbIe 1O CrimM @ INSUIAINCE..... . ccreeeeececneeeieeeeeererssrseesessssssesesssssssssssssssssones 30
B. Definitions Applicable to Crime INSUING AQIre@MENIES .......cuuceeceeeevereeeerseisrireveemereesseressasssssssssesssssses 30
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Crime INSULiNG AQreeMENTES.........ccecevceeereeemeeseveriseesssssssssessonens 31
D. Exclusions Applicable to Crime INSUFiNg AQreemMENTES.........cvcrevisessireereessorcrssessmesenesssssssssonssssnessnes 31
SECTION VIl - AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANGCE ....cousuiscerrrsrmesssmsssssssssssscrsessoseessssessnsssnesssesssmssessssesns 33
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Automobile Liability INSUIANCE ...u..ecveeerereseeeeeeereeseereessresnnerses 33
B. Definitions Applicable to Automobile Liability InSUrance AQreements ..........uucwcecoeeverccenesssesees 33
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Automobile Liability Insurance Agreements..........o.cocevveersenn. 34
D. Exclusions Applicable to Automobile Liability INSUrance AQre@meENnts ........coeuvseecrsseesseeeeorssssens 35
SECTION VIII - GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE .......ccocstsnimirmcrssrsssssssessssssssssssnssssssasssnsssassnssnsasssssssnes 37
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to General Liability INSUFaNCe..........cuvvvevresereevseesverusseesessessesonssses 37
B. Definitions Applicable to General Liability InSUING AQr@@MENTES ........cccomvuereereeeiseecresressnesoneseesorses 38
C. Exclusions Applicable to General Liability INSUIiNg AQree@mMENtS..........covevereeeerereresrssesrssisessorssnes 38
SECTION IX - LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY INSURANGCE......ccccusrmreescsunsserssnsseresessensesssssssscsssonsssnesens 40
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability INSUrance ..........ooovoveveservesssvans 40
B. Definitions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insuring Agreements........ccuoucoveoseesvessnenns 40
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insuring Agreements ........c.ccvcu... 40
D. Exclusions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability InSUring AQreements .........vioioecseesesseens 41
SECTION X - ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE CLAIMS MADE ONLY ....ooooereerrerersceseessnessnssses 42
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Errors and OmiSsSions INSUIANCE .........ccoeeeereeeesveveenesirsssssses 42
B. Definitions Applicable to Errors and Omissions INSUring AQreemeENtS..........ueceomsousmeorervcoreressenns 42
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreements............ccuoeresenes 42
D. Exclusions Applicable to Errors and Omissions INSUING AQre€mMENtS .........oeeeeceosovsesreoeseeeseesonans 42
SECTION XI — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAM LIABILITY INSURANCE .....oooeeeeeeeceeeereeeeeeeeecnnsenssnns 44
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability .......ccccueevevevesreverseessessans 44
B. Definitions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreements..................... 44
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreement ....... 45
D. Exclusions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreements............c...... 45
SECTION Xl - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY INSURANCE ......c.cocoeemresnrercnsesssssssenssesassasssassens 46
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Employment Practices Li@bility.........cueceeeeevveveveesseervisensen 46
B. Definitions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreements..........c.cucvvcevisvsen 46
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreements............. 46
D. Exclusions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring AGreements..............ccueceesseen. 46

Language Effective October 1, 2019 i ICRMP38A2020



SECTION XIll -SEXUAL MOLESTATION or sexual Abuse Liability Insurance......ccccocccmrccninnvinvcennsenienss 48

A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insurance...... 48
B. Definitions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring Agreements .... 48
C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring

Yo == 11 = 1 49

D. Exclusions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring Agreements.... 49
SECTION XIV —CHEMICAL SPRAYING ACTIVITIES LIABILITY INSURANCE .....cceoomvunuenesnsnsessnssessessnsans 51
A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insurance................... 51
B. Definitions Applicable to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insuring Agreements................. 51
C. Specific Conditions to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insuring Agreements.............ccve... 51
D. Exclusions to Chemical Spraying Liability Activities Liability Insuring Agreements.........cccecuvus.. 51
SECTION XV -ENDORSEMENTS .....ccoeotiiscrsrsimcersssmesmssnmssmsssesseseuessenssnsessssssssmsesssssseasssssnssnsssnnsansssassnsssnssnns 53
#1 ACCIDENTAL DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT .....c.cvccovevecmrimrssens 54
#2 CYBER AND TECHNOLOGY LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT .......ccoccoommrmmmscrsmssmmrsesesnsnesssnessenssnsssessasssens 55
#3 PUBLIC LAND FIRE SUPPRESSION AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT .....ccccecrcerermsmmmsenssnvessssanssens 71
#4 TERRORISM LIABILITY AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT .......ccoomrsmmcrcerssecscsssssssssssnssssmsessssssisesensssnes 72
#5 ASBESTOS REMEDIATION AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT .....cc.cocieesmmsmressmsusnssssnsssssessnsssssnsensanssen 74
#6 EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN ENDORSEMENT .......occiicccrmcessmeccmsssesescsnsssmssssssmsessessasssnsssssssasssessnssnns 745
#7 ATTORNEY CONSULTATION REIMBURSEMENT AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT ........ccccnemmienee 80

Language Effective October 1, 2019 ii ICRMP39A2020



DEFINED TERMS

A

Accident

Section |l 2
Actual Cash

Value

Section V 19
Administration

Section Xl 44
Aircraft

Section |l 2
Authorized

Employee

Section XV 59
Automobile

Section Il 2
B

Bodily Injury
Section Il 2
Section XIll 48

Breach
Response
Providers
Section XV 59

Breakdown
Section XV 77

C

Chemical
Spraying
Activities
Section XIV 51

Claim
Domestic

Partner XV63
Section X 42
Section XI 44
Section XIl 46
Section XIIl 48
Section XIV 51
Section XV 59

Claim Expenses
Section XV 60

Computer
Equipment
Section XV 77

Computer
System
Section V 19

Consumer
Redress
Amount
Section XV 60

Covered
Equipment
Section XV 77

Covered
Property
Section Il 2

Cyber Extortion
Expenses
Section XV 60

Cyber Extortion
Threat
Section XV 60

Cyber Security
Breach
Section XV 61

D

Damages
Section Il 2
Section XV 61

Data

Section XV 78
Data Breach
Section XV 62
Data Breach
Reporting
Requirement
Section XV 62
Data Breach
Response/Cris
is
Management
Costs
Section XV 62
Data Recovery
Expenses
Section XV 62
Dependent
Business
Section XV 61
Discrimination
Section Il 2
Dishonest or
Fraudulent
Acts
Section VI 30

Language Effective October 1, 2019

E

Earth Movement
Section V 19
Electronic Data
and Media
Section V 19
Employee
Section VI 30
Employee
Benefit
Program
Section Il 2
Employment
Harassment
Section I 3
Employment
Sexual
Harassment
Section |l 2
Executive Officer
Section XV 63
Extra Expense
Section XV 63
F

Fine Arts
Section V 19
Fire Suppression
Activites
Section VIII 38

Fire Suppression

Chemicals

Section VIII 38
First Aid

Section Il 3
First Made

Section I 3

First Party Costs
Section XV 63
First Party
Incident
Section XV 63
Flood
Section V 19
Flood Insurance

Rate Map

Section V 20
Fungi

Section Il 3

H

Hazardous
Substance
Section XV 78

Hostile Fire
Section VIII 38

I

Insured
Section I 3
Section VIl 33
Section VIl 38
Section X 42
Section XI 44

- Section XIl 46

Section XIV 48

Insured
Automobile
Section VII 33

J

Jail Operations
Section X 40
L

Loss
Section XV 63
Loss of
Business
Income
Section XV 63
M

Matter
Section XV 63
Media
Section XV 78
Media Wrongful
Act
Section XV 63
Medical
Expenses
Section VIl 33
Merchant
Services
Agreement
Section XV 64
Messenger
Section VI 30
Mobile

Equipment
Section Il 3
ICRMP39A2020



Money
Section XV 64
N

Named Insured

Section |l 3
Network

Section XV 64
Normal

Section V 20
0

Occupying
Section VII 34

Occurrence
Section Il 3

Section V 20
Section XIV 51
One Breakdown
Section XV 78
Operational
Disruption
Expense
Section V 20
Our
Section | 4
Outsourced
Provider
Section XV 64
P

PCI DSS Fines
and Costs
Section XV 64

PCI DSS
Wrongful Act
Section XV 65

Period of
Restoration
Section V 20
Section XV 64

Personal Injury
Section Il 3
Section IX 40

Personally
Identifiable
Information
Section XV 64

Policy Period
Section XV 65

Pollutant

Section 1l 3
Pollution Cost or
Expense
Section XV 54
Premises
Section Il 3
Section VI 30
Privacy
Regulatory
Action
Section XV 65
Privacy
Regulatory
Fine
Section XV 65
Privacy/Security
Wrongful Act
Section XV 65
Professional
Service
Section XV 65
Property
Damage
Section 1| 3
Protected Health
Information
Section XV 65
R

Regulatory
Damages
Section XV 65

Related Losses

Section XV 65

Related Matters
Section XV 66
Related Sexual
Molestation or
Sexual Abuse
Bodily Injury
Section XIlI 49
Replacement
Cost
SectionV 20
Retaliation
Section I 4
Retroactive Date
Section XV 66
Rogue Employee
Section XV 66

Language Effective October 1, 2019

S

Schedule of
Values
Section V 20
Securities
Section XV 66
Sexual
Molestation or
Sexual Abuse
Section XIIl 49
Social
Engineering
Financial
Fraud
SectionVl 30
Section XV 66
Social
Engineering
Financial
Fraud Loss
Section VI 30
Section XV 66
Special Flood
Hazard Area
Section V 20

Stock

Section XV 78
Student

Suit Il 4
Sublimit

Section XV 66
System Failure
Section XV 66
System Failure
Dependent
Business
Interruption
Loss
Section XV 66
System Failure
Losses
Section XV 67
T

Technology
Products
Section XV 67

Technology
Services
Section XV 67

Terrorism
Section |l 4
Section XVi 72

Third Party

Wrongful Act
Section XV 67
U

Underinsured
Automobile
Section VII 34

Uninsured
Automobile
Section VIl 34

Unmanned
Aircraft
System
Section Il 4

Us
Section i 4

\'

Vacant or
Unoccupied
Property
Section V 20

Valuable Papers
and Records
Section V 20

w

Waiting Period
Section XV 67

We
Section Il 4
Wrongful Act
Section 1] 4
Section IX 40
Wrongful

Employment

Practice Act

Section Il 4
Wrongful Taking

Section VI 30
Y

You
Section |l 4
Your
Section |l 4
ICRMP39A2020



SECTION | - GENERAL INSURING AGREEMENT

A. Unless otherwise stated in a specific subsequent section or endorsement, the following General Insuring
Agreements apply to all sections of this policy. Certain provisions in this policy restrict coverage or limit
damage amounts. The entire policy should be read carefully to determine your rights and duties, and to
determine what is and is not covered.

1. Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters (ICRMP) agrees with the named insured as
listed in the declarations pages of this policy made a part hereof, in consideration of the payment of the
member contribution and subject to the limits of indemnification, insuring agreements, conditions,
exclusions and other terms of this policy, as follows:

a. We will provide the insurance described in this policy and declarations pages if you have paid the
member contribution and have complied with all policy provisions and conditions.

b. The insurance set forth in this policy is subject to the limits of indemnification as indicated on the
declarations pages or as set forth within the policy or any other endorsements issued during this
term.

c. The liability insuring agreements afforded by this policy responding to covered claims for damages
brought pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 9, Idaho Code (the Idaho Tort Claims Act) are expressly limited
to five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per occurrence. It is the express intent of ICRMP to
limit exposure and coverage to the limit of $500,000 per covered claim, accident, occurrence,
claim or loss as established by statute. Any reference to liability indemnification amounts in excess
of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) contained in this policy shall not apply to claims brought
pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims Act.

d. By acceptance of this policy you agree that the declarations pages accurately indicate the
coverages you have purchased.

e. Alllimits of indemnification, including annual aggregate, are as stated in the declarations lpages or
within the accompanying policy.

f.  The insurance provided by this policy applies to any covered claim or lawstuit filed and maintained
only within the fifty (50) states, including the District of Columbia, of the United States of America.

g. Inregard to defense of claims or lawsuits, we may investigate or settle any covered claim or suit
against you. We will provide a defense with counsel of our choice, at our expense, if you are sued
for a covered claim. Our obligation to defend any claim or suit ends when either:

(1) The amount of loss or damages we pay equals the limit(s) of indemnification afforded as listed in
the declarations pages under this policy: or

(2) The defense costs incurred by us equal the defense costs limit for covered claims afforded under
this policy either for an individual claim, or in the aggregate as listed in the declarations pages
under this policy.

2. Entire Agreement. This policy, when read in concert with the Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement,
embodies the entirety of the agreement existing between you and us relating to this Insurance. You
acknowledge that the independent insurance agent responsible for maintaining information about your
insurance needs has no power to bind ICRMP to provide insurance beyond that expressed in this policy,
its endorsements, and its attendant declarations pages.

3. Titles. The titles in this policy are only for reference. The titles do not in any way affect the provisions of
this policy.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 1 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION Il - GENERAL DEFINITIONS

A. Unless otherwise stated or amended in a specific subsequent section or endorsement, the following definitions
are applicable to all sections and endorsements of this policy.

1.

2.

“Accident” means a sudden, unexpected and unintended event.
“Aircraft” means any contrivance used or designed to carry people in flight.

"Automobile™ means a motorized land vehicle principally licensed and designed for travel on public roads.
Automobile does not include mobile equipment.

"Bodily Injury” means physical injury, sickness, disease, shock, fright, mental injury or anguish, emotional
distress, or disability sustained by a natural person, including death resulting from any of these. Bodily Injury
does not include sexual molestation.

"Covered Property" means the following as listed on your schedule of values:

a. Real property, including buildings, remodeling, installations, and construction in which you have an
insurable interest.

b. Personal Property:
(1) Owned by you, including your interest as a tenant in improvements and betterments;
(2) Of your officers and employees of your property; or

(3) Of others in your custody to the extent you are under obligation to keep insured for physical loss or
damage insured;

c. Mobile equipment, towers, automobiles, and unmanned aircraft system you own, rent, or lease.

“Damages” means monetary compensation to be awarded through judgment in a court proceeding or
through settlement agreed to by us to compensate a claimant for harm suffered.

"Discrimination™ means any actual or alleged:
a. Violation of any employment discrimination law; or

b. Disparate treatment of, or the failure or refusal to hire a person because he or she is or claims to be a
member of a class which is or is alleged to be legally protected.

"Employee Benefit Program™ means group life insurance, group accident or health insurance, or group
dental, vision and hearing plans, retirement, profit sharing, unemployment insurance, or any other benefit
provided that no one other than an employee of the named insured may subscribe to such insurance or plans

and such benefits are made generally available to those employees who satisfy the plan’s eligibility
requirements.

“Employment Sexual Harassment” means any actual, attempted or alleged unwelcome sexual advances,
requests for sexual favors or any other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature of a person by another
person, or persons acting in concert, which causes harm when:

a. Submission to or rejection of such unwelcome conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a condition of
a person’s employment, or basis for employment decisions affect a person; or

b. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with a person’s work performance or
creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 2 ICRMP39A2020



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

. “Employment Harassment" means any actual or alleged harassment, other than employment sexual
harassment, which creates a work environment that interferes with job performance, or creates an
intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

. “First Aid” means the rendering of emergency medical treatment at the time of an accident and only when
other licensed medical professional care is not immediately available.

. "First Made" means when you first give written notice to us that a claim has been made against you, but not
later than the end of this policy period or any extended reporting period we provide. Reports of incidents or
circumstances made by you to us as part of risk management or loss control services shall not be considered
notice of a claim.

. “Fungi” means any organism of the plant kingdom Fungi, which lacks chlorophyll and vascular tissue,
including but not limited to, yeast, mold, mildew, rust, smut, mushrooms, spores, mycotoxins, or any other
substances, odors, or byproducts arising out of the current or past presence of fungi.

. "Insured" means:
a. The Named Insured and

b. Any current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named
insured, as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of
their duties as such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving
the named insured as an independent contractor.

. “Mobile Equipment” means equipment such as earthmovers, tractors, diggers, farm machinery, forklifts,
contractors’ equipment, medical equipment, etc., that even when self-propelled, are not considered
automobiles or vehicles.

. "Named Insured” means the public entity identified in the declarations pages of this policy.

. "Occurrence” means an accident or a continuous or repeated exposure to conditions which result in
personal injury or property damage during the policy period. All personal injury to one or more persons
and/or property damage arising out of an accident or a continuous or repeated exposure to conditions
shall be deemed one occurrence.

. "Personal Injury” means bodily injury, mental anguish, shock, sickness, disease, disability, wrongful
eviction, malicious prosecution, humiliation, invasion of rights of privacy, libel, slander or defamation of
character, piracy and any infringement of copyright of property, erroneous service of civil papers, assault,
battery and disparagement of property.

. “Pollutant(s)’ means:

a. Those materials that can cause or threaten damage to human health or human welfare or cause or threaten
damage, deterioration, loss of value, marketability or loss of use to property;

b. Any solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids,
alkalis, chemicals, metals and waste, including debris and trash and materials to be recycled,
reconditioned or reclaimed,;

c. Bacteria, fungi, mold, mildew, virus, silica, or hazardous substances as listed in the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, Clean Air Act, Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, Toxic Substances
Control Act or as designated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or any other governing
authority.

20. “Premises” means any real property or land possessed and controlled by you in your capacity as a

21

possessor.

. “Property Damage” means physical damage to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use
resulting from such physical damage or destruction.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 3 ICRMP39A2020



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

“Retaliation” means any actual or alleged wrongful termination or other adverse employment action by any
insured against a person or persons on account of:

a. Assistance, testimony or cooperation with a proceeding or investigation regarding alleged violations of
law; or

b. Exercise or attempted exercise of rights protected by law; or

c. Disclosure or threat to disclose to a superior or to any governmental agency alleged violations of the
law; or

d. Refusal to violate any law.

“Suit” means a civil proceeding in which damages because of “bodily injury”, “property damage” or “personal
injury” to which this insurance policy applies are alleged.

“Terrorism” means an act or series of acts, including the use of force or violence, of any person or group(s)
of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organization(s), committed for
political, religious or ideological purposes including the intention to influence any government and/or to put
the public or any section of the public in fear for such purposes. Terrorism shall also include any act which is
verified or recognized by the United States Government as an act of Terrorism.

“Unmanned Aircraft System” means an unmanned aircraft and the equipment necessary for the safe and
efficient operation of that aircraft. An unmanned aircraft is a component of an unmanned aircraft system. An
unmanned aircratft is an aircraft that is operated without the possibility of direct human intervention from within
the or on the aircraft.

‘We”, “Us” and “Our” means Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters (ICRMP).
"Wrongful Act" means the actual or alleged negligent performance of a legal duty or responsibility or failure
to perform a legal duty or responsibility, or any error, misstatement, act or omission respectively by you,
performed in a tortious manner pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims Act or unlawful violations of civil rights
pursuant to Federal law arising out of public office or position. Wrongful act is not a wrongful employment
practice act, as defined elsewhere in this policy.

“Wrongful Employment Practice Act” means any actual or alleged employment-related act or omission in
the form of one or more of the following;

a. Discrimination;

b. Employment-related libel, slander, defamation;

c. Employment sexual harassment or employment harassment.

d. Negligent hiring, supervision, training or retention.

e. Retaliation;

f.  Violation of the Family Medical Leave Act;

g. Wrongful discipline, deprivation of career opportunity, or evaluation;

h. Wrongful termination.

29. "You" and "Your" means the named insured identified in the declarations pages of this policy.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 4 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION Ill - GENERAL CONDITIONS

A. Unless otherwise stated in a specific subsequent section or endorsement, the following conditions are
applicable to all sections and endorsements of this policy.

1. Apportionment. In the event a suit alleges a claim which is covered by the terms of this policy and a
claim which is not covered by the terms of this policy, our obligation for the costs of defense and payment
of any award or settlement for damages shall be limited to only those sums related to a covered claim.

2. Assignment. Your interests in this insurance may not be assigned.

3. Bankruptcy and Insolvency. In the event of your bankruptcy or insolvency or any entity you comprise,
we shall not be relieved of the payment of any claim by you or against you or the liquidator, receiver or
statutory successor of you under this policy without diminution because of your insolvency provided that
you have timely paid your member contributions.

4, Cancellation and Nonrenewal.
a. Cancellation.

(1) You may cancel this policy by mailing or delivering to us advance written notice of cancellation.
Cancellation will be effective on the later of the date requested by you or the date we receive the
request.

(2) We may cancel this policy as follows:

(a) If this policy has been in effect for sixty (60) days or less, and is not a renewal of a policy we
issued, we may cancel this policy by mailing or delivering to you written notice of cancellation
at least:

(i) Ten (10) days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment of
member contribution; or

(i) Thirty (30) days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for any other reason.

(b) If this policy has been in effect for more than sixty (60) days, or is a renewal of a policy we
issued, we may cancel this policy by mailing or delivering to you written notice of cancellation
to you at least: :

(i) Ten (10) days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment of
member contribution; or

(i) Thirty (30) days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for one or more of
the following reasons:

1. Nonpayment of member contribution;

2. Fraud or material misrepresentation made by you or with your knowledge in
obtaining a policy, continuing the policy or in presenting a claim under the policy;

3. Acts or omissions on your part which increase any hazard insured against;

4. Change in the risk which materially increases the risk of loss after the policy has been
issued or renewed including, but not limited to, an increase in exposure due to
regulation, legislation or court decision;

Language Effective October 1, 2019 5 ICRMP39A2020



5. Loss of or decrease in reinsurance which provided us with coverage for all or part of
the risk insured,;

6. A determination by the Director of Insurance that continuation of this policy would
jeopardize our solvency or place us in violation of the insurance laws of Idaho or any
other state; or

7. Violation or breach by you of any policy terms or conditions other than nonpayment
of member contribution.

b. Nonrenewal.

(1) If we elect to not renew this policy, we will mail or deliver to you a written notice of intention not
to renew at least forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration date of the policy.

(2) If notice is not mailed or delivered at least forty-five (45) days before the expiration date of this
policy, this policy will remain in effect until forty-five (45) days after notice is mailed or delivered.

(3) We will not mail or deliver this notice if:
(a) We have offered to renew this policy; or
(b) You have obtained replacement coverage; or
(c) You have agreed in writing to obtain replacement coverage.

5. Currency. The member contribution and losses under this insurance are payable in currency of the
United States.

6. Deductibles. In each case of loss covered by this policy, we will be liable only if you sustain a loss in a
single occurrence greater than the underlying limit or the applicable deductible specified in the
declarations pages, insuring agreements or endorsements, and only for its share of that greater amount.
In the event of any occurrence resulting in loss or damage insured against under this policy for which two
or more deductibles apply, the total deductible shall not exceed the single largest deductible applicable
to the occurrence.

7. Dispute Resolution Procedure. You and we agree that it is in our mutual interest to have a dispute
resolution procedure in order to address potential disputes and disagreements as to whether or not a
claim is covered by the terms and conditions of this policy. You and we agree that the dispute resolution
procedure as set out in the Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement currently in force as of the effective date
of this policy shall apply to address any potential disputes and disagreements as to coverage.

a. Inapplicable to Certain Disputes and Disagreements:

(1) These dispute resolution procedures do not apply to the appraisal condition set forth in the
specific conditions applicable to the property Insuring Agreements in section V of this policy, or
to the arbitration condition set forth in the specific conditions applicable to the automobile liability
Insuring Agreements set out in section VII of this policy.

(2) These dispute resolution procedures do not apply in any way to our decisions regarding terms of
claim settlement, claim payment amount, or the claim investigation process.

8. Duties After Occurrence, Accident, Wrongful Act, Wrongful Employment Practice Act, Claim or
Suit.

a. Youmust see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an occurrence which may reasonably
result in a claim. To the extent possible, notice should include:

(1) How, when and where the occurrence, claim, accident, wrongful act, wrongful employment
practice act or suit took place;

Language Effective October 1, 2019 6 ICRMP39A2020



(2) The names, addresses and telephone numbers of any injured persons and witnesses; and

(3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the occurrence, accident,
wrongful act, wrongful employment practice act, claim or suit.

b. [If a claim is made or suit is brought against any insured, you and any involved insured must;

(1) Immediately send us copies of any claims, demands, notices, summonses or legal papers
received in connection with the claim, occurrence, accident, wrongful act, wrongful
employment practice act, claim or suit,

(2) See that we receive written notice of the claim or suit as soon as practicable;
(3) Authorize usto obtain records and other information, and provide a sworn statement, if requested;

(4) Cooperate with us in the investigation, or defense of the claim or swit, including but not limited
to, attendance at hearings and frials, securing and giving evidence, and obtaining the attendance
of witnesses; and

(5) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or organization
which may be liable to you because of injury or damage to which this Insurance may also apply.

c. You shall not, except at your own risk, voluntarily make a payment, assume any obligation, or incur
any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

d. Your failure to comply with the foregoing duties shall constitute a material breach deemed prejudicial
to us, thereby entitling us to refuse any coverage for the occurrence, accident, wrongful act,
wrongful employment practice act, claim or suit, or any duties arising therefrom.

e. Reports of incidents or circumstances made by you to us as part of risk management or loss control
services shall not be considered notice of a claim.

9. Extended Reporting Periods. All coverage sections designated as claims-made are conditioned as
follows if this policy is cancelled or not renewed for any reason, other than for non-payment of member
contribution or non-compliance with the terms and conditions of this policy:

a. We wili provide an Extended Reporting Period of thirty (30) days duration following immediately upon
the effective date nonrenewal or cancellation, to apply to a claim brought forth under the applicable
coverage section which is first made against you in writing to us but only by reason of a wrongful
act, occurrence, claim or wrongful employment practice act which first commences and was
sustained subsequent on or after the retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages and prior to
the effective date of this policy’s cancellation or termination, and which is otherwise afforded by all
coverages within this policy.

b. If, however, this policy is immediately succeeded by a similar claims-made insurance policy with any -
insurer, in which the retroactive date is the same as or earlier than that shown in the declarations
pages of this policy, the succeeding policy shall be deemed to be a replacement of this policy, and
the extended reporting period will not apply. Once in effect, an extended reporting period cannot be
canceled.

c. The extended reporting period does not reinstate or increase the limit(s) of indemnification applicable to
any coverages of this policy.

10. Inspections, Audit and Verification of Values. We shall be permitted, but not obligated, to review or
inspect your property, operations, records, and books, at any reasonable time. Neither our right to make
inspections or conduct reviews, nor the making thereof, nor any report thereon, shall constitute an
undertaking on behalf of or for the benefit of you or others, to determine or warrant that such property or
operations are safe or healthful. We will have no liability to you or any other person because of any
inspection or failure to inspect. It is your responsibility to disclose accurate statements of values.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 7 ICRMP39A2020




11. Loss Payments. When it has been determined that we are liable under this policy, we shall pay losses
in excess of the stated deductible up to the limits of indemnification stated in the declarations pages. Our
obligation to make loss payments shall arise as amounts owed are determined.

12. Misrepresentatioh and Fraud. This policy shall be void in entirety if, whether before or after a loss, you
have:

a. Willfully concealed or misrepresented any material fact or circumstance concerning this insurance, the
subject thereof, any insurance claim, or the interest of any insured.

b. Made any attempt to defraud us; or
¢. Made any false swearing.

13. Mitigation. In the event of a loss covered under this policy, you must take all reasonable steps to prevent
further loss or damage.

14. Multiple Insureds, Claims, Suits or Claimants. The limits of indemnification as stated in the
declarations pages is the most we will pay on your behalf under this policy regardless of the number of:

a. Insureds;
b. Claims made or suits brought; or
c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing suits.

15. No Benefit to Bailee. We will not recognize any assignment or grant any coverage for the benefit of any
person, entity or organization holding, storing or transporting your property, regardless of any other
provision of this policy.

16. Non-Stacking of Insurance Coverage. No individual or entity entitled to coverage under any coverage
section of this policy shall recover duplicate payment for the same elements of loss under other coverage
sections of this policy, or other policies written by us.

17. Non-Stacking of Limits.

a. Claims Made Coverage - Single Claim.

(1) All claims arising out of the same Errors and AOmissions Liability wrongful act or a series of
related Errors and Omissions Liability wrongful acts (Section X); or

(2) All claims arising out of the same Employee Benefit Liability wrongful act or a series of related
Employee Benefit Liability wrongful acts (Section XI); or

(3) Aliclaims arising out of the same Employment Practices Liability wrongful employment practice
act or a series of related Employment Practices Liability wrongful employment practice acts
(Section XII); or

(4) All claims arising out of the same Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse bodily injury occurrence
or a series of related Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse bodily injury occurrences (Section XIi);
or

(5) All claims arising out of the same Chemical Spraying Activities Liability occurrence or a series of
related Chemical Spraying Activities Liability occurrences (Section XIV),

shall be treated as a single claim considered first made against an insured during the policy period
or any extended reporting period when the first of such claims is made. Only the affected coverage
section’s limits of indemnification as stated in the declarations page for that policy period apply to
such single claim.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 8 ICRMP39A2020



b. Multiple Insuring Agreements - Single Claim.  If a single claim is covered under two or more
Insuring Agreements within a coverage section of this policy, our claim payment shall be limited to
the higher limit(s) of indemnification as shown in the declarations page, and its corresponding
deductible, if any, for that coverage section. If the affected Insuring Agreements have equal limits of
indemnification, only one set of limits of indemnification, and its corresponding deductible, if any, shall
apply and it shall be the Insuring Agreement of the coverage section we deem to provide primary
coverage for the claim.

c. Multiple Coverage Sections — Single Claim. If a single claim is covered under two or more coverage
sections of this policy, our claim payment shall be limited to that coverage section with the higher
limits of indemnification as shown in the declarations page, and its corresponding deductible, if any,
of this policy. If the affected coverage sections have equal limits of indemnification, only one set of
limits of indemnification, and its corresponding deductible, if any, shall apply and it shall be the
coverage section of this policy we deem to provide primary coverage for the claim.

d. Multiple Coverage Sections — Related Claims; Claims Made Coverage. If:

1) Two or more claims are covered under two or more coverage sections of this policy, or under an
- - . - . - y
preceding or succeeding policy we issue, that provide claims made coverage; and

(2) These claims are made against the same insured or the same perpetrator, or against two or more
insureds acting in concert or against two or more perpetrators acting in concert; and

(3) Without regard to number of ICRMP policy periods over which the acts, errors, omissions,
occurrences, events, accidents or wrongful acts take place,

such related claims shall be treated as a single claim considered first made during the policy
period or during any extended reporting period when the first of such covered claims is made. Any
claim payment(s) we make with respect to such single claim shall be limited to the coverage section
and corresponding limits of indemnification as shown in the declarations page, and its
corresponding deductible, if any, of the policy when the claim was considered first made.

e. Multiple Coverage Sections — Related Claims; Occurrence Coverage. If:

(1) Two or more claims are covered under two or more coverage sections of this policy, or under any
preceding or succeeding policy we issue, providing occurrence-based coverage; and

(2) These claims are made against the same insured or the same perpetrator, or against two or more
insureds acting in concert or against two or more perpetrators acting in concert; and

(3) Without regard to number of ICRMP policy periods over which the occurrences take place,

such related claims shall be treated as a single claim. The date of the first covered occurrence will
determine the policy and its respective coverage section applicable to such single claim. Any claim
payment(s) we make with respect to such single claim shall be limited to that policy’s coverage
section and its corresponding limits of indemnification as shown in the declarations page, and its
corresponding deductible, if any.

f. Multiple Coverage Sections — Related Claims; Claims Made / Occurrence Coverage. If:
(1) Two or more claims are covered under two or more coverage sections of this policy, or under any
preceding or succeeding policy we issue, that individually provide claims made coverage or

occurrence-based coverages; and

(2) These claims are made against the same insured or the same perpetrator, or against two or more
insureds acting in concert or against two or more perpetrators acting in concert; and

(3) Without regard to number of ICRMP policy periods over which the acts, errors, omissions,
occurrences, events, accidents or wrongful acts take place,

Language Effective October 1, 2019 9 ICRMP39A2020



such related claims shall be treated as a single claim. The policy and its corresponding coverage
section that shall apply to such single claim shall be determined by the earlier of:

(4) The date the first covered act, error, omission, occurrence, event, accident or wrongful act,
wrongful employment practice act, occurrence or other covered loss takes place with respect
to claims made coverage, conditioned upon that date being on or after the retroactive date, if any,
and before the end of the applicable policy period; or

(5) The date the first covered occurrence takes place with respect to occurrence-based coverage.

Any claim payment(s) we make with respect to such single claim shall be limited to the coverage
section and corresponding limits of indemnification as shown in the declarations page, and its
corresponding deductible, if any, of the policy determined by subparagraphs (4.) and (5.) above.

18. Notice of Member Contribution or Coverage Changes.

a. We will mail or have delivered to you through your independent agent, at the last known mailing
address, written notice of the following for a subsequent year at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration date of this policy:

(1) A total member contribution increase greater than ten percent (10%) which is the result of a
comparable increase in member contribution rates.

(2) Changes in deductibles.
(3)Reductions in limits of indemnification.
(4) Reductions in coverage.

b. If we fail to provide at least thirty (30) day notice, the policy previously provided to you shall remain
in effect until thirty (30) days after such notice is given or until the effective date of a replacement
policy or self-insurance obtained by you, whichever occurs first.

c. For purposes of this provision, notice is considered given on the date of mailing of the notice to you.
Proof of mailing of conditions of renewal to the last known mailing address of you shall be sufficient
proof of notice.

19. Other Insurance.

a. If you have other insurance (whether primary, excess or contingent), against loss covered by this
Insurance, we shall be liable, under the terms of this Insurance only as excess of other insurance,
collectable or not. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may purchase insurance specifically in excess
of this insurance. Such excess insurance shall not be considered "other insurance" for purposes of
this condition.

b. We will not be liable for any loss to the extent that you have collected such loss from others. Any
other insurance that would have provided primary coverage in the absence of the policy will not be
considered excess.

c. You are permitted to have other insurance for all, or any part, of any deductible in this policy. The
existence of such other insurance will not prejudice recovery under this policy. If the limits of liability
of such other insurance are greater than this policy’s applicable deductible, this policy’s insurance will
apply only after such other insurance has been exhausted.

d. In the event this policy is deemed to contribute with other insurance, the limit of liability applicable at
each covered property, for purposes of such contribution with other insurers, will be the latest
amount described in this policy or the latest covered property value listed on your schedule of
values.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 10 ICRMP39A2020



20. Policy Modification. This policy contains all of the agreements between you and us concerning this
insurance. You or we may request changes to this policy. This policy can only be changed by
endorsements issued by us and made a part of this policy. Notice to any agent or knowledge possessed
by any agent or by any other person will not:

a. Create a waiver, or change any part of this policy; or
b. Prevent us from asserting any rights under the provisions of this policy.

21. Reporting Property on Your Schedule of Values. Coverage is conditioned upon information being
entered into the online ICRMP e-Agent website by your agent. It is the responsibility of the independent
insurance agent to enter information into the online ICRMP e-Agent website. It is the responsibility of you
to report the required information to your agent.

22. Salvage. The salvage value of your damaged property may be credited against the amount we pay to
replace your damaged property if you retain said property.

23. Subrogation/Recovery/Right of Reimbursement. If we make payment under this policy to you or on
yourbehalf, and you or the person or entity for whom payment was made has a right to recover damages,
we will be subrogated to that right. You must do whatever is necessary to enable us to exercise our
rights and must do nothing to prejudice our rights. We may prosecute an action or pursue other [awful
proceedings in your name for the recovery of these payments, and you must cooperate and assist us at
our request. Any recovery from subrogating proceedings, less costs incurred by us in such proceedings,
will be payable to you in the proportion that the amount of (1) any applicable deductible and/or (2) any
provable uninsured loss, bears to the entire provable loss amount.

24. Suit Against Us. No suit, action or proceeding for the recovery of any claim will be sustained in any
court of law or equity unless the following procedures are satisfied:

a. As a condition precedent to filing suit, you have fully complied with all the provisions of this policy and
the ICRMP Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement;

b. Any suit against us arising from a claim or loss must be filed within the State of Idaho allowable statute
of limitations from the date we take our final action with respect to the claim or loss;

c. No one shall have any right to join us as a party to any action against an insured.

25. Terms of Policy to Conform to Statutes. In the event any terms of this policy are determined to be in
conflict with the statutes of the State of Idaho, they are hereby amended to conform to such statutes.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 11 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION IV - GENERAL EXCLUSIONS

A. Unless otherwise stated in a specific subsequent section or endorsement, the following exclusions are
applicable to all sections of this policy. This policy does not cover in whole or in part, arising directly or
indirectly out of, or resulting from any personal injury, bodily injury, damages, claim, property damage,
damage to covered property, wrongful act, wrongful employment practice act, cost, expense or any
other type of loss, however characterized for:

1. Aircraft. This policy does not cover any claim resulting from or arising out of the ownership, maintenance,
use or entrustment to others of any aircraft, airfields, runways, or fueling stations related to aviation
activities.

2. Asbestos, Dioxin or Polychlorinated Biphenyls. This policy does not cover any claim caused by,
resulting from, or contributed to by:

a. The use of, sale of, installation of, removal of, abatement of, distribution of, containment of, or exposure
to asbestos, asbestos products, asbestos-containing material, asbestos fibers, asbestos dust, dioxin
or polychlorinated biphenyis; or

b. The actual or threatened abatement, mitigation, removal or disposal of asbestos, asbestos products,
asbestos-containing material, asbestos fibers, asbestos dust, dioxin or polychlorinated biphenyls; or

c. Any supervision, instructions, recommendations, warnings or advice given, or which should have been
given in connection with parts a. and b. above; or

d. Any obligation of the covered party to indemnify or contribute with any party in connection with parts
a., b. or c. above.

3. Bids or Estimates. This policy does not cover any claim arising out of estimates of probable costs, or
cost estimates being exceeded, or for faulty preparation of bid specifications or plans.

4. Civil and Criminal Penalties. This policy does not cover any claim resulting from any civil penalties,
criminal penalties, fines or obligations to pay for public services rendered where such obligation is
imposed or provided for pursuant to any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, or regulation,
however characterized, except as expressly provided elsewhere, herein.

5. Claims by Members against Past or Present Public Officials. This policy does not cover the interest
of any past or present employee, elected official, or agent arising out of any claim for money damages,
monetary reimbursement or specific performance brought against such employee, elected official or agent
by the named insured by whom the public official, employee, elected official or agent was employed or
retained. Also excluded are those claims brought by an elected official, or by one appointed to fill an
elected position for a named insured against another official of the same named insured, or the named
insured itself, arising out of a dispute or interpretation involving the relative governmental authority of the
elected officials of the named insured.

8. Contractual Liability. This policy does not cover a claim where the alleged harm for which compensation
is sought derives from:

a. The performance or nonperformance of terms of a contract, whether written, oral or implied, or
concerns the measure of payment related to contract performance, derives from fines, penalties or
administrative sanctions imposed by a governmental agency, or is generated by intergovernmental
determination, calculation, handling or allocation of funds according to the law. The claims for which
this policy provides defense and indemnification must arise out of conduct of a tortious nature or be
premised upon allegations of unlawful violation of civil rights pursuant to state or federal law.

b. The interests of the State of Idaho or the United States Government, or their officers, agents,
employees, volunteers, officials or trustees, for their conduct and activities arising out of or in any way
related to any written, oral or implied contract or agreement with you, or otherwise. Each governmental
entity shall be responsible for its own conduct and activities under any contract.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 12 ICRMP39A2020



7. Course and Scope. This policy does not cover any claim resulting from an act or omission outside the
course and scope of employment or any act performed with malice or criminal intent. This exclusion
applies regardless of whether any insured is actually charged with, or convicted of, a crime.

8. Cyber Liability. This policy does not cover:

a. Any claim, notification costs, credit monitoring expenses, forensic expenses, loss of, loss of use
of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability to manipulate electronic data; public
relations expenses or any other loss; costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly out of, resulting
from, caused by or contributed to by losses related to computer-connected access to and/or
computer disclosure of any person’s or organization’s confidential or personal information, including
patents, trade secrets, processing methods, customer lists, financial information, credit card
information, health information or any other type of non-public information, except for that data that
is required to be disclosed under the Idaho Public Records Act; or

b. Any functioning or malfunctioning of the internet or similar facility, or of any intranet or private
network or similar facility, including but not limited to computer virus. For this exclusion, computer
virus shall mean a set of corrupting, harmful or otherwise unauthorized instructions or code
including a set of maliciously introduced unauthorized instructions or code, programmatic or
otherwise, that propagate themselves through a computer system or network of whatsoever nature.
Computer Virus includes but is not limited to 'Trojan Horses', 'worms' and 'time or logic bombs’; or

c. Any corruption, destruction, distortion, erasure or other loss or damage to data, software, or any
kind of programming or instruction set; or

d. Loss of use or functionality whether partial or entire of data, coding, program, software, any
computer or computer system or other device dependent upon any microchip or embedded logic,
and any ensuing liability or failure of the Insured to conduct business; or

e. The failure of any of the following, whether owned by you or others due to the inability of these
items to correctly recognize, process, or accept one or more dates or times as their true calendar
date or time:

(1) Data processing equipment, software, data, or media;

(2) Hardware or software-based computer operating systems;

(3) Microprocessors;

(4) Integrated circuits; or,

(5) Any other electronic equipment, computerized equipment, or similar devices;

9. Eminent Domain. This policy does not cover any claim arising out of or in any way connected with the
operation of the principles of eminent domain, condemnation proceedings, inverse condemnation,
annexation, regulatory takings, land use regulation, or planning and zoning activities or proceedings,
however any such matters may be characterized, whether such liability accrues directly against you or
by virtue of any agreement entered into by or on your behalf

10. Employee Benefits. This policy does not cover any employee benefit related claim:

a. Arising directly or indirectly out of the failure of any investment in or by any employee benefit
program including but not limited to stocks, bonds or mutual funds to perform as represented by an
insured or by any party authorized by an insured to offer benefits to employees.

b. Arising directly or indirectly out of the negligence, financial failure or breach of contract by any

health or employee benefit provider that the named insured contracts with to provide employee
benefits.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 13 ICRMP39A2020



Based upon an insured’s failure to comply with any law concerning worker’'s compensation,
unemployment insurance, social security or disability benefits.

Arising out of an insufficiency of funds to meet any obligations under any plan included in the
employee benefit program.

For benefits to the extent that such benefits are available, with reasonable effort and cooperation of
the insured, from the applicable funds accrued or other collectible insurance.

For errors in providing information on past performance of investment vehicles or advice given by
an insured to participate or not to participate in or by any employee benefit program.

Arising directly or indirectly out of insolvency, poor performance, misrepresentation, or any other
wrongful conduct of any employee benefit program provider.

For which any insured is liable because of liability imposed on a fiduciary by the Employee
Retirement Security Act of 1974, as now or hereafter amended, or by any similar federal, state or
local laws.

11. Employee Defendants in Criminal Actions. This policy does not cover any obligation of a named
insured to make payments pursuant to ldaho Code § 6-610A, which provides for the payment of
defense costs on behalf of certain employees of governmental entities who are named as defendants in
a criminal action.

12. Fungi. This policy does not cover any claim caused by, arising out of, contributed to or resulting from or
produced by:

a.

b.

Any fungus(i) or spore(s);
Any solid, liquid, vapor or gas produced by or arising out of any fungus(i) or spore(s);

Any material, product, building component, or building structure that contains, harbors, nurtures or
acts as a medium for any fungus(i) or spore(s);

Any intrusion, leakage, or accumulation of water or any other liquid that contains, harbors, nurtures
or acts as a medium for fungus(i) or spore(s);

The actual or threatened abatement, mitigation, removal or disposal of fungus(i) or spore(s) or any
material, product, building component, or building structure that contains, harbors, nurtures or acts
as a medium for any fungus(i) or spore(s);

Any supervision, instructions, recommendations, warnings or advice given, or which should have
been given in connection with subparagraphs a. through e. above; or

Any obligation to indemnify or contribute with any party in connection with subparagraphs a. through
f. above. For this exclusion fungus(i) includes, but is not limited to, any form or type of mold,
mushroom or mildew and spore(s) inciude any reproductive body produced by or arising out of any
fungus(i).

13. Hostile or Warlike. This policy does not cover any claim for:

a.

Hostile or warlike action in time of peace or war, including action in hindering, combating or
defending against an actual, impending or expected attack by any:

(1) Government or sovereign power (de jure or de facto);
(2) Military, naval or air force; or

(3) Agent or authority of any party specified in (1) or (2) above.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 14 ICRMP39A2020




b. Discharge, explosion or use of any nuclear device, weapon or material employing or involving
nuclear fission, fusion or radioactive force, whether in time of peace or war and regardless of who
commits the act.

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, civil war, usurped power, or action taken by governmental
authority in hindering, combating or defending against such an event.

d. Seizure or destruction under quarantine or custom regulation, or confiscation by order of any
governmental or public authority.

e. Risks of contraband, or illegal transportation or trade.

14. Limits on Defense of Claims or Suit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this policy, we will have
no duty to investigate or defend any claim, suit, dispute, disagreement or other proceeding seeking
relief or redress in any form other than money damages, including but not limited to costs, fees, fines,
penalties or expenses which any insured may become obligated to pay as a result of a consent decree,
settlement, adverse judgment for declaratory relief or injunctive relief. Such denial of investigation or
defense includes, but shall not be limited to any claim, suit, dispute, disagreement or other proceeding:

a. By or on behalf of any named insured, whether directly or derivatively, against:
(1) Any other named insured; or
(2) Any other federal, state or local governmental entity or political subdivision.

b. By the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of any insured for consequential injury as a
result of any injury to an insured, or

c. Involving any intergovernmental agreement where any named insured is a party to the
agreement(s).

15. Incidental Medical Liability. This policy does not cover any claim arising out of the rendering of or failure
to render the following professional health care services:

a. Medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing service or treatment or the furnishing of food or beverages
in connection therewith; or

b. Any professional medical service by a physician, except supervisory physicians as defined by ldaho
Code § 6-902A (2) (b), and only when performing those duties as outlined in Idaho Code § 6-902A
(2) (@).; or

c. Any professional medical service by a physician’s assistant, nurse practitioner or nurse; or
d. Furnishing or dispensing of drugs or medical, dental or surgical supplies or appliances.

16. Intentional Acts. This policy does not cover any claim resulting from an act or omission intended or
expected or deliberated on from the standpoint of any insured to cause personal injury, bodily injury
or property damage to others or damage to covered property. This exclusion applies even if the
personal injury, bodily injury or property damage is of a different kind or degree, or is sustained by a
different person or property, than that intended or expected or deliberated on. This exclusion shall not
apply to a claim resulting from the use of reasonable force to protect persons or property, or in the
performance of a duty of the insured.

17. Intergovernmental Claims. This policy does not cover any claim alleging loss or damage arising or in
any way related to a dispute or disagreement between an ICRMP member and another governmental
entity, including another political subdivision, a state or the government of the United States involving any
of the following:

a. Claims of loss or damage between an ICRMP member and another governmental entity wherein
there has been no accident or allegation of actual bodily injury or property damage.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 15 ICRMP39A2020



b. The respective authority of public agencies to use governmental powers, irrespective of the style or
nature of such claim.

c. The respective duty of public agencies to use governmental powers, irrespective of the style or
nature of such claim.

d. Intergovernmental disputes or disagreements concerning The exercise of powers or acceptance or
assignment of duties by governmental entities to carry out public activities whether damages are
claimed as a result of such dispute or disagreement, or not.

e. Claims in any way related to allocation of financial responsibilities between or among public
agencies.

18. Investigatory, Disciplinary or Criminal Proceedings. This policy does not cover any claim arising from
any investigatory, disciplinary or criminal proceeding against an insured, except that we may at our own
option, associate counsel in the defense of any such investigatory, administrative or disciplinary
proceeding. Should we elect to associate counsel, such election shall not constitute a waiver or estoppel
of any rights we may have pursuant to the terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations of this policy.

19. Lead. This policy does not cover any claim caused by or contributed to by lead as described in parts a.
through d. below:

a. Bodily injury, property damage or personal injury arising out of, resulting from, caused by or
contributed to by the toxic or pathological properties of lead, lead compounds or lead contained in
any materials;

b. Any cost or expense to abate, mitigate, remove or dispose of lead, lead compounds or materials
containing lead;

c. Any supervision, instructions, recommendations, warnings or advice given, or which should have
been given in connection with parts a. or b. of this subsection above; or

d. Any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages in connection
with parts a., b. or c. of this subsection.

20. Miscalculation or Legality of Assessments. This policy does not cover any claim Involving
miscalculation or legality of assessments, adjustments, disbursements, fees, licenses or the collection of
taxes, fines or penalties, including those imposed under the Internal Revenue Code or any state or local
law, however described.

21. Nuclear, Chemical and Biological Incident. This policy does not cover a claim arising from:

a. Nuclear detonation, reaction, radiation, radioactive contamination or hazardous properties of nuclear
material of any type, however caused or characterized, including any loss or damage by fire resulting
therefrom; ‘

b. The dispersal, application or release of, or exposure to, chemical or biological materials or agents
that are harmful to property or human health, whether controlled or uncontrolled, or due to any act or
condition incidental to any of the foregoing, whether such loss be proximate or remote, or be in whole
or in part caused by, contributed to or aggravated by any physical loss or damage insured against by
this policy, however such dispersal, application, release or exposure may have been caused.

22. Opinion, Treatment, Consultation or Service. This policy does not cover any claim based upon or
attributable to the rendering or failure to render any opinion, treatment, consultation or service, if such
opinion, treatment, consultation or service was rendered or failed to have been rendered while any
insured was engaged in any activity for which they received compensation from any source other than
as a public entity or an employee of a public entity.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 16 ICRMP39A2020



23. Pollution. This is an absolute pollution exclusion. It is the intention of you and we that there is absolutely
no coverage arising out of or relating to pollutants, however characterized or defined. This policy does
not cover any injury, loss, damage, costs, fines, penalties or expenses of any kind directly or indirectly
arising out of the actual, alleged or threatened existence, discharge, dispersal, release or escape of
pollutants or negligence in any way related thereto:

a. Atorfrom premises you now, or in the past, have owned, rented or occupied, including but not limited
to premises that you have operated or managed as an involuntary possessor: or

b. At or from any site or location used by or for you or others for the handling, storage, disposal,
processing or treatment of waste at any time; or

c. That at any time involves the transportation, handling, storage, treatment, disposal or processing by or
for you or any person or organization for whom you may be legally responsible:

(1) At or from any site or location on which you or any contractors or subcontractors working
directly or indirectly on your behalf are performing operations; or

(2) If the pollutants are brought on or to the site or location in connection with such operations: or

(3) If the operations are to test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize
the pollutants;

d. Whether caused or alleged to have been caused by the named insured or any other person, entity or
third-party, however characterized; or

e. Arising out of any direction, request or order of any governmental agency, court of law, or other
authority, that you test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize pollutants,
including any and all costs or attorney's fees associated therewith; or

f. Arising out of the failure of the named insured to prevent or regulate pollutants generated or caused
by any other person, entity, or third-party, however characterized; and

g. This exclusion shall not apply to tear gas or mace as applied by law enforcement personnel within the
scope of their duties.

24. Professional Board. This policy does not cover any claim for any insured arising out of the rendering
of or failure to render services as a member of a formal accreditation or similar board or committee of an
insured, or as a person charged with the duty of executing directives of any such board or committee or
officer or director, or other official of any organization, other than the named insured. This exclusion
does not apply if an insured is serving at the direction of or on behalf of the named insured and is acting
within the scope of their duties as such.

25. Punitive Damages. This policy does not cover any claim for exemplary or punitive damages, however
characterized.

26. Silica. This policy does not cover any claim caused by or contributed to by silica as described in
paragraphs a. and b. below:

a. Bodily injury, property damage, or personal injury arising out of, resulting from, caused by, or
contributed to by silica, exposure to silica or the use of silica, except for road or pedestrian way
maintenance applications or operations;

b. Any damages, loss, cost or expense arising out of any:

(1) claim or suit by or on behalf of any governmental authority or any other alleged responsible party
because of, or request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement that any covered
party or any other person or entity should be, or should be responsible for:

(i) Assessing the presence, absence, amount or effects of silica:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 17 ICRMP39A2020



(i) Identifying, sampling or testing for, detecting, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, abating, disposing of or mitigating silica; or

(iii) Responding to silica in any way other;

(2) supervision, instructions, recommendations, warnings or advice given, or which should have been
given in connection with any of the paragraphs a. or b. above; or

(3) obligation to share damages with or repay someone else in connection with any of the provisions
of paragraphs a. or b. above.

27. Terrorism. This policy does not cover any claim loss, damage, cost or expense of whatsoever nature
directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from or in connection with or any action taken in controlling,
preventing, suppressing terrorism whether controlled or uncontrolled, proximate or remote, sudden or
over any length of time, or which is contributed to or aggravated by any other cause or event. Such
terrorism is excluded regardless of any other cause or event occurring concurrently or in any sequence
with such terrorism, whether followed by fire or other perils, and whether certified as terrorism or not by
the United States government.

28. Wages. This policy does not cover any claim for back wages or legal penalties to which an employee is
lawfully entitled for work performed, including any claim for wages, damages, liquidated damages or any
other form of compensation, however characterized, pursuant to, or derived in any way, from an
employer’s responsibility to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act or other state or federal statute
directing the manner or amount of payment of compensation to employees.

29. Watercraft. This policy does not cover any claim involving the ownership, maintenance or use, including
loading and unloading, of watercraft over fifty (50) feet in length.

30. Workers’ Compensation and Other Benefits Laws. This policy does not cover any claim to any
obligation for which you may be held liable under any workers' compensation, unemployment
compensation, disability benefits law, employer's liability, or under any similar federal, state or local law,
ordinance, rule or regulation, however characterized, as well as any claim or suit by a spouse, child,
parent or sibling of an insured as a consequence of personal injury to an insured.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 18 ICRMP39A2020




SECTION YV - PROPERTY INSURANCE

A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Property Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements located
in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the below listed insuring agreements are subject to
Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this policy,
unless amended as stated within this Section.

1.

Buildings, Structures and Property. We agree to pay you, or on your behalf, for an occurrence of direct
accidental physical loss of or direct accidental physical damage, including terrorism, to your covered property
provided such loss or damage occurs during the policy period specified in the declaration pages.

Mobile Equipment and Automobile Physical Damage. We agree to pay you, or on your behalf, for an
occurrence of direct accidental physical loss of or direct accidental physical damage including terrorism, to
any automobile or mobile equipment owned by you, or any automobile or mobile equipment for which you
have an obligation to provide adequate insurance because of an ownership or possessory interest, provided
such loss or damage occurs during the policy period specified in the declaration pages.

Definitions Applicable to Property Insuring Agreements

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section Il
General Definitions of this policy.

1.

"Actual Cash Value™ means the amount it would cost to repair or replace damaged or destroyed covered
property, on the date of loss, with material of like kind and quality, with proper deduction for obsolescence and
physical depreciation.

. “Computer System” means a system of computer hardware, software, and associated electronic devices that

you operate or own.

. “Earthquake” means a shaking or trembling of the earth that is tectonic or seismic in origin.

“Earth Movement” means any natural or man-made earth movement, including but not limited to earthquake,
seaquakes, landslides, submarine landslides, avalanches, subsidence or volcanic eruption regardless of any
other cause or event contributing concurrently or in any other sequence of loss. However, physical damage by
fire, explosion, or sprinkler leakage resulting from earth movement will not be considered to be loss by earth
movement within the terms and conditions of this policy. All earth movement within a continuous 168-hour
period will be considered a single earth movement; the beginning of such period shall be determined by you.

. “Electronic Data and Media” means all forms of data, converted data, electronically converted data and/or

programs and/or applications and/or instructions and/or media vehicles employed.

. “Fine Arts” means manuscripts; paintings; etchings; pictures; murals; tapestries; rare or art glass; art glass

windows; valuable rugs; statuary; sculptures; antique furniture; antique jewelry; bric-a-brac; porcelains; and
similar property of rarity, historical value, or artistic merit excluding automobiles, coins, stamps, furs, jewelry,
precious stones, precious metals, watercraft, aircraft, money, securities.
“Flood” means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land from:
a. Flood, or rising waters, waves, tide, or tidal water;

b. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface water from any source; or,

c. Mudslide or mud flow caused by accumulation of water on or under the ground; The overflow of inland or tidal
waters outside the normal watercourse or natural boundaries;

d. The release of water, the rising, overflowing or breaking of boundaries of natural or man-made bodies of
water, or the spray therefrom.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 19 ICRMP39A2020




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

e. However, physical damage by fire, explosion or sprinkler leakage resulting from flood is not considered to be
loss by flood within the terms and conditions of this policy. All flooding within a continuous 168-hour period
will be considered a single flood, the beginning of such period shall be determined by you.

. “Flood Insurance Rate Map” means the official map of a community on which the administrator has designated

the special hazards are applicable to the community.
“Normal” means the condition that would have existed had no physical loss or damage occurred.

“Occurrence” means any one loss, disaster, casualty or series of losses, disasters or casualties, arising out of
one event. When the term applies to loss or losses from the perils of tornado, cyclone, hurricane, windstorm,
snow or ice storm, named storm, hail, volcanic eruption, riot, riot attending a strike, civil commotion, and
vandalism and malicious mischief one event shall be construed to be the cause of all losses arising during a
continuous period of 72 hours. When filing a loss, you may elect the moment at which the 72-hour period shall
be deemed to have commenced, which shall not be earlier than the first loss to the covered property occurs.

“QOperational Disruption Expense” means costs incurred by the named insured in order to continue as nearly
as practicable the normal operation of your public entity immediately following a covered loss. This includes
the loss of any income, net of expenses, incurred during the period of restoration of the operation of the public
entity.

“Period of Restoration” means that period of time that begins with the date of the direct physical loss of or
direct physical damage to covered property and ends with the date when such part of the covered property
as has been lost or damaged could, with the exercise of your due diligence or dispatch, be rebuilt, or replaced.

“Replacement Cost” means the cost to repair, rebuild or replace with new materials of like kind, size and
quality, without deduction for depreciation.

“Schedule of Values” means those records describing covered property as entered into the ICRMP database
by your independent insurance agent and kept on file with us.

“Special Flood Hazard Area” means the areas of flood insurance rate map which are identified as Zones A,
AO, AH, Al —A30, AE, A99, AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/A1 — A30, AR/AH, AR/AQ, V, V1-V30, and VE. For purposes
of determining which areas qualify as special flood hazard areas as specified above, only those flood
insurance rate maps which were in effect at the time of the flood loss shall apply.

“Vacant or Unoccupied Property” means a building is vacant or unoccupied if less than 10% of its total square
footage is used by you to conduct customary operations, excluding common areas such as lobbies and garages.
Buildings under construction or renovation shall not be considered vacant or unoccupied property. Buildings
with the same security and fire protection and have all heating and cooling systems still in operation that existed
prior to being vacant shall not be considered vacant or unoccupied property. Buildings that are normally
vacant during parts of the year shall not be considered vacant or unoccupied property.

“Valuable Papers and Records” means writien, printed or otherwise inscribed documents, securities, and
records including but not limited to books, maps, films, drawings, abstracts, evidence of debt, deeds, mortgages,
mortgage files, manuscripts and micro or electronically/magnetically inscribed documents, but not including the
monetary value of monies and/or securities

Specific Conditions Applicable to Property Insuring Agreements

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section Il
General Conditions of this policy.

1. Additional Coverages. This section includes various additional coverages for physical loss or damage insured

by this section. These additional coverages:
a. Are subject to the applicable limit of liability;

b. Wil not increase the overall policy limit of liability; and

Language Effective October 1, 2019 20 ICRMP39A2020



c. Are subject to the policy and the section provisions, including applicable exclusions and deductibles.

2. Appraisal. The appraisal process is available to determine the value of a covered loss but is not available to
determine whether a loss is covered.

a. If youand we fail to agree on the amount of loss, each will, on the written demand of either, select a competent
and disinterested appraiser. Each will notify the other of the appraiser selected within thirty (30) days of such
demand. The two appraisers shall first select a competent, disinterested umpire. If the two appraisers fail
to agree upon an umpire within thirty (30) days, you and we shall jointly move to have an umpire selected by
a district judge in the State of Idaho to select an umpire. The appraisers shall then identify each item of
physical damage or loss and appraise the amount of loss. The appraisal shall include a detailed breakdown
of the costs necessary to repair or replace the item and shall state separately the actual cash value and
replacement cost value as of the date of loss and the amount of loss, for each item of physical loss or
damage. If the appraisers fail to agree within fourteen (14) days, they shall submit their differences to the
umpire.

b. The umpire shall review the appraisals prepared by the appraisers selected by you and us and shall inspect
the property prior to preparing the appraisal. The appraisers for you and us shall be afforded the opportunity
to attend the umpire’s inspection of the property and provide sufficient input to allow the umpire to understand
the nature and reasons for the differences between the appraisals. After inspecting the property and receiving
input from the appraisers, the umpire shall identify each item of physical loss or damage and shall appraise
the amount of loss for each item. The umpire’s appraisal shall include a detailed breakdown of the costs
necessary to repair or replace the item and shall state separately the actual cash value and replacement
cost value as of the date of the loss. An award agreed to in writing by any two of the three appraisers will
determine the amount of loss. The appraisal award is subject to all terms of the coverage document and may
be reduced by the application of a deductible called for by this policy.

c. You and we will each:
(1) Pay its chosen appraiser; and
(2) bear equally the other expense of the appraisal and umpire.

d. A demand for appraisal shall not relieve you of your continuing obligation to comply with the terms and
conditions of this policy. We will not be held to have waived any of its right by any act relating to appraisal.

3. Automobiles and Mobile Equipment that are Leased or Rented. Automobiles and mobile equipment that
are leased or rented to an insured, for less than ninety (90) days, and used for official business, are covered
under Insuring Agreement 2, and are not required to be listed on the schedule of values.

4. Automobiles or Mobile Equipment Owned by Employees or Authorized Volunteers. Automobiles or
mobile equipment owned by employees or authorized volunteers of the named insured are provided
secondary physical damage insurance while the automobiles or mobile equipment are being used by the
employee or authorized volunteers on official business of the named insured. Insurance provided by this
condition shall be deemed secondary to the insurance of the employee or authorized volunteers' personal
insurance, which shall be primary insurance. The intent of this special condition shall not be interpreted to
extend insurance to automobiles owned by other public or private entities, which are made available to you,
your employees or volunteers. For these non-owned automobiles, the terms and conditions already contained
in this section shall apply. This condition does not apply to automobiles or mobile equipment owned by
authorized volunteers engaged in search and rescue activities. Insuring Agreement 2 is intended to provide
primary insurance for search and rescue volunteers only when actively participating in search and rescue
mobilizations initiated by the named insured.

5. Claim Preparation Fees and Expenses. This section covers the actual costs incurred by you for reasonable
fees payable to your accountants, architects, auditors, engineers, or other professionals for producing and
certifying any particulars or details contained in your books or documents, or such other proofs, information or
evidence required by us resulting from an insured loss payable under this policy for which we have accepted
liability. Coverage will not include the fees and costs of attorneys, public adjusters, and loss appraisers, all
including any of their subsidiary, related or associated entities either partially or wholly owned by them or retained

Language Effective October 1, 2019 21 ICRMP39A2020



by them for the purpose of assisting them. Claim preparation fees and expenses are limited to a maximum of
$100,000 per occurrence.

6. Debris Removal. This section covers the reasonable and necessary costs incurred to remove debris from your
covered property that remains as a direct result of physical loss or damaged insured by this section. This
additional coverage does not cover the costs of removal of contaminated uninsured property or the contaminant
in or on uninsured property whether or not the contamination results from insured physical loss or damage.
Contamination includes, but is not limited to, the presence of a pollutant or hazardous material. Debris removal
expenses are limited to a $2,500,000 or 25% of the loss, whichever is greater, per occurrence.

7. Deductibles.

a. Flood Type 1: As respects buildings or structures wholly or partially situated in a special flood hazard area
the following deductibles shall apply separately for loss from the peril of flood, as covered and defined under
the National Flood Insurance Program:

(1) for all coverages insured against under this section, if you purchase coverage from the National Flood
Insurance Program, the deductible shall be the greater of the amount recoverable from the National Flood
Insurance Program or the actual cash value, not to exceed $500,000. This deductible shall apply for
each building or each structure for real property, and for contents at each building or each structure.

(2) for all coverages insured against under this section, if you do not purchase coverage from the National
Flood Insurance Program, or the property is not eligible for coverage from the National Flood Insurance
Program, or in the event the National Flood Insurance Program lapses or is discontinued, the deductible
shall be $ 500,000 at each building or each structure for real property, $ 500,000 for contents at each
building or each structure, and $500,000 each for any other covered property.

(3) Ifthe community is participating in the Emergency Program under the National Flood Insurance Program,
$500,000 as noted within this condition: Deductibles, a. (1) above is replaced with $100,000. If the
property is eligible for coverage in the Emergency Program, $500,000 as noted within this condition:
Deductibles a. (2) is replaced with $100,000.

(4) However, these deductibles shall not apply to covered property located outside of an area designated
as a special flood hazard area nor to ensuing physical loss, or damage or destruction not otherwise
excluded herein. Further, the deductibles described under this condition 8., a., paragraphs (1), (2), and
(3) above shall apply individually.

b. Flood Type 2: For all other flood losses, the deductible shall be as stated on the declarations pages at the
beginning of this policy.

c. As respects losses from any other covered peril, the deductible shall be as stated on the declarations pages
at the beginning of this policy.

8. Inadvertently Omitted Property: We will pay up to the first $500,000 for covered property inadvertently omitted
from your schedule of values. Additionally, for any inadvertently omitted covered property valued in excess of
$500,000, we will pay up to 50% of the amount in excess of $500,000 up to a total of $1,000,000.

9. Increased Cost of Construction. This section covers the reasonable and necessary costs incurred, described
below, to satisfy the minimum requirements of the enforcement of any law or ordinance regulating the demolition,
construction, repair, replacement or use of buildings or structures, provided:

a. Such law or ordinance is in force on the date of insured physical loss or damage; and

b. lts enforcement is a direct result of such insured physical loss or damage; and

c. This additional coverage does not cover any loss due to any law or ordinance with which you should have
complied before the loss.

d. The cost to repair or rebuild the physically damaged portion of such property with materials and in a manner
to satisfy such law or ordinance; and

Language Effective October 1, 2019 22 ICRMP39A2020



e. The cost:
(1) to demolish the physically undamaged portion of such property insured; and

(2) to rebuild it with materials and in a manner to satisfy such law or ordinance to the extent that such costs
result when the total demolition of the physically damaged insured property is required to satisfy such law
or ordinance.

f.  This additional coverage excludes any costs incurred as a direct or indirect result of enforcement of any laws
or ordinances regulating any form of contamination including but not limited to the presence of a pollutant
or hazardous material.

g. The maximum liability for this additional coverage at each covered property in any occurrence will not
exceed the actual cost incurred in demolishing the physically undamaged portion of the property insured plus
the lesser of:

(1) The reasonable and necessary cost incurred, excluding the cost of land, in rebuilding on another site; or
(2) The cost of rebuilding on the same site.

10. Landscaping items. We will pay for damage to your outdoor trees, shrubs, plants or harvested crops as a result
of an accident. The most we will pay in any one occurrence is $25,000.

11. Newly Acquired Property: All newly acquired property shall be reported to us within one hundred twenty (120)
days in order for coverage to continue and shall be limited to $10,000, OOO until such time as reported to us, but
no longer than one hundred twenty (120) days after acquisition.

12. Operational Disruption Expense. We agree to pay you or on your behalf operational disruption expense
resulting from damage to covered property arising out of a covered loss under Insuring Agreement 1 during the
period of restoration. The maximum amount we will pay for all expenses related to operational disruption
expense is $4,000,000 per covered occurrence and includes all sublimits as listed below. The following sublimits
apply:

a. The maximum amount we will pay is $250,000 for operational disruption expenses for any one
occurrence or in the aggregate for multiple occurrences for damages involving actual interruption of the
use of your computer system when caused by a covered loss, provided that the disruption is directly caused
by damage to your computer system.

b. The maximum amount we will pay is $500,000 for expediting expenses to cover the reasonable and
necessary costs you incur to pay for the temporary repair of insured damage to your covered property and
to expedite the permanent repair or replacement of such damaged property. This coverage does not cover
costs recoverable elsewhere in this section or of permanent repair or replacement of damaged property.

c. The maximum amount we will pay is $1,000,000 for leasehold interest loss and is subject to the following:

(1) If the lease agreement requires continuation of rent; and if the property is wholly untenantable or unusable,
the actual rent payable for the unexpired term of the lease; or if the property is partially untenantable or
unusable, the proportion of the rent payable for the unexpired term of the lease.

(2)If the lease is canceled by the lessor pursuant to the lease agreement or by the operation of law; the lease
interest for the first three months following the loss; and the net lease interest for the remaining unexpired
term of the lease.

(3) The leasehold interest does not insure any increase in loss resulting from the suspension, lapse or
cancellation of any license, or from you exercising an option to cancel the lease; or from your act or
omission that constitutes a default under the lease.

(4)In addition, there is no coverage for your loss of leasehold interest directly resulting from damage to
contents or personal property.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 23 ICRMP38A2020



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

d. The maximum amount we will pay is $1,000,000 for extra expense loss will and is for the reasonable and
necessary extra costs incurred by you of the following during the period of restoration and is outlined
below:

(1) Extra expenses to temporarily continue as nearly as normal as practicable the conduct of your operation
and extra costs of temporarily using property or your facilities or others;

(2) Less any value remaining at the end of the period of restoration for property obtained in connection with
the above.

(3) Extra expense does not cover:
(i) Any loss of income.

(i) Costs that normally would have been incurred in conducting the operation during the same
period had no physical loss or damage occurred.

(iii) Cost of permanent repair or replacement of property that has been damaged or destroyed.
(iv) Any expense recoverable elsewhere in this section.

Professional Fees. This policy is extended to cover reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by you for
architects, engineers or other necessary design professionals who assist you in rebuilding from your loss under
this section. Professional fees are limited to $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Property of Others. Employee or volunteer-owned personal property located within covered property is
covered up to a per occurrence limit of $50,000. Coverage provided shall be secondary to any primary
coverage available to employees or volunteers.

Property in the Course of Construction. New construction of buildings or repairs or renovations of existing
buildings that you have an insurable interest in at the time of the loss, including equipment, machinery, tools,
materials or supplies intended for use in the construction of such covered property shall be covered up to
$5,000,000 for each building as listed per the schedule of values.

Property in Transit. This section covers covered property, while being transported by you, up to a per
occurrence and/or in the aggregate limit of $1,000,000 per policy period.

Protection and Preservation of Property. This section covers reasonable and necessary costs incurred for
actions to temporarily protect or preserve covered property, provided such actions are necessary due to actual,
or to prevent immediately impending, insured physical loss or damage to such covered property. For this
condition, reasonable and necessary means:

a. Fire department fire-fighting charges imposed as a result of responding to a fire in, on or exposing the covered
property,

b. Costs incurred of restoring and recharging fire protection systems following an insured loss; and
c. Costs incurred for the water used for fighting a fire in, on or exposing the covered property.

d. This additional coverage is subject to the deductible provisions that would have applied had the physical loss
or damage occurred.

Schedule of Values. Except for automobiles, buildings, other outdoor structures, including a summary
accounting of all items comprised as contents within a building, other covered property need not be identified in
the schedule of values if the value of the individual item is less than $100,000. It is your responsibility, working
with your independent insurance agent, to make sure all covered property valued over $100,000 is listed on
your schedule of values. Further, items you list on the schedule of values, but excluded by the language within
this policy, are not covered.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 24 ICRMP39A2020



19. Unmanned Aircraft System. We will pay up to $50,000 per occurrence for physical damage to unmanned
aircraft (drones) weighing less than 50 pounds and incapable of travelling more than 100 miles per hour.

20.

21.

Valuable Papers and Records, and Electronic Data and Media. In the event of a covered loss under Insuring
Agreement 1, we agree to pay you, or on your behalf, for direct accidental physical loss of or direct accidental
physical damage to valuable papers and records and electronic data and media following damage to covered
property. The maximum amount we will pay for any one occurrence or in the aggregate for multiple occurrences
is $500,000 to restore data lost by you for an actual interruption of the use of your computer system when
caused by a covered loss. The maximum amount we will pay for all other losses to valuable papers and records
that are not electronic data or media is $1,000,000 for any one occurrence.

Valuation of Loss. Adjustment of the physical damage loss amount under this section will be computed as of
the date of loss at the covered property, and for no more than your interest in the covered property, subject
to the following:

a.

On contractors’ equipment, mobile equipment, watercraft, and automobiles:

(1) The cost to repair or replace the property with new mobile equipment or automobiles of like kind and
quality at the time of the loss, if less than or equal to two years from December 31 of the model year,

(2) The lesser of the actual cash value at the time of the loss or the cost to repair if greater than two years
from December 31 of the model year.

(3) If not repaired or replaced, the actual cash value.

Stock in process: We agree to pay at the value of raw materials and labor expended plus the proper
proportion of overhead charges.

Finished goods manufactured by you: We agree to pay at the regular cash-selling price at the covered
property where the loss happens, less all discounts and charges to which the finished goods would have
been subject had no loss happened.

Raw materials. On raw materials, supplies and other merchandise not manufactured by you:

(1) If repaired or replaced, the actual expenditure incurred in repairing or replacing the damaged or
destroyed property, or

(2) If not repaired or replaced, the actual cash value.

Fine arts:

(1) We agree to pay at the appraised value of the article to a maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence or in
the aggregate for multiple occurrences only if the fine art cannot be replaced with other of like kind

and quality. We agree to pay the lesser of:

(i) The reasonable and necessary cost to repair or restore such property to the physical condition that
existed on the date of loss;

(i) Cost to replace the article; or
(iiiy Current market value at time of loss.

(2) In the event a fine arts article is part of a pair or set, and a physically damaged article cannot be
replaced, or repaired or restored to the condition that existed immediately prior to the loss, we will be
liable for the lesser of the full value of such pair or set or the amount designated on the schedule of
values, not to exceed our sublimit as stated above or in the declarations pages. You agree to
surrender the pair or set to us.

f. Valuable Papers and Records, and Electronic Data and Medija.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 25 ICRMP39A2020



(1) On data, programs or software stored on electronic, electro-mechanical, or electro-magnetic data
processing or production equipment:

(i) The cost to repair, replace or restore data, programs or software including the costs to recreate
research and engineer;

(i) If not repaired, replaced or restored within two years from the date of loss, the blank value of the
media.

(2) On all other Valuable Papers and Records, and Electronic Data and Media, the lesser of the
following:

() The cost to repair or restore, including the cost to recreate, research and engineer the item to the
condition that existed immediately prior to the loss;

(i) The cost to replace the item.
9. Vacant Property:

(1) if the building or leased premises has been vacant or unoccupied for a period of more than ninety (90)
consecutive days before the loss or damage occurs, we will not pay for any loss or damage caused by
any of the following:

(i) Vandalism

(i) Sprinkler l[eakage

(iii) Building glass breakage
(iv) Water damage

(v) Theft, or attempted theft

(2) With respect to direct physical loss or damage, other than from caused listed above, and not otherwise

excluded by this policy, we will reduce the amount we would otherwise pay for the loss or damage by
15%.

h. On all other covered property, the loss amount will not exceed the lesser of the following:

(1) The replacement cost as per the value listed in your schedule of values, which you have submitted to
us;

(2) The cost to repair;
(3) The cost to rebuild or replace on the same site with new materials that are like size, kind and quality;

(4) The cost in rebuilding, repairing or replacing on the same or another site, but not to exceed the size and
operating capacity that existed on the date of loss;

(5) The selling price of real property or machlnery and equipment, other than stock, offered for sale on the
date of loss;

(6) The cost to replace unrepairable electrical or mechanical equipment, including computer equipment, with
equipment that is the most functionally equivalent to that damaged or destroyed, even if such equipment
~ has technological advantages and/or represents an improvement in function and/or forms part of a
program of system enhancement.

(7) The increased cost of demolition, if any, resulting from loss covered by this section, if such property is
scheduled for demolition;

(8) The unamortized value of improvements and betterments, if such property is not repaired or replaced at
your expense; or

l.anguage Effective October 1, 2019 26 ICRMP39A2020



(9) The actual cash value if such property is:
(i) Useless to you; or

(if) Not repaired, replaced or rebuilt on the same or another site within two years from the
date of loss.

(10) You may elect not to repair or replace covered property iost, damaged or destroyed. Loss
settlement may be elected on the lesser of repair or replacement cost basis if the proceeds of such
loss settlement are expended on other capital expenditures related to your operations within two years
from the date of loss. As a condition of collecting on this item, such expenditure must be unplanned as
of the date of loss and be mate at a covered property under this section. This item does not extend
to Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction.

22. Water Backup through Sewer or Drain. We provide coverage for direct physical loss to your buildings and

its related contents when damage is caused by water which backs up through sewers or drains, not related to
a flood, up to a maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

D. Exclusions Applicable to Property Insuring Agreements

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1. With Regard to all property, we do not cover losses under the Property Insuring Agreements of this
section resulting directly or indirectly from:

a.

b.

Loss or damage more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

Moths, vermin, termites, crickets or other insects.

Inherent vice, latent defect, wear, tear or deterioration, whether sudden or gradual.
Contamination, rust, wet or dry rot, mold, dampness of atmosphere or variations of temperature.
Accumulated effects of smog, smoke, vapor, liquid and dust.

Loss of use, delay or loss of markets or opportunity.

Breakdown or derangement of any machinery, unless an insured peril ensues, and then only for the actual
loss or damage caused by such ensuing peril.

Electrical appliances, devices, fixtures or wiring caused by artificially generated electrical current, unless
fire or explosion ensues, and then only for the actual loss or damage caused by such ensuing fire or
explosion.

Mysterious disappearance, loss or shortage disclosed on taking inventory for which the loss can be proven
solely on the inventory records, or any unexplained loss.

Any fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act, including theft of cash, securities, or other negotiable instruments,
however described, by any employee or authorized representative of an insured while acting alone or in
collusion with others. This includes acts of direct insured physical damage intentionally caused by your
employees, elected or appointed officials or volunteers and done without your knowledge.

Indirect or remote loss or damage.

Loss or damage or deterioration arising from any delay.

Interruption of business; except to the extent provided by this section.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 27 ICRMP39A2020



n. Lack of the following services when caused by an occurrence off the covered property and only if the lack
of such a service directly causes physical damage insured by this section on the covered property, then
only that resulting damage is insured:

(1) Incoming or outgoing electricity, fuel, water, gas, steam, refrigerant;
(2) incoming or outgoing sewerage;

(3) incoming or outgoing telecommunications;

2. With Regard to Buildings and Structures, we do not cover losses under the Property Insuring
Agreements of this section resulting directly or indirectly from:

a. Settling, cracking, bulging, shrinking or expansion of any paved surfaces, foundations (including any
pedestal, pad, platform or other property supporting machinery), walls, floors, ceilings or roofs, except if
damage is caused by a covered accident, or if damage to covered property is caused by earth
movement or flood.

b. Extremes or changes of temperature (except to water piping or space heating equipment due to freezing)
or changes in relative humidity, regardiess of whether or not atmospheric, except if damage to covered
property is caused by earth movement or flood.

c. Any increase of loss due to interference with rebuilding, repairing or replacing a building, or with the
resumption or continuation of business.

d. Any increase of loss due to the suspension, lapse or cancellation of any lease, license, contract or order.
e. Loss or damage to covered property caused by or resulting from errors in design or testing of that
covered property, except resultant physical loss or damage to other covered property insured by this

section.

f.  Faulty workmanship, material or construction, or design from any cause, except resultant physical loss or
damage to other covered property insured by this section.

g. Loss from enforcement of any law or ordinance:

(1) Regulating the construction, repair, replacement, use or removal, including debris removal, of any
property; or

(2) Requiring the demolition of any property, including the cost in removing its debris; or

(3) except as provided by the conditions of Debris Removal and Increased Cost of Construction as listed
in these conditions.

3. With Regard to Property in Course of Construction, we do not cover losses under the Property Insuring
Agreements of this Section resulting directly or indirectly from:

a. Penalties for non-completion of, or delay in, completion of contract or non-compliance with contract
conditions, nor for loss of use of occupancy, however caused.

4. With Regard to specific types of property, we do not cover physical loss or physical damage to the
following property:

a. Allanimals and birds, except your service animals. For your service animals, our liability for such loss
shall not exceed $25,000 per occurrence, for injury, sickness or death.

b. Land, water or any other substance in or on land.

c. Aircraft, spacecraft or satellites.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 28 ICRMP39A2020



d. Retaining walls not constituting part of a building when loss is caused by ice or water pressure.

e. Underground mines, mineshafts or caverns or any property within such mine, shaft or cavern or mining
property located below the surface of the ground.

f.  Any property undergoing insulation breakdown tests.
g. Currency, money, precious metal in bullion form, notes, or securities.
h. Jewelry, furs, precious metals or precious stones.

i. Dams, including earthen dams, canals, reservoirs, ditches, retaining ponds and all liners or other
membranes designed to separate, retain or hold water, sewage, trash, dirt, debris or any other material.

j. Roadways, highways, streets, bridges, tunnels, guardrails, pavements, parking lots, curbs, culverts,
sidewalks, pathways, pedestrian walkways or other transportation conveyance infrastructure, however
characterized.

k. Underground pipes.

l.  Any mobile equipment, automobile, watercraft or other property while participating in any prearranged or
organized racing, speed or demolition contest or in any stunting activity, including practice or preparation
for any such contest or activity.

m. Overhead transmission and distribution lines located more than 1 mile from your structures listed on the
schedule of values.

n. Data or fiber optic transmission lines and conduit not contained within walls of covered property.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 29 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION VI - CRIME INSURANCE

A.

Insuring Agreements Applicable to Crime Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements
located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the below listed insuring agreements are
subject to Section [| General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Sectlon [V General Exclusions of
this policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1.

Employee Dishonesty or Fraud. We agree to pay the named insured, or on its behalf, for loss of money,
securities and other financial instruments or theft of your property by an employee sustained by the named
insured resulting directly from one or more dishonest or fraudulent acts committed by an employee of the
named insured, acting alone or in collusion with others.

Loss Inside the Premises. We agree to pay the named insured, or on its behalf, for loss of money and
securities of the named insured by the actual destruction, disappearance or wrongful taking within the
premises.

Loss Outside the Premises. We agree to pay the named insured, or on its behalf, for loss of money and
securities of the named insured by the actual destruction, disappearance or wrongful taking thereof,
outside the premises while being conveyed by a messenger or any armored motor vehicle company.

Definitions Applicable to Crime Insuring Agreements

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section Il
General Definitions of this policy.

1.

"Dishonest or Fraudulent Acts™ means acts committed by an employee of the named insured which
a. Cause the named insured to sustain such loss; or

b. Results in financial benefit to the employee, or another person or organization intended by the employee
to receive such benefit, not otherwise entitled to.

“Employee" shall be as defined by the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code, chapter 9, title 6).

. “Social Engineering Financial Fraud” means the transfer of money or securities to an account outside

your control pursuant to instructions made by a person purporting to be an authorized employee, outsourced
provider or customer of yours, when such instructions prove tc have been fraudulent and issued by a person
who is not an authorized employee, outsourced provider, or customer of the yours.

“Social Engineering Financial Fraud Loss” means loss of money or securities in a social engineering
financial fraud.

. "Messenger" means any employee who is duly authorized by the named insured to have the care and

custody of an insured property outside the premises.

. “Premises” means the interior of that portion of any building which is occupied by the named insured in

conducting its business.

. "Wrongful Taking” means an unauthorized conversion or theft of money, securities, money orders,

counterfeit currency, depositor’s forgery or other financial instruments, whether or not proven in a court of law.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 30 ICRMP39A2020



D.

Specific Conditions Applicable to Crime Insuring Agreements

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section Il
General Conditions of this policy.

1.

All Incidents - One Loss. All losses incidental to an actual or attempted fraudulent, dishonest or criminal
act, or series of related acts, whether committed by one or more persons, shall be deemed one loss. The
applicable limits of indemnification stated in the declarations pages are the total limit of our liability with respect
to all losses arising out of any one occurrence.

. Policy in Lieu of Public Officials Surety Bond. Insurance under this section shall be deemed to provide

insurance compliant with the provisions of Idaho Code §59-804 for the terms and responsibilities of public
officials or employees to the extent required by the Idaho Code bonding requirements for public officials.

. Limits of Indemnification for Multiple Policy Periods. Our total liability is limited to the total amount

specified in the declarations pages of this policy for all losses caused by any employee or in which such
employee is concerned or implicated. Regardless of the number of years this policy shall continue in force
and the number of member contributions which shali be payable or paid, the limits of indemnification
specified in the declarations pages shall not be cumulative from year to year or period to period. The
maximum total loss paid to any named insured shall not exceed the limits of indemnification stated in the
policy year during which a claim is made.

Loss Caused by Unidentified Employees. If a loss is alleged to have been caused by the fraud or
dishonesty of any one or more employees, and the named insured shall be unable to designate the specific
employee or employees causing such loss, the named insured shall nevertheless have the benefit of
Insuring Agreement 1, provided that the evidence submitted reasonably proves that the loss was in fact due
to the fraud or dishonesty of one or more employees of the named insured.

Ownership Interest. Money, securities and other financial instruments may be covered by this policy whether
owned by the named insured or held by the named insured in its care, custody or control.

Recoveries. To the extent that a loss of the named insured exceeds the limits of indemnification applicable
to this section, the named insured shall be entitled to recoveries from third parties until the named insured
is fully reimbursed. Any remaining recovery shali be paid to us. Audit fees incurred by us toward establishing
your loss values will be deducted from the ultimate net loss.

Exclusions Applicable to Crime Insuring Agreements

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1.

All Crime Insuring Agreements of this Section do not provide coverage for:
a. Any claim or loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

b. Any claim for the potential income or increase including, but not limited to, interest and dividends, not
realized by the named insured because of a loss covered under this section.

¢. Any claim for costs, fees or other expenses incurred by the named insured in establishing the existence
or amount of loss, covered under this section.

d. Any claim for the funds collected or retained for any state or Federal agency pursuant to requirements
established by law or pursuant to a mutual agreement.

e. Any loss claimed involving conduct that occurred more than two (2) years prior to the date of the claim.

f. Any loss claimed involving social engineering financial fraud from a social engineering financial fraud
loss or event.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 31 ICRMP39A2020



2. Crime Insuring Agreement 1 does not cover:

a. Any loss, the proof of which, either as to its factual existence or as to its amount, is dependent upon an
inventory computation or a profit and loss computation.

b. Any claim of loss concerning any fiscal year wherein financial records of the political subdivision have not
been timely audited by a certified public accountant in accordance with the requirements of Idaho Code
§67-450B or §67-450C, as appropriate.

3. Crime Insuring Agreement 2 does not provide coverage for:

a. Any claim or loss due to any fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act by any employee, director, trustee or
authorized representative of the named insured, while working or otherwise, and whether acting alone or
in collusion with others.

b. Any claim or loss due to:

(1) The giving or surrendering of money or securities in any exchange or purchase;
(2) Accounting or arithmetical errors or omissions;

(3) Manuscripts, books of account, or records; or

(4) Presentation or acceptance of any check returned for insufficient funds.

c. Any claim or loss of money contained in coin operated amusement devices or vending machines, unless
the amount of money deposited within the device or machine is recorded by a continuous recording
instrument therein.

4. Crime Insuring Agreement 3 does not provide coverage for:

a. Any claim or loss due to any fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act by any employee, director, trustee or
authorized representative of the named insured, while working or otherwise, and whether acting alone or
in collusion with others.

b. Any claim or loss due to:

(1) The giving or surrendering of money or securities in any exchange or purchase;
(2) Accounting or arithmetical errors or omissions; or
(3) Manuscripts, books of account or records.

c. Any insured claim or loss of money, securities and other financial instruments of the named insured while
in the custody of any armored motor vehicle company, except as excess policy over amounts recovered
or received by the named insured under:

(1) The contract of the named insured with said armored motor vehicle company;

(2) Insurance carried by said armored motor vehicle company for the benefit of users of its services; and

(3) All other insurance and indemnity in force in whatsoever form carried by or for the benefit of users of
said armored motor vehicle company’s service.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 32 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION VIl - AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

A. Automobile Liability Insuring Agreements

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements located
in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the below listed insuring agreements are subject to
Section Il General Definitions, Section IIf General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this policy,
unless amended as stated within this Section.

1. Automobile Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which an insured becomes legally obligated
to pay as damages because of bodily injury or property damage caused by an occurrence and arising out of
the ownership, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of an insured automobile.

2. Automobile Medical Payments. We agree to pay medical expenses incurred within the policy period and within
ten (10) days of an automobile accident as shall be necessary because of bodily injury caused by an
occurrence in a vehicle owned or rented to an insured. Any such medical expenses must be reported within
one hundred eighty (180) days of the occurrence.

3. Uninsured or Underinsured Motorists.

a.

We agree to pay damages for bodily injury which an insured is legally entitled to recover from the owner or
operator of an uninsured automobile or underinsured automobile. The bodily injury must be caused by
occurrence and arise out of the ownership, maintenance or use of an uninsured automobile or
underinsured automobile. This policy will pay under this Insuring Agreement only after the limits of liability
under any applicable bodily injury liability policies or bonds have been exhausted in payments, settlements or
judgments and after all worker’s compensation benefits an employee may be entitled to have been paid.

The limits of indemnification shall be reduced by:

(1) All sums paid because of bodily injury by or on behalf of persons or organizations who may be legally
responsible for causing the bodily injury; and

(2) All sums paid by worker's compensation benefits or similar disability law.

B. Definitions Applicable to Automobile Liability Insurance Agreements

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section 1|
General Definitions of this policy.

1. "Insured" means:

a.

With respect to Insuring Agreement 1, an insured or anyone else while using an insured automobile with the
permission of the insured.

With respect to Insuring Agreement 2, anyone occupying an insured automobile with the permission of the
insured.

With respect to Insuring Agreement 3, an insured or anyone else while using or occupying an insured
automobile with permission of the insured.

2. "Insured Automobile" means an automobile owned by the named insured or a non-owned automobile while
operated by an insured in the course and scope of their duties or such use that is otherwise authorized by the
named insured.

3. “Medical Expenses" means expenses for necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services, ambulance,
hospital, professional nursing and funeral services.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 33 ICRMP39A2020



4. "Occupying” with regard to Insuring Agreement 2 and 3 of this section means an individual who, at the time of the
accident, is in physical contact with an insured automobile.

5. "Underinsured Automobile” means an automobile for which the sum of liability limits of all applicable liability
bonds or policies at the time of an accident is less than the limits of indemnification applicable to Insuring
Agreement 3 of this section.

6. "Uninsured Automobile" means an automobile:

a.

b.

C.

To which a bodily injury liability bond or policy does not apply at the time of the accident.
For which an insuring or bonding company denies coverage or has become insolvent.

Which is a hit-and-run automobile and neither the driver nor the owner can be identified. The hit-and-run
automobile must come in contact with an insured automobile.

C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Automobile Liability Insurance Agreements

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section Il
General Conditions of this policy.

1. With respect to Insuring Agreements 1, 2 and 3, Auto Liability Insurance of this Section is subject to the
following conditions:

a.

Automobiles Owned by Employees or Authorized Volunteers. An automobile owned by an employee or
authorized volunteer of the named insured is provided auto liability coverage by this section while the
automobile is being used by an employee or authorized volunteer on official business of the named insured.
This policy shall be deemed secondary to the policy of the employee's or authorized volunteer's personal
insurance, which is deemed to be primary insurance. The intent of this special condition shall not be interpreted
to extend this policy to an automobile owned by other public or private entities which are made available to
the named insured or its employees. For these non-owned automobiles, the terms and conditions already
contained in this policy shall apply. This specific condition does not apply to volunteers engaged in search and
rescue activities as coverage is intended to be primary insurance for search and rescue volunteers only when
actively participating in search and rescue mobilizations initiated by the county Sheriff.

Non-Duplication of Benefits. There shall be no duplication of payments under this section for Insuring
Agreements 1, 2 and 3, respectively, of this policy. Any amounts payable under these respective insuring
agreements will be reduced by the amount of any advance payments.

2. With Respect to Insuring Agreement 2, Automobile Medical Payments Insurance of this Section has the
following conditions:

a.

Examinations/Medical Reports. The injured person may be required to take physical examinations by
physicians we choose, as often as we reasonably require. We must be given authorization to obtain medical
reports and other records pertinent to any such claim.

Notice of Loss. As soon as possible, any person making a claim under this Insuring Agreement must give
us written notice. It must include all details we may need to determine the amounts payable.

3. With Respect to Insuring Agreement 3, Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists Insurance of this Section has
the following conditions:

a.

Arbitration. If we and any person entitled to recover under Insuring Agreement 3 fail to agree on the amount
of damages thereof, the amount shall be settled by arbitration. In that event, each party will select an
arbitrator. The two arbitrators will then select a third arbitrator. If they cannot agree upon a third arbitrator
within thirty (30) days, both parties can ask a district judge in the State of Idaho to select the third arbitrator.
Each party will pay the expenses it incurs and bear the expenses of the third arbitrator equally. Written
decisions of any two arbitrators will determine the issues and will be binding. The arbitration will take place
pursuant to the Uniform Arbitration Act, Idaho Code Title 7, Chapter 9, unless both parties agree otherwise.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 34 ICRMP39A2020



Attorney’s fees and fees paid to medical and other expert witnesses as part of the arbitration proceeding will
not be considered arbitration expenses. These costs and expenses will be paid by the party incurring them.

Hit-and-Run Accident. At our request, you shall make available for inspection any automobile which any
insured was occupying at the time of a hit-and-run accident. You must also notify a law enforcement
agency within twenty-four (24) hours of any hit-and-run accident. You must also notify us of any such hit-
and-run accident within seven (7) days of any such accident. Failure to provide such notice shall be deemed
a material and prejudicial breach of this Insuring Agreement 3, and render any insurance provided null and
void.

Medical Examinations. The injured person may be required to take, at our expense, physical examinations
by physicians we choose, as often as we reasonably require.

Non-Binding Judgment. No judgment resulting from a suit brought without our written consent, or which
we are not a party to, is binding on us, either for determining the liability of the uninsured or underinsured
automobile or owner, or the amount of damages sustained.

Prejudgment or Pre-Arbitration Award Interest. Prejudgment or pre-arbitration award interest shall not
begin to accrue until the date that the proof of loss is received by us.

Proof of Loss. A proof of loss must be served upon us as soon as practicable following any such accident
causing the injury in order to determine the amounts payable. Failure to provide such notice shall be deemed
a material and prejudicial breach of this Insuring Agreement, and renders any insurance provided null and
void. Each proof of loss presented shall accurately describe the conduct and circumstances which brought
about the injury, state the time and place the injury occurred, state the names of all persons involved, and
shall contain the amount of damages claimed, together with any and all records that exist pertaining to said
injury. Said records shall consist of 1) all police reports pertaining to the accident, and 2) complete medical
and billing records from all institutions (hospitals, rehabilitation facilities, and nursing homes) and physician
offices. A signed medical records release form must be provided with the proof of loss giving us authorization
to obtain additional medical reports and other records pertinent to any such loss.

D. Exclusions Applicable to Automobile Liability Insurance Agreements

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1. With respect to Insuring Agreements 1, 2 and 3, Auto Liability Insurance of this Section does not apply:

a.

To any claim, occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other covered
loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

To any claim of bodily injury sustained by any person, including an insured, engaged in the maintenance or
repair of an insured automobile.

To any claim that directly or indirectly benefits any worker's compensation or disability benefits insurer.

For bodily injury to anyone eligible to receive benefits which are either provided, or are required to be
provided, under any worker's compensation, occupational disease or similar disability law.

To any claim arising out of the operation of mobile equipment.

For any automobiles or mobile equipment owned or leased by a named insured when the automobile or
mobile equipment is being rented or leased to a third party for compensation.

To any person or organization, or to any agent or employee thereof, operating an automobile sales agency,
repair shop, service station, storage garage or public parking place, with respect to any accident arising out
of the operation thereof.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 35 ICRMP39A2020



To any employee with respect to injury to, sickness, disease or death of another employee of the same
employer injured in the course of such employment in an accident arising out of the maintenance or use of
the automobile in the business of such employer.

With respect to any hired automobile, to the owner or a lessee thereof, other than the named insured, nor to
any agent or employee or such owner or lessee.

To any bodily injury resulting from or arising out of the use of an automobile owned by you and not insured
by us.

To any claim for bodily injury arising out of:

(1.) Any sexual molestation occurrence that results in a claim or any sexual abuse occurrence that results
in a claim; or

(2.) A series of related sexual molestation occurrences or a series of related sexual abuse occurrences that
have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a result of,
caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against any person
or persons.

|. To any claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of:

(1.) Physical contact by any unmanned aircraft system with any other aircraft, including airships, blimps or
other gas or hot air-filled balloons, whether manned or unmanned; or

(2.) Knowingly not complying with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations, certifications, rules,
procedures, policies and standards with respects to unmanned aircraft system including any
amendment or addition to such regulations, certifications, rules, procedures, policies and standards; or

(3.) Knowingly not complying with any other federal, state or local laws and regulations with respect to
unmanned aircraft system, including any amendment or addition to such laws and regulations.

With Respect to Insuring Agreement 1, Auto Liability Insurance of this Section does not apply:

a.

b.

C.

To property damage to property rented to, used by or in the care, custody or control of any insured.
To bodily injury to any insured arising out of or in the course of employment.

To any liability for indemnity or contribution brought by any party for bodily injury or property damage
sustained by any insured.

With Respect to Insuring Agreement 2, Automobile Medical Payments of this Section does not apply:

a.

To any bodily injury arising out of or resulting from the operation of an insured automobile while being used
for hire or for a fee with authorization for such use.

To prisoners, inmates, or any other category of persons being detained by an insured while being transported
by you.

For bodily injury to any employee, elected official or volunteer eligible to receive any worker's compensation,
occupational disease or similar disability law benefits.

With Respect to Insuring Agreement 3, Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists Insurance of this Section does
not apply:

a.

To any insured who enters into a settlement with a third party without our written consent.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 36 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION VIil - GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

A. Insuring Agreement Applicable to General Liability Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements located
in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are subject to
Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section [V General Exclusions of this policy,
unless amended as stated within this Section.

1.

General Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which an insured becomes legally obligated to
pay as damages for personal injury or property damage which arise out of an occurrence during the policy
period. Included within this insuring agreement are the following:

a. Garagekeeper's Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages associated with
the ownership and operation of storage garages and parking lots of the named insured as bailee with
respect to an automobile left in its custody and control. This coverage is sublimited to $500,000 per
occurrence.

b. Fire Suppression Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages arising out of
fire suppression activities by authorized firefighting personnel. This coverage is sublimited to $500,000
per occurrence. This coverage grant does not apply to fire suppression activities on public land.

c. Hostile Fire Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages arising out of heat,
smoke or fumes resulting from a hostile fire. This coverage is sublimited to $500,000 per occurrence.

d. Host/Liquor Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages resulting from the
provision, sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages, or by reason of any local, state or federal Ilquor control
laws. This coverage is sublimited to $500,000 per occurrence.

e. Sewer Back-up Claims. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages arising out of sewer
line and facilities back-up and related events, for which the named insured is responsible by virtue of its
negligence. Notwithstanding the general exclusions stated elsewhere within this policy, this Insuring
Agreement extends to mold and other fungus abatement and remediation demonstrated to be a direct result

of a sewer back-up related occurrence for which you are responsible. This coverage is sublimited to .

$500,000 per occurrence.

f. Incidental Medical Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 provides liability coverage for damages related to
professional medical services rendered in the course and scope of delivering such services or during
medically supervised training related thereto or which should have been rendered to any person or persons
(other than employees of the named insured injured during the course of their employment) only by any of
the following persons acting on behalf of the named insured:

(1) Employed or volunteer emergency medical technicians (EMTs), paramedics or first responders.

(2) Employed or volunteer, nurse practitioners, registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, or nurses
otherwise licensed and regulated under the statutes of the State of Idaho, while employed by you and
while acting within the scope of their duties and responsibilities serving inmates of a jail operated by you.

(3) Volunteer registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, or nurses otherwise licensed and regulated under
the statutes of the State of Idaho, while volunteering for you and while acting within the scope of their
duties and responsibilities, serving as an EMT, paramedic, first responder or ambulance personnel.

(4) Any other insured providing first aid.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 : . 37 ICRMP39A2020



B. Definitions Applicable to General Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend definitions located in Section || General
Definitions of this policy.

1. “Fire Suppression Activities ” means the application of water or fire suppression chemicals in the attempt to
suppress fires or dislocation of materials or destruction of property deemed necessary to suppress fires.

2. “Fire Suppression Chemicals” means chemicals prescribed for extinguishing or preventing fires.

3. *“Hostile Fire” means one which becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was intended to be
within your covered property and started by you.

4. "Insured" means:
a. The Named Insured; or

b. Any current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named
insured, as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of
their duties as such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving
the named insured as an independent contractor; or

c. City or county prosecutors, or appointed city attorneys while serving as independent contractors, in the
course and scope of their statutory roles.

C. Exclusions Applicable to General Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusion are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1. With Respect to Insuring Agreement 1, General Liability Insurance of this Section does not apply:

a. To any claim, occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other covered
loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

b. To any claim from fire suppression liability, government-imposed penalties or fines, however characterized,
assessed to pay the costs of suppressing a fire started by your fire suppression activities or for the
improper discharge of fire suppression chemicals will not be covered under this section.

c. To personal injury or property damage resulting from or arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or
entrustment to others of any automobile.

d. To any claim for damages arising out of law enforcement activities or the performance of law enforcement
duties.

e. To property damage to property you own, rent or occupy; premises you sell, give away or have
abandoned; property loaned to you; and personal property in your care, custody and control. This exclusion
shall not apply to garagekeeper’s liability, as provided in the specific conditions of this section.

f. To any damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others for the loss of use,

withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, replacement, adjustment, removal, To any claim relating to wrongful

employment acts of the employment of any person, including threatened, actual or alleged discrimination
or harassment.

g. Toany claim or suitfor personal injury arising out of the administration of an employee benefit program.
h. To any claim arising out of the failure to supply water, electrical power, fuel, internet or any other utilities.

i. Toany claim for bodily injury arising out of:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 38 ICRMP39A2020



(1.) Any sexual molestation occurrence that results in a claim or any sexual abuse occurrence that results
in a claim; or

(2.) A series of related sexual molestation occurrences or a series of related sexual abuse occurrences that
have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a result of,
caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against any person
or persons.

j.  Toany claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of:

(1) Physical contact by any drone with any other aircraft, including airships, blimps or other gas or hot air-
filled balloons, whether manned or unmanned: or

(2) Knowingly not complying with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations, certifications, rules,
procedures, policies and standards with respects to drones, including any amendment or addition to
such regulations, certifications, rules, procedures, policies and standards: or

(3) Knowingly not complying with any other federal, state or local laws and regulations with respect to
drones, including any amendment or addition to such laws and regulations.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 39 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION IX - LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY INSURANCE

A. Insuring Agreement Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements located
in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are subject to
Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section [V General Exclusions of this policy,
unless amended as stated within this Section.

Law Enforcement Liability. We agree, subject to the conditions and exclusions of this Insuring Agreement, to
pay on your behalf those sums which an insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because of a
wrongful act or related wrongful acts which have as a common nexus any fact, circumstance, situation, event,
transaction or series of facts, circumstances, situations, events or transactions resulting from the performance of
your duties while providing law enforcement services or jail operations services or the administration of first aid
resulting in personal injury or property damage during the policy period.

B. Definitions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section Il
General Definitions of this policy.

1.

“Jail Operations” means activities relating to the detention of prisoners, arrestees or detainees at a detention
facility, jail, work program, or other facility however described used to hold prisoners, arrestees, or detainees in
the charge of an insured.

"Personal Injury" means bodily injury, mental anguish, shock, sickness, disease, disability, wrongful eviction,
malicious prosecution, humiliation, invasion of rights of privacy, libel, slander or defamation of character, piracy
and any infringement of copyright of property, erroneous service of civil papers, assault and battery and
disparagement of property. Personal injury shall also mean false arrest, false imprisonment, detention,
unlawful discrimination and violation of civil rights arising out of law enforcement activities.

"Wrongful Act” means the actual or alleged negligent performance of a legal duty or responsibility or failure to
perform a legal duty or responsibility, respectively, in a tortious manner pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims Act or
unlawful violations of civil rights pursuant to Federal law arising out of public office or position. Wrongful act is
not a wrongful employment practice, as defined elsewhere.

C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insuring Agreement

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section llI
General Conditions of this policy.

1.

Incidental Medical Liability. Insuring Agreement 1 of this section provides liability coverage for professional
medical services rendered in the course and scope of delivering such services or during medically supervised
training related thereto, or which should have been rendered to any person or persons (other than employees of
the named insured injured during the course of their employment) only by any of the following persons acting on
behalf of the named insured by:

(a) Employed or volunteer emergency medical technicians (EMTs), paramedics or first responders.

(b) Employed or volunteer, nurse practitioners, registered nurses, licensed practical nurses or nurses otherwise
licensed and regulated under the statutes of the State of Idaho, while employed by you and while acting within
the scope of their duties and responsibilities serving inmates in the function of a jail operated by you.

(c) Volunteer registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, or nurses otherwise licensed and regulatéd under the

statutes of the State of Idaho, while volunteering for you and while acting within the scope of their duties and
responsibilities serving an EMT, paramedic, first responder or ambulance personnel.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 .40 ICRMP39A2020



D. Exclusions Applicable to Law Enforcement Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1.

With Respect to Insuring Agreement 1, Law Enforcement Liability Insurance of this Section does not

apply:

a.

To any claim, occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other
covered loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

To personal injury or property damage resulting from or arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use
or entrustment to others of any automobile.

To property damage to property you own, rent or occupy; premises you sell, give away or have
abandoned; property loaned to you; and personal property in your care, custody and control. This exclusion
shall not apply to garagekeeper’s liability, as provided in the specific conditions of this section.

To any claim or swit for which the only monetary damages sought are costs of suit and/or attorney's fees.

To any claim relating to wrongful employment acts of the employment of any person, including
threatened, actual or alleged discrimination or harassment.

To any claim for personal injury arising out of:

(1) Any sexual molestation occurrence that results in a claim or any sexual abuse occurrence that results
in a claim; or

(2) A series of related sexual molestation occurrences or a series of related sexual abuse occurrences
that have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a result
of, caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against any
person or persons.

To any claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of:

(1) Physical contact by any unmanned aircraft system with any other aircraft, including airships, blimps
or other gas or hot air-filled balloons, whether manned or unmanned; or

(2) Knowingly not complying with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations, certifications, rules,
procedures, policies and standards with respects to unmanned aircraft system including any
amendment or addition to such regulations, certifications, rules, procedures, policies and standards; or

(3) Knowingly not complying with any other federal, state or local laws and regulations with respect to
unmanned aircraft system, including any amendment or addition to such laws and regulations.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 41 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION X - ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE
CLAIMS MADE ONLY

Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreements

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements
located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are
subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Il General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of
this policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1. Errors and Omissions Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which you become legally
obligated to pay as damages because of a claim against an insured which is first made in writing to us by
you during this policy period, or any extended reporting period we provide, arising out of any wrongful act
or series of related wrongful acts by an insured which have as a common nexus any fact, circumstance,
situation, event, transaction or series of facts, circumstances, situations, events or transactions. For this
insuring agreement, two or more claims arising out of a single wrongful act or series of related wrongful
acts shall be treated as a single claim.

Definitions Applicable to Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreement

The following definition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend a definition located in Section Il
General Definitions of this policy.

1. "Claim" means a demand received by you for money damages alleging a wrongful act of a tortious

nature by any insured. No claim exists where the only monetary damages sought or demanded are costs
of suit and/or attorney's fees.

2. "Insured" means:
a. The Named Insured: or
b. Current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named insured,
as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of their duties
as such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving the named

insured as an independent contractor; or

c. City or county prosecutors, or appointed city attorneys while serving as independent contractors, in the
course and scope of their statutory roles.

Specific Conditions Applicable to Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreement

The following condition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend conditions located in Section Il
General Conditions of this policy.

1. Retroactive Date. All wrongful acts must first take place after the applicable retroactive date shown in the
declaration pages of this policy and on or before the expiration of this policy period.

Exclusions Applicable to Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreement

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1. The Errors and Omissions Insuring Agreement 1 of this Section does not cover any claim:

a. Or occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other covered loss
more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

b. Arising out of any dishonest, fraudulent, or criminal wrongful acts committed by any insured or at the
direction of any insured.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 42 ICRMP39A2020



¢. Arising out of the failure to supply water, electrical power, fuel, Internet or any other utilities.

d. For which you are entitled to indemnity and/or payment by reason of having given notice of any
circumstances which might give rise to a claim under any policy or policies, the term of which has
commenced prior to the inception date of this policy, or from a wrongful act which occurred prior to the
applicable retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

e. Resulting from a continuing wrongful act which first commences prior to the applicable retroactive date
set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

—h

Arising out of law enforcement activities or the performance of law enforcement duties.

. For personal injury or property damage.

0 «

. To any claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of:

(1) Physical contact by any unmanned aircraft system with any other aircraft, including airships, blimps
or other gas or hot air-filled balloons, whether manned or unmanned; or

(2) Knowingly not complying with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations, certifications, rules,
procedures, policies and standards with respects to unmanned aircraft system including any
amendment or addition to such regulations, certifications, rules, procedures, policies and standards;
or

(3) Knowingly not complying with any other federal, state or local laws and regulations with respect to
unmanned aircraft system, including any amendment or addition to such laws and regulations.

i. To any claim for damages arising out of;

(1) Any sexual molestation wrongful act that results in a claim or any sexual abuse wrongful act that
results in a claim; or

(2) A series of related sexual molestation wrongful acts or a series of related sexual abuse wrongful
acts that have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a
result of, caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against
any person or persons.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 43 ICRMP39A2020



A.

SECTION XI - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAM LIABILITY INSURANCE
CLAIMS MADE ONLY

Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreement

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements
located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are
subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section 1ll General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of
this policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1. Employee Benefit Program Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which you become
legally obligated to pay as damages because of a claim arising against an insured which is first made in
writing to us by you during this policy period, or any extended reporting period we provide, resulting from
wrongful acts or a series of related wrongful acts in the administration of your employee benefit program
which have as a common nexus any fact, circumstance, situation, event, transaction or series of facts,
circumstances, situations, events or transactions.. For this insuring agreement, two or more claims arising
out of a single wrongful act or series of related wrongful acts, or a personal injury offense or a series of

related offenses, in the administration of your employee benefit program, shall be treated as a single
claim.

Definitions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section Il
General Definitions of this policy.

1. “Administration” means:

a. 'Providing information to employees, including their dependents and beneficiaries, with respect to
eligibility for any employee benefit program;

b. Handling of records in connection with the employee benefit program; or
C. Affecting, continuing or terminating any employee participation in any employee benefit program.

d. Administration does not mean your decision to not offer a particular benefit, plan or program unless
that particular benefit is required by law.

2. “"Claim" means a demand received by you for money damages alleging a wrongful act or personal
injury of a tortious nature by any insured in the administration of your employee benefit program. No

claim exists where the only monetary damages sought or demanded are costs of suit and/or attorney's
fees.

3. "Insured” means:

a. The Named Insured: or

b. Any current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named
insured, as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of
their duties as such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving
the named insured as an independent contractor; or :

c. City or county prosecutors, or appointed city attorneys while serving as independent contractors, in the
course and scope of their statutory roles.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 44 ICRMP39A2020



Specific Conditions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreement

The following condition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend conditions located in Section Il General
Conditions of this policy.

1.

1.

Retroactive Date. All wrongful acts or all personal injury must first take place on or after the applicable
retroactive date shown in the declaration pages of this policy and before the expiration of this policy period.

Exclusions Applicable to Employee Benefit Program Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

The Employee Benefit Liability Insuring Agreement 1 of this Section does not cover any claim:

a.

Or occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other covered loss
more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

For which you are entitled to indemnity and/or payment by reason of having given notice of any
circumstances which might give rise to a claim under any policy or policies, the term of which has
commenced prior to the inception date of this policy, or from a wrongful act or personal injury which
occurred prior to the applicable retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

Resulting from a continuing wrongful act or personal injury which first commences prior to the applicable
retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

To any claim for damages arising out of law enforcement activities or the performance of law enforcement
duties.

To any claim for damages arising out of:

(1) Any sexual molestation wrongful act that results in a claim or any sexual abuse wrongful act that
results in a claim; or

(2) A series of related sexual molestation wrongful acts or a series of related sexual abuse wrongful
acts that have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a
result of, caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against
any person or persons.

For property damage.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 45 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION XII - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY INSURANCE

CLAIMS MADE ONLY

A. Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreement:

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements
located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are
subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this
policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1.

Employment Practices Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which you become legally
obligated to pay as damages because of a claim by or on behalf of a volunteer, employee, former employee
or applicant for employment which is first made in writing to us by you during this policy period or any extended
reporting period we provide, arising out of any wrongful employment practice act or series of related
wrongful employment practices act by an insured which have as a common nexus any fact, circumstance,
situation, event, transaction or series of facts, circumstances, situations, events or transactions.. For this
insuring agreement, two or more claims arising out of a single wrongful employment practice act or series
of related wrongful employment practice acts shall be treated as a single cfaim.

B. Definitions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend a definition located in Section Il General
Definitions of this policy.

1.

"Claim™ means a demand received by you for money damages alleging a wrongful employment practice
act of a tortious nature by any insured. No claim exists where the only monetary damages sought or
demanded are costs of suit and/or attorney's fees. A claim shall include complaints filed with the Idaho
Human Rights Commission (IHRC) and the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). A claim
also includes employment contract claims premised upon implied employment contracts.

"Insured" means:
a. The Named Insured:
b. Any current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named
insured, as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of
their duties as such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving

the named insured as an independent contractor; or

c. City or county prosecutors, or appointed city attorneys while serving as independent contractors, in the
course and scope of their statutory roles.

C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreement

The following condition is applicable to this Section only. It may amend conditions located in Section Il General
Conditions of this policy.

1.

Retroactive Date. All wrongful employment practice acts must take place on or after the applicable
retroactive date shown in the declaration pages of this policy and before the expiration of this policy period.

D. Exclusions Applicable to Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1.

The Employment Practices Liability Insuring Agreement 1 of this Section does not cover any claim:

a. Or occurrence, accident or other covered loss more specifically covered under any other section of this
policy.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 46 ICRMP39A2020



b. For which you are entitled to indemnity and/or payment by reason of having given notice of any
circumstances which might give rise to a c/aim under any policy or policies, the term of which has
commenced prior to the inception date of this policy, or from a wrongful employment practice act which
occurred prior to the applicable retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

¢. Resulting from a continuing wrongful employment practice act which commences prior to the applicable
retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages of this policy.

d. Arising out of law enforcement activities or the performance of law enforcement duties.
e. To any claim for damages arising out of:

(1) Any sexual molestation wrongful act that results in a claim or any sexual abuse wrongful act that
results in a claim; or

(2) A series of related sexual molestation wrongful acts or a series of related sexual abuse wrongful
acts that have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of causally or logically related acts as a
result of, caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or acts committed by anyone against
any person or persons.

(3) The above exclusions do not apply to a claim for damages arising out of employment sexual
harassment.

f. For personal injury or property damage.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 47 ICRMP338A2020



SECTION XIll ~-SEXUAL MOLESTATION OR SEXUAL ABUSE LIABILITY INSURANCE
CLAIMS MADE ONLY

A. Insuring Agreement Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only. Also, the following insuring agreements are
subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this
policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1.

Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums you become
legally obligated to pay as damages arising out of a sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury claim
or a series of related sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury claims which are first made in
writing to us by you against an insured during this policy period, or any extended reporting period we provide,
arising out of any sexual molestation or sexual abuse incident or a series of related sexual molestation or
sexual abuse incidents. This insurance applies to bodily injury only if:

a. The bodily injury is caused by a sexual molestation or sexual abuse incident or a series of related sexual
molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury incidents that take place in the coverage territory; and

b. The bodily injury caused by a sexual molestation or sexual abuse or a series of related sexual
molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury incidents did not first occur before the retroactive date shown in
the declarations pages; and

c. The first incident of sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury to the injured person(s) takes place
on or after the retroactive date and before the end of this policy period.

Subject to the above, all claims for damages because of bodily injury arising out of a sexual molestation
or sexual abuse incident or a series of related sexual molestation or sexual abuse incidents whether
committed by the same perpetrator or two or more perpetrators acting in concert and without regard to the
number of:

(1) Incidents of sexual molestation or sexual abuse taking place thereafter;
) Victims of sexual molestation or sexual abuse;

(2

(3) Locations where the sexual molestation or sexual abuse took place;

(4) ICRMP policy periods over which the acts of sexual molestation or sexual abuse took place; or
(5

) Breach of any legal obligation arising out of any sexual molestation or sexual abuse, or suspected or
threatened sexual molestation or sexual abuse, or breach of duty to any person who was sexually
molested or sexually abused,

will be treated as a single sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury claim considered first made
against an insured and reported in writing to us during the policy period or any extended reporting period
when the first of such claims is made and only that policy period coverage section limits of indemnification as
stated in the declarations page apply to such single claim.

B. Definitions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section I
General Definitions of this policy.

1.

"Bodily Injury™ means bodily injury, sickness, disease, shock, fright, mental injury or anguish, emotional
distress or disability sustained by a natural person, including death resulting from any of these at any time
resulting from sexual molestation or sexual abuse.

“Claim” means a suit or demand made by or for the injured person for monetary damages because of alleged or
actual bodily injury caused by sexual molestation or sexual abuse.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 48 ICRMP39A2020




3. "Insured" means:

a. The Named Insured,

b. Any current or former elected or appointed official serving as a volunteer or employee of the named insured,
as well as any volunteer or employee of the named insured while acting within the scope of their duties as
such. This does not include any appointed or elected official or employee who is serving the named insured
as an independent contractor; or

c. City or county prosecutors, or appointed city attorneys while serving as independent contractors, in the
course and scope of their statutory roles.

4. “Related Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Bodily Injury” means sexual molestation or sexual abuse
bodily injury that has as a common nexus with, or involving, a series of casually or logically related acts.

5. “Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse” means:
a. The alleged, actual, threatened, unwelcome or offensive:

(1) Physical conduct, including sexual abuse or molestation by anyone of any person while in the care,
custody or control of any insured; or

(2) Verbal or written conduct or conduct using visual images, including conduct by electronic means;
b. Including:
(1) The negligent:
(a) Employment;
(b) Investigation;
(c) Supervision;
(d) Reporting to proper authorities, or failure to so report; or
(e) Retention;

of a person for whom any insured is or ever was legally responsible and whose conduct is defined
herein.

c. Breach of any legal obligation arising out of any sexual molestation or sexual abuse occurrence, or
suspected or threatened sexual molestation or sexual abuse, or breach of any duty to any person who was
abused or molested.

C. Specific Conditions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring Agreement

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section lli
General Conditions of this policy.

1. Retroactive Date. All sexual molestation or sexual abuse claims must take place on or after the applicable
retroactive date as shown in the declaration pages of this policy and before the expiration of this policy period.

D. Exclusions Applicable to Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

1. With Respect to Insuring Agreement 1 Sexual Molestation or Sexual Abuse Liability Insurance of this
. Section does not apply:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 49 ICRMP39A2020



a. Toany claim, occurrence, accident, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice act or other
covered loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

b. To any claim relating to wrongful employment practice acts of the employment of any person, including
threatened, actual or alleged discrimination or harassment.

c. Toany claim or suit for which the only monetary damages sought are costs of suit and/or attorney's fees.
d. Any sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury claim:
(1) Based upon, or arising out of, sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury which is the subject of
any notice given under any policy or policies the term of which has or have expired prior to the inception

date of this policy.

(2) Arising out of any sexual molestation or sexual abuse bodily injury that first takes place prior to the retro
date of this policy.

(3) Caused by any insured who is found by a court of law to have committed a criminal act involving sexual
molestation or sexual abuse. However, we will pay covered damages the named insured becomes
legally obligated to pay as a result of an employee’s actions if such obligation is created pursuant to the
Idaho Tort Claims Act, another state’s similar law or federal law.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 50 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION XIV ~CHEMICAL SPRAYING ACTIVITIES LIABILITY INSURANCE

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE ONLY

A. Insuring Agreement Applicable to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insurance

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Section only and may amend insuring agreements
located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring agreements are
subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this
policy, unless amended as stated within this Section.

1. Chemical Spraying Activities Liability. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which you become
legally obligated to pay as damages because of a claim arising out of an occurrence for chemical spraying
activities against an insured which is first made in writing to us by you during this policy period, or any
extended reporting period we provide. For this insuring agreement, two or more claims arising out of a
single occurrence or series of related occurrences shall be treated as a single claim. All bodily injury to
one or more persons and/or property damage arising out of an accident or a continuous or repeated
exposure to conditions shall be deemed one occurrence. This insuring agreement only applies if the incident
did not first occur before the retroactive date as stated in the declarations pages or after the end of this policy
period, or any extended reporting period we provide.

B. Definitions Applicable to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insuring Agreement

The following definitions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend definitions located in Section II
General Definitions of this policy.

1. “Chemical Spraying Activities" means the intended dispersal of herbicides, defoliants, insecticides,
pesticides or other toxic materials approved by the federal government for the eradication of undesirable

plant growth, insects or rodents and the mixing, loading, storage, transportation and disposal of such
materials.

2. "Claim" means a demand received by you for money damages alleging a wrongful act of a tortious
nature by an insured.

3. "Occurrence" means an accident or a continuous or repeated exposure to chemical spraying activities
which results in bodily injury or property damage during the policy period. The occurrence must first
commence and be sustained on or after the retroactive date set forth in the declarations pages and prior to
the effective date of this policy’s cancellation or termination.

C. Specific Conditions to Chemical Spraying Activities Liability Insuring Agreement

The following conditions are applicable to this Section only. They may amend conditions located in Section III
General Conditions of this policy.

1. Exception to Absolute Pollution Exclusion. The insurance afforded by this section constitutes an express
exception to the Absolute Pollution Exclusion set forth in the General Exclusions section IV of this policy. As
an exception to such exclusion, this coverage stands only to pay legally required damages for bodily injury
or property damage not to exceed the Limits of Indemnification stated in the policy declarations, and not in

any circumstances for natural resource damage claims made or penalties or fines imposed pursuant to state
or federal law.

2. Retroactive Date. All claims must take place on or after the applicable retroactive date as shown in the
declaration pages of this policy and before the expiration date of this policy period.

D. Exclusions to Chemical Spraying Liability Activities Liability Insuring Agreement

The following exclusion are applicable to this Section only. They may amend exclusions located in Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 51 ICRMP39A2020



1. Toany claim, occurrence, accident, failure to educate, wrongful act or wrongful employment practice
act or other covered loss more specifically covered under any other section of this policy.

2. Toany claim or suit for which the only monetary damages sought are costs of suit and/or attorney's fees.

3. Toany claim for which you are entitled to indemnity and/or payment by reason of having given notice of any
circumstances which might give rise to a claim under any other policy or policies of insurance.

4. To any occurrences for bodily injury arising out of:

(1) Any sexual molestation occurrence that results in a claim or any sexual abuse occurrence that results
in a claim; or

(2) A series of related sexual molestation occurrences that results in a claim or a series of related sexual
abuse occurrences that results in a claim that have as a common nexus with, or involve, a series of
causally or logically related acts as a result of, caused by, contributed by, or in connection with any act or
acts committed by anyone against any person or persons.

lLanguage Effective October 1, 2019 52 ICRMP39A2020



SECTION XV -ENDORSEMENTS

THESE ENDORSEMENTS MODIFY THE POLICY.
PLEASE READ THEM CAREFULLY.

Nothing herein contained in any of the listed endorsements shall be held to vary, alter,
waive or extend any of the terms, conditions, or limitations of the policy to which these
endorsements are attached other than as stated. All definitions listed in the General
Definitions of this Policy apply when not amended within each Endorsement.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 53 ICRMP39A2020



#1 ACCIDENTAL DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS AMENDATORY
ENDORSEMENT

Section V — Property is amended by the following:

A. Insuring Agreement to Accidental Discharge of Pollutants Endorsement

The following insuring agreement is applicable to this Endorsement only and may amend insuring
agreements located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following
insuring agreement is subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and
Section IV General Exclusions of this policy, unless amended as stated within this Endorsement.

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the policy to which this endorsement
attaches, it is hereby understood and agreed that Section V, Property Insurance, is extended to
cover “pollution cost or expense” related to an otherwise covered accident as covered by
section V, Property. This endorsement is limited to $100,000 per occurrence and in the policy
limits aggregate per policy period.

B. Definitions Applicable to Accidental Discharge of Pollutants Endorsement

The following definition is applicable to this Endorsement only. It may amend a definition located in
Section Il General Definitions of this policy or Section V Property definitions.

1. “Pollution Cost or Expense” means any cost or expense arising out of costs incurred by you to
monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify, neutralize or in any way respond to or assess
the effects of pollutants related to any otherwise covered claim as defined in section V Property
Insurance. This coverage will apply whether this cost is incurred due to a request, order, or suit
by any governmental agency or at the discretion of the named insured.

C. Exclusions Applicable to Accidental Discharge of Pollutants Endorsement

The following exclusion is applicable to this Endorsement only. It may amend exclusions located in
Section IV General Exclusions of this policy and Section V Property exclusions.

1. This endorsement does not extend to any landfill, transfer station, trash or recycling collection
facility or any other facility designed primarily for the collection or transfer of refuse or recycling
content, or the automobiles and mobile equipment associated with any such described
focation.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the Section | General
Insuring Agreements, Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions, Section IV
General Exclusions or any specific Section insuring agreements, definitions, conditions, or
exclusions to which this endorsement is attached other than as above stated.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 54 ICRMP39A2020



#2 CYBER AND TECHNOLOGY LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT

THIS ENDORSEMENT IS LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS THAT ARE FIRST MADE

AGAINST YOU AND REPORTED IN WRITING TO US DURING THE POL!CY PERIOD.

CLAIM EXPENSES ARE WITHIN AND REDUCE THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY.

CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE

l. Insuring Agreements

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Endorsement only. They may amend insuring
agreements located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the below listed insuring
agreements are subject to Section Il General Definitions, Section Il General Conditions and Section [V
General Exclusions of this policy. It may also amend Section IX General Liability Insuring Agreements. It
may also amend Section V Property Insuring Agreements.

A

Third Party Liability Coverages. We will pay on behalf of an insured claim expenses and
damages in excess of the applicable retention that you are legally obligated to pay as the result
of a claim first made against you during the policy period or extended reporting period (if
applicable) alleging a:

1.

2.

Media — media wrongful act;

Privacy and Cyber Security — privacy and security wrongful act,

Committed by you, a rogue employee, an outsourced provider, or by a third party for whose
third-party wrongful act you are legally responsible.

3.

Privacy Regulatory Defense, Awards and Fines - We will pay on behalf of an insured
claim expenses and regulatory damages in excess of any deductible that you are legally
obligated to pay as the result of a privacy regulatory action first made against you during
the policy period or any extended reporting period (if applicable) alleging a privacy and
security wrongful act you, a rogue employee, an outsourced provider, or by a third party
for whose privacy and security wrongful act you are legally responsible.

PCI DSS Coverage. We will reimburse you for PCI DSS fines and costs in excess of your
deductible that you are legally obligated to pay as the result of a claim first made against you
during the policy period or extended reporting period (if applicable) alleging a PCI DSS
wrongful act committed by you, a rogue employee, an outsourced provider, or by a third
party for whose PCI DSS wrongful act you are legally responsible.

First Party Coverages.

1.

Business Interruption and Extra Expenses. We will pay or reimburse you for:
a. loss of business income after the waiting period; and
b. extra expenses in excess of your deductible,

during the period of restoration that you incur resulting from a cyber security breach
directly causing a total or partial interruption of deterioration of your business operations.

. Data Recovery. We will pay or reimburse you for data recovery expenses in excess of your

deductible that you incur directly resulting from a cyber-security breach.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 55 ICRMP39A2020




3. Cyber-Extortion and Ransomware. We will pay or reimburse you for cyber-extortion
expenses in excess of your deductible that you incur directly resulting from and in response
to a cyber-extortion threat.

4. Dependent Business Interruption — System Failure. We will pay or reimburse you for
system failure dependent business interruption loss.

5. System Failure. We will pay or reimburse you for:
a. loss of business income after a ten (10) hour waiting period,
b. extra expenses in excess of the applicable retention,

during the period of restoration that you incur resulting from any unintentional and
unplanned outage or failure of the network directly causing a total or partial interruption or
deterioration of your business operations.

6. Social Engineering Financial Fraud. We will pay or reimburse you for social engineering
financial fraud losses in excess of your deductible resulting from a social engineering
financial fraud event.

C. Data Breach Response and Crisis Management Coverage.

1. We will pay or reimburse you data breach response and crisis management costs in
excess of your deductible that you incur for a continuous eighteen (18) month period resulting
from a data breach or cyber security breach. The payment period begins when the data
breach or cyber security is reported to us in according with our Notice provision listed
herein.

D. Application of Coverage.
1. The coverage provided under Third Party Liability Coverages above shall apply only if:

a. the first third party wrongful act or related matter occurs on or after the retroactive
date as stated in declarations pages and prior to the Policy expiration date, as stated in
the Declarations page;

b. prior to the Policy’s effective date on the declarations page, or that of the first
endorsement issued and continuously renewed by us, of which this endorsement is a
renewal, no executive officer knew or could have reasonably foreseen that such third
party wrongful act or related matter did or likely would result in a claim,

c. the claim is reported to us during the policy period or extended reporting period (if
applicable) and is reported in accordance with the endorsement Notice provisions; and

d. notice of such third party wrongful act or related matter alleged or contained in any
claim or in any circumstance has not been provided by you and accepted by us under
any prior endorsement of which this endorsement is a renewal or replacement, or any
subsequent endorsement, irrespective of whether such prior or subsequent endorsement
was issued by us or any other entity.

2. The coverage provided under First Party Coverages and Data Breach Response and Crisis
Management Coverage stated above shall apply if and only if:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 56 ICRMP39A2020



. an executive officer first discovers and/or becomes aware of such first party incident or

related matter during the policy period;

. the first party incident is reported to us during the policy period or automatic extended

reporting period (if applicable) and is reported in accordance with the Notice provisions
within this endorsement; and

. notice of such first party incident or related matter has not been provided by you and

accepted by us under any prior policy of which this endorsement is a renewal or
replacement, or any subsequent endorsement, irrespective of whether such prior or
subsequent endorsement was issued by us or other entity.

. the coverage provided under insuring agreement Social Engineering Financial Fraud shall
- apply only if you verify the instruction to transfer money or securities by following a pre-

arranged callback or other established procedural method to authenticate the validity of the
request prior to acting upon any transfer instruction.

Defense and Settlement

A. Defense. We have the right and duty to defend any claim under Third Party Liability
Coverages made against you even if the allegations in the claim are groundless, false or
fraudulent. We will select and appoint defense counsel.

B. Settlement. We have the right to settle a claim. All such payments by us are subject to
Liability and Retention limits as stated in the declarations pages.

Limit of Liability and Retention

A. Limit of Liability Option. We shall elect the endorsement limits to apply on a Combined
Limits or Separate Limits basis as stated on the declarations pages.

1. Combined Limits

a. If we elect Combined Limits then the endorsements Combined Policy Aggregate Limit
is our maximum liability for foss under all Insuring Agreements combined, regardless
of the number of claims, or individuals or entities making claims. Insuring
Agreements triggered or individuals or entities making claims. Upon exhaustion of
such limit of liability, we will not be liable to pay any further Joss with respect to this
endorsement.

b. If a sublimit with respect to an Insuring Agreement is stated, then such sublimit will
be our maximum liability for Joss with respect to such Insuring Agreement. Upon
exhaustion of such sublimit, we will not be liable to pay any further foss with respect
to the coverage provided by the subject Insuring Agreement. Each sublimit will be
part of, and not in addition to, this endorsement’s Combined Policy Aggregate Limit of
Liability and will in no way serve to increase or supplement such limit of liability. All
payments made under a sublimit will reduce such limit of liability.

2. Separate Limits. If we elect Separate Limits then the Endorsement’s:

a. Third and First Party Aggregate Limit, on the Declarations page is our maximum
liability for all damages, claim expenses, regulatory damages, loss of business
income, extra expense, data recovery expenses, and cyber-extortion expenses for
all Third Party Liability Coverages and First Party Coverages, regardless of the number
of insureds, claims, first party incidents, or individuals or entities making claims. If a
sublimit with respect to an Insuring Agreement is stated, then such sublimit will be

Language Effective October 1, 2019 57 ICRMP39A2020



our maximum liability for loss with respect to such Insuring Agreement. Upon
exhaustion of such sublimit, we will not be liable to pay any further loss with respect
to the coverage provided by the subject Insuring Agreement. Each sublimit will be part
of, and not in addition to, the endorsements Third-Party Liability and First Party
Aggregate Limit of Liability and will in no way serve to increase or supplement such
limit of liability. All payments made under a sublimit will reduce such limit of liability.

b. Data Breach Response and Crisis Management Aggregate Limit is our maximum liability
for all data breach response and crisis management costs for Data Breach Response
and Crisis Management Coverage regardless of the number of data breaches.

3. Exhaustion of Limit
a. Upon exhaustion of the:

(1) Combined Endorsement Aggregate Limit of Liability under the Combined Limits
option; or

(2) Third Party and First Party Aggregate Limit of Liability under the Separate Limits
option; and

(3) Data Breach Response and Crisis Management Aggregate Limit of Liability under the
Separate Limits option; or
b. after we have deposited or escrowed any amounts remaining in the Endorsement’s
applicable aggregate limit of liability with a court of competent jurisdiction, we will not be
liable to pay any further Joss under the endorsement.

B. Deductibles.
1. Combined Limits.

a. We are liable only for that portion of covered damages, claim expenses, regulatory
damages, and first party costs (not including loss of business income) in excess of the
applicable Insuring Agreement'’s deductible amount. If more than a single deductible
applies to a claim and/or first party incident, then you are responsible for paying the
highest applicable deductible. The deductible will be borne entirely by you alone and not
by us.

b. Solely with respect to Business Interruption and Extra Expenses Insuring Agreement, we
are liable only for loss of business income in excess of the waiting period.

2. Separate Limits.

a. We are liable only for that portion of covered damages, claim expenses, regulatory
damages, extra expenses, data recovery expense, and cyber-extortion expenses,
that is in excess of the applicable Insuring Agreement’s deductible amount. If more than a
single deductible applies to a claim and/or first party incident, then you are responsible
for paying the highest applicable deductible. The deductible will be borne entirely by you
alone and not by us.

b. With respect to Data Breach Response and Crisis Management Coverage [nsuring
Agreement’s a separate deductible will apply and we are liable only for that portion of any
data breach response and crisis management costs directly resulting from a data
breach or cyber security breach.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 58 ICRMP39A2020



C.

Solely with respect to Business Interruption and Extra Expenses Insuring Agreement, we
are liable only for Joss of business income in excess of the waiting period.

C. Related Matters and Related Losses.

1. Related Third Party Wrongful Acts

a.

A claim resulting from a related matter will be treated as a single claim first made
against you at the time the first such related matter occurred, irrespective of whether
such related matter occurred prior to or during the policy period and irrespective of the
number of related matters, and the identity or number of insureds involved.

2. Related First Party Incidents

a.

A related matter involving a first party incident (other than a cyber-extortion threat)
will be considered a single first party incident which shall be deemed to have been
discovered on the date on which the earliest such first party incident was discovered by
you.

All related matters involving cyber-extortion threats will be considered a single cyber-
extortion threat first occurring on the date the first such cyber-extortion threat
occurred.

3. Related Loss

IV. Definitions

a.

All Joss will be considered a single loss occurring on the date the first related matter
giving rise to such Joss first occurred or was first discovered, irrespective of the number
of related losses, and the identity or number of insureds involved.

The following definitions are applicable to this Endorsement only. They may amend definitions located
in Section Il General Definitions of this policy.

A. Authorized Employee means your employee who is authorized by you to transfer, or to
instruct others to transfer, money or securities.

B. Breach Response Providers means our pre-approved panel of breach vendors.

C. Claim means

1.

2.

A written demand for monetary damages, services, or injunctive or other non-monetary relief;

A civil proceeding for monetary damages, services, or injunctive or other non-monetary relief
that is commenced by service of a complaint or similar pleading, including any appeal thereof;

- A mandatory arbitration or other mandatory alternative dispute resolution proceeding for

monetary damages, services, or injunctive or other non-monetary relief commenced by a

written demand, including any appeal thereof, or a non-mandatory arbitration or other

alternative dispute resolution proceeding to which we have consented in writing;

Solely with respect to Privacy Regulatory Defense, Awards and Fines Insuring Agreement, a

privacy regulatory action; or

5. A request to toll or waive any applicable statute of limitations.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 59 ICRMP39A2020



Claim Expenses means

1.

Reasonable and necessary fees for the defense of a ¢laim defended by an attorney in
accordance with Defense and Settlement above, as well as other reasonable and necessary
fees, costs and expenses that result from the investigation, adjustment, negotiation,
arbitration, defense or appeal of a claim; and

Premiums on appeal bonds, attachment bonds or similar bonds. Provided, however, we are
not obligated to apply for or furnish any such bond.

Confidential Business Information means third party information, whether printed or digital,
encrypted or unencrypted, in the care, custody or control of an insured or outsourced
provider, including a trade secret, formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method,
technique, or process, that derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not
being generally known or readily ascertainable through appropriate means by other person
and is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its
secrecy.

Consumer Redress Amount means that sum of money that you are legally obligated to deposit
in a fund for the payment of consumer claims as the result of a privacy regulatory action.

Cyber-Extortion Expenses means

1.

Reasonable and necessary money, digital currency, property or other consideration
surrendered as payment by or on behalf of you to which we have consented, such consent
not to be unreasonably withheld, in order to prevent, limit or respond to a cyber-extortion
threat, and

. Reasonable and necessary costs charged by:

a. breach response providers; or
b. qualified third parties with our prior consent,

to conduct an investigation to advise you how to respond to and resolve a cyber-extortion
threat.

Cyber-Extortion Threat means

1.

A threat made by a third party or rogue employee demanding payment in consideration for
the elimination, mitigation or removal of the threat intended to:

a. disrupt the network to impair your business operations;
b. alter, damage, or destroy data stored on the network;
C. use the network to generate and transmit malware to third parties;

d. deface your website; and

e. access or release data, including personally identifiable information, protected health

information; confidential business information stored or previously stored on the
network;
f. Refuse to return data stolen from the network; or

Language Effective October 1, 2019 60 ICRMP39A2020



g. Prevent access to the network or data by using encryption and withholding the
decryption key.

H. Cyber Security Breach means any unauthorized: access to, use or misuse of, modification to
the network, and/or denial of network resources by cyber-attacks perpetuated by a third party or
rogue employee through any electronic means, including malware, viruses, worms, and Trojan
horses, spyware and adware, zero-day attacks, hacker attacks and denial of service attacks.

. Damages means compensatory damages resulting from a judgment, award or settlement
agreement, including pre-judgment and post-judgment interest, which you become legally
obligated to pay as a result of a ¢laim, and punitive and exemplary damages, and multiple
damages, if the insuring of such damages is permitted under the laws and public policy of the
jurisdiction under which the endorsement is construed, which you become legally obligated to
pay as a result of a claim. Enforceability of punitive, exemplary damages and multiple damages
will be governed by the applicable law that most favors affirmative coverage for such damages.

Damages do not include:

1. the return of any fees paid to you or the offset of any future fees to be charged by or owed to
you,

2. lost investment income;

3. costs incurred by you to withdraw or recall technology products, including products that
incorporate your technology products, technology services or professional services;

4. costs incurred by you to correct, re-perform or complete any technology services or
professional services,

5. costs incurred by you or by a third party at your direction to remediate, repair, replace,
restore, modify, update, upgrade, supplement, correct, or otherwise improve a network to a
level of functionality beyond that which existed prior to a cyber-security breach:;

6. civil or criminal fines or penalties or compliance violation remedies imposed on you; provided,
however, civil fines or penalties shall constitute damages under the Privacy Regulatory
Defense, Awards and Fines Insuring Agreement;

7. liguidated damages in excess of your liability that otherwise results from a third party
wrongful act,

8. except for social engineering financial fraud loss, the monetary value of an electronic fund
transfer or transaction that is lost or diminished during transfer;

9. any amounts incurred prior to you providing notice of a cfaim pursuant to the terms of this
endorsement;

10. the value of non-monetary relief, including any amount attributable to or arising
therefrom; and

11. royalty or licensing fees or payments.

J. Dependent Business means any entity you rely on to conduct operations pursuant to a written
contract.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 61 ICRMP39A2020



K. Data Breach means any actual or reasonably suspected theft, loss, or unauthorized acquisition,
access to, or disclosure of data or hardware containing data that has or may compromise the
security, confidentiality and/or integrity of personally Identifiable Information, protected health
information or confidential business information.

L. Data Breach Reporting Requirement means any provision in a law, statue or regulation,
domestic or foreign, that requires you to provide notification to affected persons of a suspected
breach of such person’s personally identifiable information or protected health information.

M. Data Breach Response and Crisis Management Costs means

1. Reasonable and necessary costs charged by breach response providers to:

a.

g.

determine the legal applicability of and actions necessary to respond to a data breach
reporting requirement,

perform computer forensics to determine the existence, cause and scope of a data breach
or cyber security breach:;

notify individuals of a data breach either those who are required to be notified pursuant to
a data breach reporting requirement, or on a voluntary basis;

. operate a call center to manage data breach inquiries;

provide credit or identity monitoring and identity protection and restoration services or any
similar service for those individuals whose personally identifiable information was or
may have been breached,;

provide medical identity restoration for those individuals whose protected health
information was or may have been breached; or

minimize your reputational harm by hiring a public relations or crisis communications firm;

2. Reasonable and necessary costs charged by any qualified provider that is not a breach
response providers so long as the qualified provider;

a.

b.

Is pre-approved in writing by us; or

provides comparable services to those enumerated in 1.(a) through 1.(g) above and whose
rate shall not exceed the rate we have pre-negotiated with the breach response
providers; and

3. Costs charged by a PCI Forensics Investigator to perform forensics to determine the
existence, cause and scope of a breach or suspected breach of cardholder data.

N. Data Recovery Expenses means reasonable and necessary costs incurred by you with prior
written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, to:

a.

determine whether damaged or destroyed computer programs, software or electronic
data can be replaced, recreated, restored or repaired; and

replace, recreate, restore or repair such damaged or destroyed computer programs,
software or electronic data residing on the network to substantially the form in which it
existed immediately prior to a cyber-security breach.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 62 ICRMP39A2020



O. Domestic Partner means any spouse or any person qualifying as a domestic partner under
federal, state, foreign, or other law (including common law), statute, or regulation, or under your
employee benefit plan.

P. Executive Officer means any duly elected or appointed Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Privacy Officer, Chief Security Officer, Chief Information
Security Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Risk Manager, General Counsel and in-house attorney
designated to be in charge of litigation, or the functional equivalent of any of the foregoing of your
agency.

Q. Extra Expenses means reasonable and necessary expenses, including payroll, in excess of
your normal operating expenses that you incur to reduce or avoid loss of business income
and/or restore business operations.

R. First Party Costs means any loss of business income, extra expenses, data recovery
expenses, cyber-extortion expenses, data breach response and crisis management costs,
system failure losses and social engineering financial fraud loss. Except with respect to
social engineering financial fraud loss, first party costs do not include any amounts incurred
prior to you providing notice of the first party incident.

S. First Party Incident means a cyber-security breach, cyber-extortion threat, data breach,
system failure or social engineering financial fraud event.

T. Loss means all damages, claim expenses, regulatory damages, first party costs and PCI
DSS fines and costs.

U. Loss of Business Income means

1. Net income (net profit or net loss before income taxes) that could have reasonably been
earned or net loss that could have reasonably been avoided, including the costs of retaining a
forensic accountant to determine such amount. Such forensic accountant will be selected by
us.

2. Aloss of business income calculation is based upon the amount of actual loss of business
income you sustain per hour during the period of restoration.

V. Matter means the content of any communication, including language, data, facts, fiction, music,
photographs, images, artistic expression, or visual or graphical materials. Provided, however,
matter does not include technology products or products or services described, illustrated or
displayed in matter.

W. Media Wrongful Act means

1. Any of the following resulting from you acquiring, blogging, broadcasting, collecting,
disseminating, distributing, editing, exhibiting, gathering, obtaining, posting, producing,
publishing, releasing, researching, recording, tweeting or uttering, matter through traditional
and/or digital methods, including, cable television, radio, movie and music studios, public
speaking, newspapers, magazines, books and print publications, website, apps, CD-ROMs
and DVDs:

a. libel, slander, or any other form of defamation or harm to the character or reputation of
any person or entity, including product disparagement or trade libel;

b.  copyright infringement or misappropriation of property rights, information or ideas or

dilution or infringement of title, slogan, trademark, trade name, logo, service mark or
service name;

Language Effective October 1, 2019 63 ICRMP39A2020



c.  common law unfair competition or unfair trade practices alleged as a direct result of
Media Wrongful Act Insuring Agreement and Media Wrongful Act definition:

d. invasion or infringement of the right of privacy or publicity, including the torts of intrusion
upon seclusion, publication of private facts, false light, and misappropriation of name or
likeness;

e. infliction of emotional distress or mental anguish;

f.  false arrest, detention or imprisonment, harassment, trespass, wrongful entry or eviction,
eavesdropping, or other invasion of the right of private occupancy; or

g. plagiarism, piracy, or misappropriation of ideas under implied contract.

X. Merchant Services Agreement means an agreement between you and a financial institution,
credit/debit card company, credit/debit card processor or Independent service operator enabling
you to accept credit card, debit card, prepaid card, or other payment cards for payments or
donations.

Y. Money means your currency, coins and bank notes in current use and having a face value; and
travelers checks and money orders held for sale to the public.

Z. Network means a connected system of computing hardware, software, firmware and associated
electronic components and mobile devices, including industrial control systems and SCADA
systems (Supervisory control and data acquisition systems) or other industrial IT, under the
ownership, operation or control of, or leased by you.

AA. Outsourced Provider means any third party, including a cloud service provider, to which you
have contracted to provide a business process on your behalf and your benefit.

BB. Period of Restoration means

a.  Solely with respect to loss of business income, that period of time that begins at the end
of the waiting period and continues until your operations are restored to the condition that
existed immediately prior to the cyber security breach or system failure: and

b.  Solely with respect to extra expenses, that period of time that begins after a cyber
security breach or system failure has directly caused a total or partial interruption or
deterioration in your business operations and continues until your operations are restored
to the condition that existed immediately prior to the cyber security breach or system
failure.

CC. Personally Identifiable Information means:

1. information, whether printed or digital, encrypted or unencrypted, in your or an outsourced
provider’s care, custody or control, that alone or in conjunction with can be used to
uniquely identify an individual; or

2. information concerning an individual that would be considered “personal data” or “sensitive
personal data” within the meaning of the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation
(EU) 2016/678) (GDPR) and any amendments thereto.

DD. PCI DSS Fines and Costs means fines, penalties, assessments, fraud recovery an operational
expense recovery that you are contractually obligated to pay under its merchant services

Language Effective October 1, 2019 64 ICRMP39A2020



agreement(s) as the result of a PCI DSS wrongful act. Provided, however, PCI DSS fines and
costs does not mean interchange fees, discount fees or prospective service fees.

EE. PCI DSS Wrongful Act means any actual or alleged cyber security breach or privacy and
security wrongful act resulting in the unauthorized acquisition of cardholder data as defined
under PCI-DSS.

FF. Policy Period means the period stated in the declarations pages, beginning on the effective date
and expiring on the date of termination, expiration or cancellation of this policy, whichever is
earliest.

GG. Privacy and Security Wrongful Act means any:

1. Loss, theft or failure to protect, or unauthorized acquisition of personally identifiable
information, protected health information or confidential business information,

2. violation of any law, statute or regulation governing the authenticity, availability,
confidentiality, storage, control, disclosure, integrity, or use of personally identifiable
information or protected health information;

3. violation of a data breach reporting requirement,

4. failure to reasonably implement privacy or security practices required by law or regulations;

5. failure to prevent a cyber-security breach that results in:

a) the inability of an authorized user to gain access to the network;

b) the malicious addition, alteration, copy, destruction, deletion, disclosure, damage,
removal or theft of data residing on the network; or

c) the transmission of malware from the network to third parties; or
6. Failure to comply with your privacy policy and/or privacy notice.
HH. Privacy Regulatory Action means a written request for information, civil investigative demand or
civil proceeding brought by or on behalf of a governmental, regulatory authority, or authorized

data protection authority.

Il.  Privacy Regulatory Fine means a civil monetary fine or penalty imposed on you by a
governmental or regulatory authority.

JJ. Professional Service means the technology services you provide to others.

KK. Protected Health Information means all protected and individually identifiable health
information, whether printed or digital, encrypted or unencrypted, held or transmitted by you or
your business associate, as those terms are defined by HITECH, the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 Privacy Rule or any amendment thereto, including the Health
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act and final Omnibus Rule issued on
January 17, 2013 or any equivalent foreign regulation.

LL. Regulatory Damages means any consumer redress amount and privacy regulatory fine.

MM. Related Loss means a loss that results or arises from the same, similar or continuous claim or
first party incident.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 65 ICRMP39A2020



NN.

00.

PP.

Qa.

RR.

SS.

TT.

Uu.

Related Matter means

1. A third party wrongful act that is the same, similar or arises from a continuous nexus of
facts, circumstances, acts, errors or omissions, whether or not such third party wrongful act
is logically or causally related or connected; or

2. A first party incident that is the same, similar or arises from a continuous nexus of facts or
circumstances, whether or not such first party incident is logically or causally related or
connected.

Retroactive Date means the applicable date stated, if any, in on the Declarations page for each
Insuring Agreement in Third Party Liability Coverages.

Rogue Employee means your employee who deliberately acts outside the course and scope of
employment and whose intentional conduct results in a claim or first party incident; provided,
however, rogue employee does not include an executive officer.

Securities means your negotiable and nonnegotiable instruments or contracts representing
either money or property, and includes tokens, tickets, revenue and other stamps (whether
represented by actual stamps or unused value in a meter) in current use, and evidences of debt
issued in connection with credit or charge cards, which cards are not issued by you.

Social Engineering Financial Fraud means the transfer of money or securities to an account
outside your control pursuant to instructions made by a person purporting to be an authorized
employee, outsourced provider or customer of yours, when such instructions prove to have been
fraudulent and issued by a person who is not an authorized employee, outsourced provider, or
customer of the yours.

Social Engineering Financial Fraud Loss means loss of money or securities in a social
engineering financial fraud.

Sublimit means the applicable amount, if any, stated on the Declarations page for each Insuring
Agreement within each Coverage Section.

System Failure means any unintentional and unplanned outage or failure of a connected system
of computing hardware, software, firmware and associated electronic components and mobile
devices, including industrial control systems and SCADA systems (Supervisory control and data
acquisition systems) or other industrial IT, under the ownership, operation or control of, or leased
by, a dependent business.

System Failure Dependent Business Interruption Loss means:

1. loss of business income after the waiting period,

2. extra expenses in excess of your deductible,

3. during the period of restoration that you incur resulting from a system failure to a
dependent business directly causing a total or partial interruption or deterioration in your
business operations.

System Failure Dependent Business Interruption Loss does not mean:

1. loss of market share or other consequential loss;

2. loss arising out of liability to any third party;

Language Effective October 1, 2019 66 ICRMP39A2020



3. legal expenses;
4. loss incurred as a result of unfavorable business conditions.

WW. System Failure Losses means loss of business income and extra expense does not include
losses arising out of a loss of market share or any other consequential loss and any losses
incurred by you to upgrade, enhance, or replace the network to a condition beyond that which
existed immediately prior to sustaining a system failure.

XX. Technology Products means computer or telecommunications hardware or software products,
components or peripherals or electronic products or components, including software updates,
service packs and other maintenance releases provided for such products:

1. created, designed, distributed, manufactured, or sold by or on behalf and for your benefit of a;
or

2. leased or licensed by you to third parties.

YY. Technology Services means any computer, cloud computing, information technology,
telecommunication, electronic services and any related consulting and staffing services, including
data processing, data and application hosting, the provision of managed services, software as a
service (SaaS), platform as a service (PaaS), infrastructure as a service (laaS), network as a
service (NaaS), computer systems analysis, computer consulting and training, programming,
computer systems installation, management, repair, and maintenance, network design and
Internet service.

ZZ. Third Party Wrongful Act means a technology wrongful act, professional services wrongful
act, media wrongful act, privacy and security wrongful act and PCI DSS wrongful act.

AAA. Waiting Period means the number of hours ten (10) hours must elapse prior to commencement
of the period of restoration.

1I. Exclusions

The following exclusions are applicable to this Endorsement only. It may amend exclusions located in
Section IV General Exclusions of this policy.

The endorsement does not apply to any claim or first party incident alleging, arising out of, based upon
or attributable to:

A. Deliberate Acts/Personal Profit.

1. dishonest, intentional or knowing wrongful, fraudulent, criminal or malicious acts, errors or
omissions or willful violations of law, including privacy laws or regulations, by an Insured,
other than a rogue employee;

2. the gaining of any profit, renumeration, or financial or non-financial advantage to which you
are not entitled, provided, however, we will provide you with a defense of any otherwise
covered claim and pay any otherwise covered claim expenses until there is a final, non-
appealable judgement or adjudication in the underlying action or proceeding or a related
declaratory judgment, as to such conduct, at which time you shall reimburse us for all claim
expenses. Notwithstanding the foregoing, criminal proceedings are not covered under this
policy and/or endorsement regardless of the allegations made against an insured. For the
purposes of determining the applicability of this exclusion, the knowledge of conduct of: (1) a
natural person insured will not be imputed to any other natural person insured, and (2) an
executive officer will be imputed to you.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 67 ICRMP39A2020



B. Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Bodily injury, sickness, disease, emotional distress,
mental injury, mental tension, mental anguish, pain and suffering, humiliation or shock sustained
by any person, including death that results from any of these, or damage to or destruction of any
tangible property, including foss of use thereof whether or not it is damaged or destroyed;
provided, however, this exclusion will not apply to any otherwise covered claim for emotional
distress, mental injury, mental tension or mental anguish, pain and suffering, humiliation or shock
that directly results from a third party wrongful act. For the purposes of this exclusion, “tangible
property” shall not include electronic data.

C. Owned Entity. Claims made against you if, at the time the third party wrongful act giving rise
to such claim was committed:

1. you controlled, owned, operated or managed the claimant; or
2. you were an owner, partner, director, officer or employee of the claimant.

D. Insured Versus Insured. Claims made against an insured and brought by, or on behalf of you
or your successor or assignee of an Insured, provided, however, this exclusion shall not apply to
an otherwise covered claim made by any past or present officer, director, member, principal,
partner, trustee, employee or leased worker or temporary employee of yours, when the claim is
made outside of their capacity and pursuant to their authority as such or against you alleging a
privacy and security wrongful act.

E. Employment Practices. Employment practices; provided, however, this exclusion shall not
apply to an otherwise covered claim under insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber Security.

F. ERISA. Breach of fiduciary duty, responsibility, or obligation in connection with any employee
benefit or pension plan, including violations of the responsibilities, obligations or duties imposed
upon fiduciaries by ERISA (Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974) or any analogous
federal, state or local statutory or common law; provided, however, this exclusion shall not apply
to an otherwise covered claim under insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber Security.

G. Securities. The purchase, sale, or offer or solicitation of an offer to purchase, sell or solicit
securities or any violation of a securities law, including the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and any regulation promulgated under or pursuant to the foregoing, or any
federal, state or local laws analogous to the foregoing (including “Blue Sky” laws), whether such
law is statutory, regulatory or common law.

H. RICO. Violation of the Organized Crime Control Act of 1970 (commonly known as Racketeer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, or “RICQO”") and any regulation promulgated under or
pursuant to the foregoing or any federal, state or local law analogous to the foregoing, whether
such law is statutory, regulatory or common law.

. Antitrust and Unfair Competition. Antitrust violations, restraint of trade, price fixing, or unfair
competition, including, but not limited to violations of The Sherman Act, The Clayton Act, The
Robinson-Patman Act as amended, The Federal Trade Commission Act, or any federal, state or
local laws analogous to the foregoing; provided, however, this exclusion shall not apply to an
otherwise covered claim under insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber Security or insuring
agreement Privacy Regulatory Defense, Awards and Fines, or a claim claim resulting from Media
wrongful act under Media.

J. Consumer Protection and Deceptive Business Practices.

1. unfair, deceptive or fraudulent business practices, including, but not limited to, violations
consumer protection statutes and consumer fraud statues; provided, however, this exclusion

Language Effective October 1, 2019 68 ICRMP39A2020



shall not apply to an otherwise covered claim under insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber
Security or insuring agreement Privacy Regulatory Defense, Awards and Fines; and

2. any action brought under the Fair Credit Reporting Act or other analogous federal, state or
local statute, law, regulation or common law.

K. Unsolicited Communications. Unsolicited communications by or on behalf of you to actual or
prospective customers of yours or any other third party, including actions brought under the
Telephone Consumer Protection Act, the CAN-SPAM Act of 2003 or other analogous federal,
state or local statute, law, regulation or common law; provided, however, this exclusion shall not
apply to an otherwise covered claim directly resulting from a eyber-security breach under
insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber Security or any loss of business income otherwise
covered under insuring agreement Business Interruption and Extra Expense.

L. Patent. Actual or alleged infringement, misappropriation, dilution, misuse or inducement to
infringe, misappropriate, dilute of misuse any patent or patent right.

M. Trade Secrets. Actual or alleged misappropriation of trade secrets; provided, however, this
exclusion shall not apply to an otherwise covered claim directly resulting from a cyber-security
breach under insuring agreement Privacy and Cyber Security.

N. Pollution. Actual, alleged or threatened emission, discharge, dispersal, seepage, release or
escape of pollutants or testing for, monitoring, removal, containment, treatment, detoxification,
neutralization or cleanup of any pollutants.

O. Contractual. Any obligation you have under written contract; provided, however, this exclusion
shall not apply to liability you would have in the absence of a contract or your.

1. breach of an exclusivity or confidentiality provision contained in a written agreement;
2. violation of an intellectual property right except a violation of a patent right;

3. negligent performance of technology services or professional services for a client or
customer; or

4. provision of technology products to a client or customer which contain a material defect; or
5. breach of your privacy policy and/or privacy notice.

6. Obligation to indemnify, reimburse or compensate pursuant to a Merchant Services
Agreement.

P. Force Majeure. Fire, smoke, explosion, lightning, wind, water, flood, earthquake, volcanic
eruption, tidal wave, landslide, hail, or act of God, however caused.

Q. War. Strikes or similar labor action, war, whether declared or not, invasion, act of foreign enemy,
civil war, mutiny, coup d'état, civil commotion assuming the proportions of or amounting to a
popular rising, military rising, insurrection, rebellion, revolution, military or usurped power, or any
action taken to hinder or defend against these actions; provided, however, this exclusion shall not
apply to any actual, alleged or threatened attack against the network, with the intention to cause
harm to further social, ideological, religious or political objectives or to intimidate any person or
entity in furtherance of such objectives.

R. Infrastructure Failure. Electrical, mechanical, Internet, telecommunication, cable or satellite

failure, fluctuation or outage not under an Insured's operational control, however caused,
including any electrical power interruption, short-circuit, surge, brownout or blackout.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 69 ICRMP39A2020



S. Governmental Orders. Any court order or demand requiring you to provide law enforcement,
any administrative, regulatory or judicial body or other governmental authority access to
personally identifiable information, protected health information or confidential business
information.

T. Over-Redemption. Price discounts, prizes, awards, coupons or any other valuable consideration
given in excess of the contracted or expected amount.

U. Unauthorized Collection and Use. Unauthorized or unlawful collection, acquisition or use of
personally identifiable information or protected health information by you; provided,
however, this exclusion shall not apply to a c/laim directly resulting from the acts of a rogue
employee.

lil. Notice

A. Notice of Circumstance. Solely with respect to insuring agreement Third Party Liability
Coverages, if during the policy period or the extended reporting period (if applicable), you first
become aware of any circumstance that may reasonably be expected to be the basis of a claim
being made against an Insured, and if during the policy period, you elect to provide us written
notice of the circumstance along with any third party wrongful act, the reasons for anticipating
such claim, with full particulars as to the dates, persons and entities involved, then any resulting
claim which is subsequently made against you and reported to us that arises out of such
circumstance or related matter will be considered made at the time such notice of circumstance
was provided.

B. Notice of Claim and First Party Incident. You, as a condition precedent to the obligations of
ours under the endorsement, must provide us written notice as soon as reasonably practicable,
but in no event, later than the end of the policy period or any applicable extended reporting
period of a:

1. claim first made against you after you become aware of such claim; and

2. first party incident is discovered by you and/or becomes aware of such first party
incident.

C. Notice to Whom
1. Notice of a claim and/or first party incident must be provided to us.
2. The email/certified post mail defined above shall be deemed effective when received by us.
D. When A Claim Is Deemed Made
1. A claim will be deemed made pursuant to definition of claim:
a. on the earliest date you receive the first written demand;
b. on the date of service; and
c. onthe date you receive written notice of such action.
E. Insured’s Claim and First Party Incident Obligations

1. In connection with a:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 70 ICRMP39A2020



a.

claim, you will, as a condition precedent to the obligations of us under the endorsement,
provide us with all information that we reasonably require, including full particulars as to the
dates, persons and entities involved in the claim and the manner in which you first became
aware of the claim;

. first party incident, you will, as a condition precedent to the obligations of us under the

endorsement, provide us with all information that we reasonably require, including full
particulars as to the dates, persons and entities involved in the first party incident and the
manner in which you first became aware of the first party incident. Additionally, as a
condition precedent to the obligations of us under this endorsement, you will provide us
with proof of Joss with full particulars within three (3) months: after the first discovery by
you of the first party incident (other than a cyber-extortion threat) or first occurrence of
the cyber-extortion.

F. Assistance and Cooperation

1. You will reasonably cooperate with us and upon our request:

a.

b.

g.

assist us in the investigation of any third party wrongful act and first party incident.
attend hearings, depositions and trials;
assist us in defending and effecting settlements of claims;

secure and provide evidence which includes, but is not limited to, obtaining the
attendance of witnesses;

allow us to participate in the handling and management of any suit or proceeding;

assist us in enforcing any right, contribution or indemnity against a third party which may
be liable to you; and

allow a computer forensics expert access to systems, files and information.

2. You will take all reasonable steps to limit and mitigate any loss arising from any third party
wrongful act or first party incident for which coverage may be or is sought under the
endorsement. You will do nothing which in any way increases our exposure under the
endorsement or in any way prejudices our potential or actual rights of recovery. You will not,
except at your own cost, voluntarily make any payment, assume or admit any liability or incur
any expense without our prior written consent.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the Section |
General Insuring Agreements, Section Il General Definitions, Section lll General
Conditions, Section IV General Exclusions or any specific Section insuring agreements,
definitions, conditions, or exclusions to which this endorsement is attached other than

as above stated.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 71 ICRMP39A2020



# 3 TERRORISM LIABILITY AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

A. Insuring Agreement Applicable to Terrorism Liability Amendatory Endorsement:

The following insuring agreement is applicable to this Endorsement only and amends Insuring Agreement
1 located Section VIl General Liability.

1. We agree to pay on your behalf those sums which an insured becomes legally obligated to pay as
damages to others because of bodily injury or property damage caused by an act of terrorism.

B. Definition Applicable to Terrorism Liability Amendatory Endorsement:

1. Terrorism means an act or series of acts, including the use of force or violence, of any person or
groups of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organizations,
committed for political, religious or ideological purposes including the intention to influence any
government and/or to put the public in fear for such purposes.

C. Conditions Applicable to Terrorism Liability Amendatory Endorsement:
1. This coverage is sublimited to $500,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate annually;

2. The limits of indemnification shall be reduced by all sums paid by worker's compensation benefits or
similar disability law if the claimant is your employee or volunteer;

3. This coverage is extended to pay for legally obligated and statutorily allowable costs imposed by state
or federal government agencies specifically related to the suppression of fire only if such costs arise
out of a covered occurrence.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the Section |
General Insuring Agreements, Section Il General Definitions, Section Il General Conditions,
Section IV General Exclusions or any specific Section insuring agreements, definitions,
conditions, or exclusions to which this endorsement is attached other than as above stated.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 72 ICRMP39A2020



#4 PUBLIC LAND FIRE SUPPRESSION AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

A. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Public Land Fire Suppression Liability

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the policy to which this endorsement attaches,
it is hereby understood and agreed that section VI, General Liability Insurance, is extended to pay
for legally obligated and statutorily allowable costs imposed by state or federal government agencies
specifically related to the suppression of fire only if such costs arise out of a covered occurrence.

B. Insuring Agreements Applicable to Public Land Fire Suppression Liability

1. This endorsement is limited to $500,000 per occurrence and in the annual aggregate.

C. Exclusions Applicable to Public Land Fire Suppression Liability

1. This endorsement will not pay for penalties or fines imposed pursuant to state or federal law under
any circumstance.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the terms,
conditions, or limitations of the policy to which this endorsement is attached other than
as above stated. All other definitions listed in the General Definitions of this Policy apply
when not amended within this Endorsement.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 73 ICRMP39A2020



# 5 ASBESTOS REMEDIATION AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

The following insuring agreement is applicable to this Endorsement only and amends Insuring Agreement
1 located Section V Property. Also, the below listed insuring agreement is subject to Section | General
Insuring Agreement, Section Il General Definitions, Section lll General Conditions and Section IV General
Exclusions of this policy, unless amended as stated within this Endorsement.

A. Section V does not cover

1. Asbestos removal from any good, product or structure unless the asbestos is itself damaged by
fire, lightning, aircraft impact, explosion, riot, civil commotion, smoke, vehicle impact, windstorm

or hail, vandalism, malicious mischief, leakage or accidental discharge from automatic fire
protective system.

2. Demolition or increased cost of reconstruction, repair, debris removal or loss of use necessitated
by the enforcement of any law or ordinance regulating asbestos.

3. Any governmental direction or request declaring that asbestos present in or part of or utilized on

any undamaged portion of an insured’s property can no longer be used for the purpose for which
it was intended or installed and must be removed or modified.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the Section |
General Insuring Agreements, Section Il General Definitions, Section Ill General
Conditions, Section IV General Exclusions or any specific Section insuring agreements,
definitions, conditions, or exclusions to which this endorsement is attached other than
as above stated.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 74 ICRMP39A2020



# 6 — EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

Section V — Property is amended by the following:

A. Insuring Agreement to Equipment Breakdown Insurance Endorsement

The following insuring agreements are applicable to this Endorsement only and may amend insuring
agreements located in Section | General Insuring Agreement of this policy. Also, the following insuring
agreement is subject to Section 1l General Definitions, Section Il General Conditions and Section IV
General Exclusions of this policy, unless amended as stated within this Endorsement. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in the policy to which this endorsement attaches, it is hereby understood
and agreed that Section V, Property Insurance, is extended to cover Equipment Breakdown insurance as
listed below.

1. The most we will pay for any and all insuring agreements for loss or damage from any one
breakdown is the applicable limit of insurance shown in the declarations pages. Unless a higher limit
is shown in the declarations pages, the most we will pay for direct damage as a direct result of a
breakdown to covered equipment is $50,000 for each of the following. The limits for coverage
extensions are part of, not in addition to, the limit of indemnification for equipment breakdown shown in
the declarations pages.

2. Spoilage. We will pay for the spoilage damage to raw materials, property in process or finished
products, provided all of the following conditions are met:

a. The raw materials, property in process or finished products must be in storage or in the course of
being manufactured,;

b. You must own or be legally liable under written contract for the raw materials, property in process or
finished products; and

c. The spoilage damage must be due to the lack or excess of power, light, heat, steam or refrigeration.

We will also pay any necessary expenses you incur to reduce the amount of loss under this coverage.
We will pay such expenses to the extent that they do not exceed the amount of loss that otherwise
would have been payable under this coverage endorsement.

3. Service Interruption. We will pay for loss resulting from the interruption of utility services provided
all of the following conditions are met:

a. The interruption is the direct result of a breakdown to covered equipment owned, operated or
controlled by the local private or public utility or distributor that directly generates, transmits,
distributes or provides utility services which you receive;

b. The covered equipment is used to supply electric power, communication services, air
conditioning, heating, gas, sewer, water or steam to your premises; and

c. The interruption of utility service to your premises lasts at least the consecutive period of time of

the waiting period, which is twenty-four (24) hours. Once this waiting period is met, coverage will
commence at the initial time of the interruption and will be subject to all applicable deductibles.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 75 ICRMP39A2020



4, Business Income:

a. We will pay your actual loss of business income that results directly from the necessary total or
partial interruption of your business caused by a breakdown.

b. We will also pay any necessary expenses you incur to reduce the amount of loss under this
coverage. We will pay for such expenses to the extent that they do not exceed the amount of loss
that otherwise would have been payable under this coverage.

c. We will consider the actual experience of your business before the accident and the probable
experience you would have had without the accident in determining the amount of its payment.

d. This coverage continues until the date the damaged property is repaired or replaced.
5. Expediting Costs:

a. We will pay the reasonable and necessary costs incurred to pay for the temporary repair of
insured damage to covered equipment and to expedite the permanent repair or replacement of
such damaged property caused by a breakdown.

b. This coverage extension does not cover costs:

(1) Recoverable elsewhere in this policy; or
(2) Of permanent repair or replacement of damaged property.
6. Hazardous Substance:

a. We will pay any additional expenses incurred by you for the clean-up, repair or replacement or

disposal of covered equipment that is damaged, contaminated or polluted by a hazardous

substance caused by a breakdown.

b. As used here, additional expenses mean the additional cost incurred over and above the amount
that the we would have paid had no hazardous substance been involved with the loss.

7. Ammonia Contamination. We will pay the spoilage to covered equipment contaminated by
ammonia, including any salvage expense caused by a breakdown.

8. Water Damage: We will pay for the damage to covered equipment by water including any salvage
expenses caused by a breakdown, except no coverage applies to such damage resulting from
leakage of a sprinkler system or domestic water piping.

9. Consequential Loss. We will pay the reduction in the value of undamaged stock parts of a product
which becomes unmarketable. The reduction in value must be caused by a physical loss or damage
to another part of the product.

10. Data and Media. We will pay your cost to research, replace or restore damaged data or media
including the cost to reprogram instructions used in any computer equipment if the loss is caused by a
breakdown.

11. CFC Refrigerants. We will pay for the additional cost to repair or replace covered equipment
because of the use or presence of a refrigerant containing CFC (chlorinated fluorocarbon) substances
if the loss is caused by a breakdown. This means the additional expense to do the least expensive of
the following:

Language Effective October 1, 2019 76 ICRMP39A2020



(a) Repair the damaged property and replace any lost CFC refrigerant;

(b) Repair the damaged property, retrofit the system to accept a non-CFC refrigerant and charge the

system with a non-CFC refrigerant; or

(c) Replace the system with one using a non-CFC refrigerant.

12. Computer Equipment. We will pay for direct damage to computer equipment that is damaged by a
breakdown to such equipment.

B. Definitions Applicable to Equipment Breakdown Insurance Endorsement

1.

The following definition is applicable to this Endorsement only. It may amend a definition located in Section
Il General Definitions of this policy or Section V Property definitions.

b.

"Breakdown"
a.

Means the direct physical loss resuiting from one or more of the following items that causes damage
to covered equipment and necessitates its repair or replacement, unless such loss or damage is
otherwise excluded within this section:

(1) Mechanical failure including rupture or bursting caused by centrifugal force;
(2) Electrical failure including arcing;

(3) Explosion of steam boilers, steam piping, steam engines or steam turbines owned or leased by
you, or operated under your control;

(4) Loss or damage to steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines or steam turbines owned by your
ore leased by you, or operated under your control;

(5)Loss or damage to hot water boilers or other water heating equipment caused by or resulting
from any condition or event inside such boilers or equipment;

(6) Failure of pressure or vacuum equipment.
Does not mean or include:

(1) Maifunction including but not limited to adjustment, alignment, calibration, cleaning or
modification;

(2) Defects, erasures, errors, limitations or viruses in computer equipment and programs including
the inability to recognize and process any date or time or provide instructions to covered
equipment,

(3) Leakage at any valve, fitting, shaft seal, gland packing, joint or connection;

(4) Damage to any vacuum tube, gas tube or brush;

(5) Damage to any structure or foundation supporting the covered equipment or any of its parts;
(6) The functioning of any safety or protective device; or

(7) The cracking of any part on an internal combustion gas turbine exposed to the products of
combustion.

2. “Computer Equipment” means property that is electronic computer or other electronic data processing
equipment, including media and peripherals used in conjunction with such equipment.

3. “Covered Equipment”

a.

Means and includes any:
(1) Equipment built to operate under internal pressure or vacuum other than weight of contents;

(2) Electrical or mechanical equipment that is used in the generation, transmission or utilization of
energy; and

Language Effective October 1, 2019 77 ICRMP39A2020



(3) Communication equipment and computer equipment.
b. Does not mean or include any:
(1) Media;
(2) Part of pressure or vacuum equipment that is not under internal pressure of its contents or
internal vacuum.
(3) Insulating or refractory material, but not excluding the glass lining of any covered equipment;

(4) Nonmetallic pressure or vacuum equipment, unless it is constructed and used in accordance
with the

American Society of Mechanical Engineers (A.S.M.E.) code or another appropriate and
approved code;

(5) Catalyst; _

(6) Vessels, piping and other equipment that is buried below ground and requires the excavation of
materials to inspect, remove, repair or replace;

(7) Structure, foundation, cabinet or compartment supporting or containing all or part of the covered
equipment including penstock, draft tube or well casing;

(8) Vehicle, aircraft, self-propelled equipment or floating vessel, including any covered
equipment that is mounted upon or solely with any one or more vehicle(s), aircraft, self-
propelled equipment or floating vessel;

(9) Dragline, excavation or construction equipment including any covered equipment that is
mounted upon or solely used with any one or more dragline(s), excavation, or construction
equipment;

(10)Felt, wire, screen, die, extrusion plate, swing hammer, grinding disc, cutting blade, nonelectrical
cable, chain, belt, rope, clutch plate, brake pad or non-metal part or any part or tool subject to
periodic replacement; or

(11)Equipment or any part of such equipment manufactured by you for sale,

“Data” means
a. Programmed and recorded material stored on media; and
b. Programming records used for electronic data processing or electronically controlled equipment.

“Hazardous Substance” means any substance other than ammonia that has been declared to be
hazardous to health by a government agency. Ammonia is not considered to be a hazardous substance
as respects this limitation.

“Media” means all forms of electronic, magnetic and optical tapes and discs for use in electronic
computer or electronic data processing equipment.

“One Breakdown” means if an initial breakdown causes other breakdowns, all will be considered one
breakdown. All breakdowns at any one premises that manifest themselves at the same time and are
the direct result of the same cause will be considered one breakdown.

“Stock” means merchandise held in storage or for sale, raw materials, property in process or finished
products, including supplies used in their packing or shipping.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 78 ICRMP39A2020



C. Conditions Applicable to Equipment Breakdown Insurance Endorsement

The following condition is applicable to this Endorsement only. It may amend exclusions located in Section
IV General Exclusions of this policy and Section V Property exclusions.

1. Suspension. On discovery of a dangerous condition, we may immediately suspend machinery
breakdown insurance on any machine, vessel or part thereof by giving written notice to you. The
suspended insurance may be reinstated once the dangerous condition is resolved.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 79 ICRMP39A2020



#7 ATTORNEY CONSULTATION REIMBURSEMENT
AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

The following insuring agreement is applicable to this Endorsement only. Also, the below listed insuring
agreement is subject to Section | General Insuring Agreement, Section Il General Definitions, Section il
General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this policy, unless amended as stated within this
Endorsement.

A.

B.

C.

INSURING AGREEMENT APPLICABLE TO THIS AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

The below listed insuring agreement is subject to Section | General Insuring Agreement, Section |l
General Definitions, Section Ill General Conditions and Section IV General Exclusions of this policy,
unless amended as stated within this Endorsement.

1. We will reimburse you for attorney fees incurred by you to obtain an opinion of legal counsel
regarding the appropriateness of a proposed termination of employment of your employee(s)
provided you first notify us of the proposed termination during the policy period and at least 30 days
prior to such termination; and

2. The amounts payable under this endorsement are in addition to the defense costs limits stated within
the declarations pages.

LIMITS OF INSURANCE APPLICABLE TO THIS AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

1. The limit of insurance for reimbursement is $1,500 in attorney costs and fees per termination
considered not to exceed $50,00Q in the aggregate per policy period.

EXCLUSIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT

The following exclusion are applicable to this endorsement only. They may amend definitions located in
Section IV General Exclusions of this policy.

1. Reimbursement of attorney fees does not include the salary, additional wages or costs of any
employee of an insured.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the Section | General
Insuring Agreements, Section Il General Definitions, Section lll General Conditions, Section IV
General Exclusions or any specific Section insuring agreements, definitions, conditions, or
exclusions to which this endorsement is attached other than as above stated.

Language Effective October 1, 2019 80 ICRMP39A2020



ICRMP

Multi-Lines
Insurance Policy

This Policy of Insurance is issued by ICRMP for all public entity Members to be effective 12:01 A.M,,
October 1, 2019 for one-year thereafter, unless sooner terminated, for all continuing Members pursuant to
and consistent with the Joint Powers Subscribers Agreement approved by the ICRMP Board of Trustees to
be effective for the policy year beginning at the time above stated.

ICRMP provides access to its program through idaho independent agents. We pay your agent a fixed
percentage of the member contribution you pay us that is included in your member contribution. This
compensation is to encourage independent agents to recommend ICRMP to public entities and to
compensate agents for their services and expertise. If you have questions regarding your agent’s
compensation, please contact us.




VEHICLE INSURANCE IDENTIFICATION CARD
STATE OF IDAHO

Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300, P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715

This Certificate may be used in lieu of the original Contract of
Liability Insurance to demonstrate the current existence of liability
insurance while such contract is in effect.

THIS POLICY COVERS ALL VEHICLES
OWNED OR LEASED.

Policy Number: 39A15014100119  contains minimum liability
insurance to meet the requirements of Idaho Code, Section 49-245.

EFFECTIVE DATES:  NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED:
October 1, 2019 Sun Valley Air Service Board
Continuous PO Box 416

Until Cancelled Sun Valley, ID 83353

KEEP THIS CERTIFICATE IN YOUR VEHICLE AT ALL TIMES
AND MUST BE PRESENTED UPON DEMAND

CLAIMS AGENT:
Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715
Phone: (208) 336-3100 FAX: (208) 336-2100

VEHICLE INSURANCE IDENTIFICATION CARD
STATE OF IDAHO

Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300, P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715

This Certificate may be used in lieu of the original Contract of
Liability Insurance to demonstrate the current existence of liability
insurance while such contract is in effect.

THIS POLICY COVERS ALL VEHICLES
OWNED OR LEASED.

Policy Number:  39A15014100119  contains minimum liability
insurance to meet the requirements of Idaho Code, Section 49-245.

EFFECTIVE DATES: NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED:
October 1, 2019 Sun Valley Air Service Board
Continuous PO Box 416

Until Cancelled Sun Valley, ID 83353

KEEP THIS CERTIFICATE IN YOUR VEHICLE AT ALL TIMES
AND MUST BE PRESENTED UPON DEMAND

CLAIMS AGENT:
Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715
Phone: (208) 336-3100 FAX: (208) 336-2100

VEHICLE INSURANCE IDENTIFICATION CARD
STATE OF IDAHO

Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300, P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715

This Certificate may be used in lieu of the original Contract of
Liability Insurance to demonstrate the current existence of liability
insurance while such contract is in effect. :

THIS POLICY COVERS ALL VEHICLES
OWNED OR LEASED.

Policy Number: 39A15014100119  contains minimum liability
insurance to meet the requirements of Idaho Code, Section 49-245.

EFFECTIVE DATES: NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED:
October 1, 2019 Sun Valley Air Service Board
Continuous PO Box 416

Until Cancelled Sun Valley, ID 83353

KEEP THIS CERTIFICATE IN YOUR VEHICLE AT ALL TIMES
AND MUST BE PRESENTED UPON DEMAND

CLAIMS AGENT:
Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715
Phone: (208) 336-3100 FAX: (208) 336-2100

VEHICLE INSURANCE IDENTIFICATION CARD
STATE OF IDAHO

Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
3100 Vista Avenue, Suite 300, P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715

This Certificate may be used in lieu of the original Contract of
Liability Insurance to demonstrate the current existence of liability
insurance while such contract is in effect.

THIS POLICY COVERS ALL VEHICLES
OWNED OR LEASED.

Policy Number: 39A15014100119  contains minimum liability
insurance to meet the requirements of Idaho Code, Section 49-245.

EFFECTIVE DATES: NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSURED:
October 1, 2019 Sun Valley Air Service Board
Continuous PO Box 416

Until Cancelled Sun Valley, ID 83353

KEEP THIS CERTIFICATE IN YOUR VEHICLE AT ALL TIMES
AND MUST BE PRESENTED UPON DEMAND

CLAIMS AGENT:
Idaho Counties Risk Management Program, Underwriters
P.O. Box 15249
Boise, Idaho 83715
Phone: (208) 336-3100 FAX: (208) 336-2100



Description: Summary Value: $0

Effective: 2/21/2014 12:00:00 AM  Modified: n/a Modified By: n/a




ICMRP ID:

# of Full-Time Employees:

# of Employees allowed to
Write Checks:

# of Full-Time Law
Enforcement Officers:

# of Detention Officers:
# of Jail Beds:

Average Daily Attendance
for Schools:

Water/Sewer/Wastewater
Payroll:

Do You Own or Operate an
Airport or Aistrip?

LIABILITY QUESTIONS

851

(=]

$0.00

No

Total Salaries/Wages from
W-3 (Line 5):

# of Part-Time Employees:
# of EMTS/Paramedics:

# of Part-Time Law
Enforcement Officers:

# of Jail Nurses:

Average Detention/Jail
Population

# of Full/Part Time Teachers

Net Operating Budget

Do You Conduct Weed
Spraying Operations?

$0.00

0

$2,994,350.00

No



Fly Sun Valley Alliance

Fly Sun Valley Alliance

Sun Valley Marketing Alliance

Sun Valley Marketing Alliance

ICRMP

Couloir Consulting

TOTAL

SUN VALLEY AIR SERVICES BOARD
INVOICES TO BE PAID
Through September 20, 2019

May 2019 LOT Invoice

June 2019 LOT Invoice
May 2019 LOT Invoice

June 2019 LOT Invoice

Invoice for ICRMP insurance contract
October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

Dave Madaras invoices for 6 months
consulting services

$ 77,965.81

131,255.11

77,965.80

209,220.91

1,443.00

9,500.00

$507,350.63



Fly Sun Valley Alliance Inc.

PO Box 6316
Ketchum, ID 83340

Bill To

Sun Valley Air Service Board
Attn: Grant G & Kathleen S
City of Ketchum

Invoice

Date

Invoice #

5/31/2019

223

P.O. No.

Terms

Project

Due on receipt

1% LOT MAY 2019 -FSVA CONTRACT SERVICES JULY 2019

77,965.81

77,965.81

Total

$77,965.81




FSVA CONTRACT SERVICES RENDERED

JULY 2019

AIR SERVICE

AIR SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

= Reviewed/monitored/analyzed weekly flight booking reports; monthly reports
= Ongoing research/analysis of seat, enplanements, load factors, fares; for SUN and competitive markets
= Continued strategic planning efforts regarding air service and air service marketing:
»> Reviewed final report from June 12 joint FSVA-VSV planning meeting; distributed to stakeholders
> Began formulation of action plan/timeline for next steps in five year strategic plan development
» Created priority matrix for new/expanded service based on target market data from VSV, SVR, ski pax O&D, etc.
> Developing data model for analysis of seats, passengers, LF, MRG cost, air marketing spend correlatlons
* Updated SUN summer 2019 air service flight schedule, provided to key partners
= Worked to finalize winter FY20 flight schedule contracts with airlines, airport
»  Ongoing communication/meetings with airlines, M&H consuitant, FMAA, customers, stakeholders
» Prepared materials for Air Service Board reports, invoices, etc. Attended meetings as needed.
s Continued to work with Couloir Consulting for SVASB consulting project; met as necessary
= Worked with VSV and other marketing partners on air service marketing efforts

LOCAL AIR MARKETING/COMMUNITY OUTREACH

= Provided information via monthly FSVA Enews and social media channels; updated website as needed
= Announced winter FY20 flight schedule via press release, EDM, ads, etc.

= Created/coordinated/executed FSVA/FMA joint local public outreach campaign via local publications

= Created/executed ongoing FSVA local marketing & PR for air service (print, digital)

= Attended various community and stakeholder meetings to continue information outreach efforts

= Provided information regarding air service to inquiries from local and other travelers

RESEARCH/OTHER

* Continued implementation of 2019 Summer Air Passenger Survey.
»  Continued work on compiling/tracking relevant news and comparative data and information of air service

FLY SUN VALLEY ALLIANCE PO BOX 6316 KETCHUM, ID 83340 info@flysunvalleyalliance.com




Fly Sun Valley Alliance Inc.

PO Box 6316
Ketchum, ID 83340

Bill To

Sun Valley Air Service Board
Attn: Grant G & Kathleen S
City of Ketchum

Invoice

Date Invoice #

6/30/2019 224

P.O. No.

Terms

Project

Due on receipt

1% LOT JUNE 2019 - FSVA CONTRACT SERVICES AUGUST 2019

131,255.11 131,255.11

Total

$131,255.11




FSVA CONTRACT SERVICES RENDERED TO SVASB - AUGUST 2019

AIR SERVICE

AIR SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

= Reviewed/monitored/analyzed weekly flight booking reports; monthly reports
= Ongoing research/analysis of seat, enplanements, load factors, fares; for SUN and competitive markets
= Continued strategic planning efforts regarding air service and air service marketing:
» Formulated Framework of action plan/timeline for next steps in five year strategic plan development
» Finalized priority matrix for new/expanded service based on key target market data from VSV, SVR, ski passenger O&D, etc.
> Developing data model for analysis of correlations between seats, passengers, load factors, MRG cost, air marketing spend.
= Finalized winter FY20 flight schedule, created schedule, provided to key partners
= Worked on winter contracts with airlines, finalized renewal of airline contract LOCs
- % Began discussions with bus company re: winter FY20 diversion busing program/contract
= Ongoing communication/meetings with airlines, M&H consultant, FMAA, customers, stakeholders
= Prepared materials for Air Service Board reports, invoices, etc. Attended meetings as needed.
»  Continued to work with Couloir Consulting for SVASB consulting project; met as necessary
»  Worked with VSV and other marketing partners on air service marketing efforts

LOCAL AIR MARKETING/COMMUNITY OUTREACH

= Provided information via monthly FSVA Enews and social media channels; updated website as needed
= Created/coordinated/executed FSVA/FMA joint local public outreach campaign via local publications

= Created/executed ongoing FSVA local marketing & PR for air service (print, digital)

» Attended various community and stakeholder meetings to continue information outreach efforts

= Provided information regarding air service to inquiries from local and other travelers

RESEARCH/OTHER

= Continued implementation of 2019 Summer Air Passenger Survey (in process June-October).
= Continued work on compiling/tracking relevant news and comparative data and information on air service

FLY SUN VALLEY ALLIANCE PO BOX 6316 KETCHUM, ID 83340 info@flysunvalleyalliance.com




SUN VALLEY MARKETING ALLIANCE, INC. Invoice
PO Box 4934

Ketchum, ID 83340 US

208-726-3423

Scott@VisitSunValley.com

www.visitsunvalley.com

(BILLTO oo
Air Service Board
PO Box 3801
Ketchum, ID 83340

: 08/26/2019

i

Air Service Board
ir Service Board Contract - Add’l 1% LOT for Direct
. Air Service Marketing | May 2019

77,965.80

i

Visit Sun Valley, as always, appreciates the support. | BALANCE DUE - $77 965 80
. , -



SUN VALLEY MARKETING ALLIANCE, INC. Invoice
PO Box 4934

Ketchum, ID 83340 US

208-726-3423

Scott@VisitSunValley.com

www.visitsunvalley.com

BILLTO

Air Service Board
PO Box 3801
Ketchum, ID 83340

1 09/26/2019 $209,220.91 10/26/2019 i Net 30

. Air Service Board 1]
- Air Service Board Contract - Add’l 1% LOT for Direct | g
. Air Service Marketing | June 2019 %

Visit Sun Valley, as always, appreciates the support. BALANCE DUE » $209 220 91
’ -

209,220.91 208,220.91,




Air Service Board Update
For May and June 2019

Metrics Snapshot:

e DestiMetrics:
o May
= Occupancy — paid: 21.0% in 2019 (v. 23.1% in 2018)
= Occupancy — pure {includes unpaid): 26.4% in 2019 (v. 32.0% in 2018)
= ADR:$144in 2019 (v. $145in 2018)

=  Qccupancy — paid: 45.9% in 2019 (v. 43.7% in 2018)
»  QOccupancy — pure (includes unpaid): 53.6 in 2019 (v. 55.3% in 2018)
= ADR:$253in 2019 (v. $228 in 2018)

o 10 properties reporting

e Facebook followers: | May +128, June +155

Instagram followers: (400 gained between May - June)

o  Website Views of the Getting Here page were up +233% from May-lune compared to the same
months in 2018. Organic web sessions for May - June to visitsunvalley.com were up +28%
compared to the same months in 2018. Our session duration or time on site was down -12%.

o TripAdvisor overall page traffic was up +40% in April, +13% in May, +3% in June
Note: TripAdvisor rolled into a new platform in June.

Marketing & Advertising

e Our summer marketing efforts kicked off in late April with a weighted spend in May and June
with tapering coming in July & August. '
"~ = Started with awareness of the destination with an emphasis on video
=  Moved to segmented reach through our core attribute channels
= Followed up with conversion marketing with an emphasis on nonstop flight marketing
e We launched a variety of content partnerships that included:
= MindBodyGreen
= Sunset Magazine
= Pinkbike
e Quterbike brought a new event and audience to the Valley in an otherwise soft visitation period
e We're excited to have launched our new website this June. An increase in flight searching
capabilities were integrated throughout the site:
»  https://www.visitsunvalley.com
e Blogging continues to be a top priority of ours as we move down the consumer funnel by being a
resource for inspirational things to do when trip planning and also when the visitor is in town.

PO BOX 4934, Ketchum ID 83340 | 208-725-2014 | visitsunvalley.com



PR

e Working with Fahlgren-Mortine to continually refine our PR strategy. Summer emphasis
included the Chicago nonstop flight, Outerbike, Dark Skies, Wellness and general outdoor
recreation and events.

e Sun Valley Mentions & Features

o Adventure Journal | We Have a New 2,700-Mile Bikepacking Route Through the

Majestic West

Refinery29 | The Best Destinations To Visit In June, According To Travel Influencers

Local Freshies | Summer’s The Right Time... To Stargaze In A Dark Sky Preserve

Women's Health | You Have Arrived | June 2019 Issue

Forbes | Hunting Down Idaho's Hot Springs In A Tesla

SF Gate | 10 Stellar Places for Stargazing

The Jet Set | Season 3 | Episode 34 (starts at 5:45)

Luxe Getaways | Celebrate the End of Ski Season in Sun Valley

Scotty Lago | Snowboard Secrets Revealed - Sun Valley | V1

Haute Living | Sun Valley, Idaho | An Emerging Wonderland With a Secret Past

Epic Idaho | Hemingway Haunts, Mountain Bike Magic & Dazzling Dark Skies

MindBodyGreen | The Hidden Gem of Wellness: 7 Reasons You Should Be Sun Valley,

idaho Bound _

Sunset Magazine | Sun Valley Just Became Qur Favorite Destination for an Arts &

Culture Getaway

o Boise Weekly | Angther Season Under the Sun | Your Go-To Sun Valley Summer
Guide

o Arielle Shipe | Seek Sun Valley

o Global Cycling Network | A Slice of Epic Idaho Gravel Riding with Rebecca Rusch

O 0O 0O 0000 O0OO0OO0OO0

o

Social Media

e Continual content building and distribution of Visit Sun Valley Facebook page & Instagram
account
e Internally composed and distributed a variety of blog pieces including:
o Ballet in Sun Valley, Idaho
Sun Valley's Best Qutdoor Patios
Eating Healthy & Sustainably in Sun Valley
Dance in the Mountains: From Classical to Cutting Edge
This is the Sawiooth Botanical Gardens '

O 0O O O

PO BOX 4934, Ketchum ID 83340 | 208-725-2014 | visitsunvalley.com



e

Member Owned, Member Driven

ldaho Counties Risk Management Program

3100 S Vista Ave,, Ste. 300
Boise, 1D 83705

Member Billing Contact:

Susan Roberts

Sun Valley Air Service Board
PO Box 416

Sun Valley, ID 83353

Invoice Date: 9/1/2019
Invoice Number: 15014 - 1820 - 1
Policy Period: 10-1-19 to 9-30-20
Policy Number: 38A15014100119

Insurance Billing

10/1/2019 - 6/30/2020 Policy Year Annual P"ré;ai

o

Balance Due 4/1/2020: $721.50

For proper application, please do not combine other payments with your premium remittance.

e et m .
Gh $1,443.00 >y,
\\W'

Minimum Due 10/1/2019:  $721.50 I —

Please Detach and Submit with Payment

blembar Cowned, Marmber Saives

Member:

Sun Valley Air Service Board
PO Box 416

Sun Valley, ID 83353

Make Checks Payable to:

ICRMP
PO Box 15116
Boise, ID 83715

invoice Date: 8112018
Invoice Number: 168014~ 1920 - 1
Due Date: 10/1/2019
Minimum Due: $721.50
Amount Paid:
Write Amount Paid Here

. Address Corrections? Please make changes on the back of this form and enclose with your payment.



Couloir Consulting
P.O.Box 3240 .
Ketchum, ID 83340 US
(757)8763597
madaras@gmail.com

INVOICE

BILL TO » INVOICE # 1002
Sun Valley Air Service Board DATE 07/30/2019
DUE DATE 08/31/2019
TERMS End of Month

20ns£’2igg 5.50 125.00 687.50

ug

' Csiggszuoltjrég 7 125.00 875.00
gg:l;gl:lgg 6 125.00 750.00
CN>onszu(;t1irég 25.50 125.00 3,187.50

oV .

gggszuét:gg ' 11 125.00 1,375.00
Jc::sélél:igg 12 125.00 1,500.00
Consulting 9 125.00 1,125.00
Feb 2019
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" BANCEDUE  $9500.00

@:Number: 1 Author: Heather.dawson Subject: Sticky Note Date: 9/19/2019 3:46:33 PM i i
Contract period is from mid-August, 2018 through mid-Feburary, 2019, a six month period as approved in August 2018 SVASB Meeting.

L=y



